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1,979

PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

0.05
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15.315
2038 15
20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
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2023

101,462 18.85
32,095 5.96
26,248 4.88
15,598 2.90
13,741 2.55
8,416 1.56
7,882 1.46
6,474 1.20
6,005 1.12
5,714 1.06
5,299 0.98
4,951 0.92
4,792 0.89
4,174 0.78
3,243 0.60
2,489 0.46
1,798 0.33
1,000 0.19
893 0.17
683 0.13
387 0.07
122 0.02
32,436 6.03
8,961 1.67
6,072 1.13
2,477 0.46
2,591 0.48
1,366 0.25
64,809 12.04
45,217 8.40
11,309 2.10
2,346 0.44
2,135 0.40
232 0.04
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66,538 12.36
1,245 0.23
306 0.06
156 0.03
101 0.02
30 0.01
16 0.00
143 0.03
64,703 12.02
566,655 105.30
28,524 5.30

538,131
100.00

78,675
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2023

1 |U.S. Treasury Bills 5.420 |2023 10 14,146,530 14,400,000 14,151,832 .63
2 |Quanta Services, Inc 5.863 | 2023 10,791,225 10,800,000 10,790,147 .01
3 |Freddie Mac 5.950 | 2025 21 8,200,000 8,200,000 8,204,479 .52
4 |Federal Home Loan Bank 5.500 | 2025 8,000,000 8,000,000 7,983,198 .48
5 |American Electric Power Co., Inc 5.477 12023 26 6,076,913 6,100,000 6,076,377 .13
6 |Raytheon Technologies Corp. 5.490 | 2023 12 6,062,138 6,100,000 6,061,292 .13
7 |HCA, Inc. 5.000 | 2024 15 6,052,111 6,043,000 6,002,179 .12
8 |Freddie Mac 5.550 | 2025 6,000,000 6,000,000 5,989,007 11
9 |Charter Communications Operating LLC 6.949 |2024 5,820,638 5,800,000 5,821,358 .08
10 |Freddie Mac 5.680 | 2025 5,800,000 5,800,000 5,797,573 .08
11 |Freddie Mac 5.730 | 2025 5,800,000 5,800,000 5,797,129 .08
12 |Freddie Mac 5.520 | 2025 28 5,800,000 5,800,000 5,793,820 .08
13 |Nissan Auto Lease Trust 5.100 | 2025 17 5,800,000 5,800,000 5,768,280 .07
14 |Harley-Davidson Motorcycle Trust 5.320 | 2026 15 5,780,000 5,780,000 5,752,891 .07
15 |Freddie Mac 5.820 | 2025 20 5,600,000 5,600,000 5,597,407 .04
16 |Freddie Mac 5.650 | 2025 5,600,000 5,600,000 5,597,303 .04
17 |Federal Home Loan Bank 5.710 | 2025 14 5,500,000 5,500,000 5,495,869 .02
18 |Federal Home Loan Bank 5.650 | 2025 28 5,300,000 5,300,000 5,295,687 .98
19 |Nissan Motor Co. Ltd. 3.043 | 2023 15 4,856,892 4,900,000 4,851,237 .90
20 |Morgan Stanley 0.790 | 2025 30 4,741,800 5,000,000 4,740,398 .88
21 |Enel Finance International NV 2.650 | 2024 10 4,334,142 4,420,000 4,260,334 .79
22 |Eni SpA 4.000 |2023 12 4,183,925 4,200,000 4,173,973 .78
23 |HSBC Holdings PLC 6.384 | 2025 11 4,006,035 4,000,000 4,006,533 .74
24 |Nordea Bank Abp 5.819 | 2025 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,998,148 .74
25 |Global Payments, Inc 5.977 | 2023 21 3,986,778 4,000,000 3,986,394 .74
26 |Barclays PLC 3.932 | 2025 3,912,800 4,000,000 3,915,381 .73
27 |Aozora Bank Ltd. 1.050 | 2024 4,093,248 4,100,000 3,851,635 .72
28 |QNB Finance Ltd. 1.125 | 2024 17 3,999,547 4,000,000 3,820,904 .71
29 |Enbridge U.S., Inc. 5.418 | 2023 15 3,792,020 3,800,000 3,791,417 .70
30 |Athene Global Funding 5.792 | 2024 24 3,773,646 3,800,000 3,756,717 .70

2023

2023
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2023

24,770,876 3,621,502 101.50 14,839

2017 31
52,767,817 7,714,655 103.03 15,063

2018 31
109,790,959 16,051,438 104.87 15,332

2019 31
194,300,838 28,406,783 106.12 15,515

2020 31
357,325,045 52,240,922 108.33 15,838

2021 31
299,958,901 43,853,991 106.29 15,540

2022 31
353,138,327 51,628,823 108.94 15,927

2023 31
2022 267,452,029 39,101,487 106.19 15,525
10 266,018,492 38,891,904 105.91 15,484
11 270,898,693 39,605,389 106.20 15,526
12 287,578,030 42,043,908 106.90 15,629
2023 311,408,029 45,527,854 107.37 15,697
334,260,676 48,868,911 107.94 15,781
348,853,361 51,002,361 107.87 15,771
351,906,734 51,448,765 108.41 15,850
351,901,280 51,447,967 108.94 15,927
356,576,368 52,131,465 109.52 16,012
359,567,614 52,568,785 110.09 16,095
358,980,838 52,482,999 110.63 16,174
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2,351,943,111 10,061

2017 31
8,298,729,600 10,050

2018 31
9,299,823,921 9,987

2019 31
6,173,046,183 9,902

2020 31
5,451,082,407 10,073

2021 31
4,516,768,886 9,852

2022 31
4,461,228,885 9,754

2023 31
2022 4,028,327,784 9,782
10 3,947,499,492 9,733
11 3,776,496,282 9,732
12 3,875,432,025 9,752
2023 3,861,260,597 9,761
4,666,240,319 9,781
4,656,775,967 9,734
4,633,595,219 9,747
4,460,923,415 9,754
4,489,218,837 9,760
4,434,337,031 9,776
4,159,345,355 9,772
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2017 31

2018 31
53,255,585 5,047,564 100.57 9,532

2019 31
67,759,817 6,422,275 100.86 9,560

2020 31
75,852,669 7,189,316 102.77 9,741

2021 31
53,917,625 5,110,312 100.63 9,538

2022 31
67,560,582 6,403,392 102.17 9,684

2023 31
2022 53,356,840 5,057,161 100.41 9,517
10 52,909,911 5,014,801 100.11 9,488
11 53,126,429 5,035,323 100.32 9,508
12 55,218,392 5,233,599 100.82 9,556
2023 54,923,905 5,205,688 101.14 9,586
55,525,694 5,262,725 101.59 9,629
63,963,589 6,062,469 101.39 9,610
65,222,629 6,181,801 101.81 9,650
68,050,914 6,449,866 102.17 9,684
66,979,481 6,348,315 102.60 9,724
67,035,451 6,353,620 103.06 9,768
66,960,778 6,346,543 103.42 9,802
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319,663.840 75,612.492 244,051.348
(319, 663.840) (75,612.492) (244,051.348)
474,545.275 206,442.167 512,154.456
(474,545.275) (206,442.167) (512,154.456)
1,122,566.281 587,802.245 1,046,918.492
(1,122,566.281) (587,802.245) (1,046,918.492)
1,501,616.986 717,612.501 1,830,922.977
(1,501,616.986) (717,612.501) (1,830,922.977)
2,869,597.921 1,401,978.287 3,298,542.611
(2,869,597.921) (1,401,978.287) (3,298,542.611)
1,066,728.551 1,543,132.694 2,822,138.468
(1,066,728.551) (1,543,132.694) (2,822,138.468)
1,383,122.818 963,596.432 3,241,664.854
(1,383,122.818) (963,596.432) (3,241,664.854)
316,834.453 83,074.972 233,759.481
(316,834.453) (83,074.972) (233,759.481)
810,474.837 218,499.580 825,734.738
(810,474.837) (218,499.580) (825,734.738)
617,414.043 511,980.377 931,168.404
(617,414.043) (511,980.377) (931,168.404)
98,733.129 406,489.661 623,411.872
(98,733.129) (406,489.661) (623,411.872)
240,039.008 322,317.176 541,133.704
(240,039.008) (322,317.176) (541,133.704)
210,778.060 293,445.751 458,466.013
(210,778.060) (293,445.751) (458,466.013)
107,573.842 108,667.495 457,372.360
(107,573.842) (108, 667.495) (457,372.360)
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) ) )

) ) )
530,693.000 1,162.000 529,531.000
(530, 693.000) (1,162.000) (529,531.000)
312,815.000 170,511.000 671,835.000
(312,815.000) (170,511.000) (671,835.000)
489,065.000 422,801.000 738,099.000
(489,065.000) (422,801.000) (738,099.000)
159,045.000 361,349.000 535,795.000
(159,045.000) (361,349.000) (535,795.000)
385,031.000 259,567.000 661,259.000
(385,031.000) (259,567.000) (661,259.000)
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4.7

10

4.7

USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank

Secrecy Act
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2021 2022 31
2022 2023 31

131

23 103

2023
31 UFJ 146.20
94.78
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82,845

298

880

11,846

827
474

2,630
194

4,661
115,490
0

4
640
2,486
161

0

0

36
134
105

97,175

126,541

385

28

681
16,885

94
363
24

20
15

538,131
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576,136 84,231
0 0
5 1
0 O
0 0
43,722 6,392
31,931 4,668
353,138 51,629
661
457
3,242
66.12 9,667
102.17 9,684
69.81 10,206
9,754
108.94 15,927

110/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31

17,840 2,608
1 0
17,841 2,608
166 24

108 16
1,315 192
210 31

99 14
1,670 244
37 5

25 4

296 43

178 26
4,422 646
13,419 1,962
(11,270) (1,648)
0 0
2,348 343
(6,218) (909)
700 102
(14,440) (2,111)
7,281 1,064
0 0

(187) @D
(2,643) (386)
(13) @
4,438 649
(10,002) (1,462)
3,417 500
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2023 31
13,419 1,962
(14,440) (2,111)
4,438 649
3,417 500
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
* 81,395 11,900
84,812 12,400
453,319 66,275

538,131 78,675
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72.19 10,554
() 1.70 249
(7.77) (1,136)
(6.07) (887)
66.12 9,667
(b) (8-41)
©) 1.53
43,722 6,392
1.13
1.08
2.50

0.01
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76.58 11,196
() 2.01 294
(8.78) (1,284)
(6.77) (990)
69.81 10,206
(b) (8-84)
© (0-99)
31,931 4,668
0.79
0.75
2.81

0.01
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106.29 15,540
@) 2.70 395
(0.05) (7N
2.65 387
108.94 15,927
(b) 2.49
353,138 51,629
1.14
1.11
2.53

0.01
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US GAAP
US GAAP
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S.C.A. BBH BBH
BBH
2020 FASB LIBOR
Accounting Standards Update ASU 2020-04
ASU  2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR LIBOR 2023
30 2022 12 FASB ASU 2022-06 LIBOR
2024 12 31
LIBOR
ASU
2022 FASB ASU 2022-03 820
ASU 2022-03
820

ASU  2022-03 2024 12 15
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NYSE
NYSE
NYSE NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
NYSE
PIMCO
NYSE NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE
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NYSE
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US GAAP
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SMBS 10
PO 10
10
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PIK PIK
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TBA
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2023 31
385
385 (96)
1,306 7,249 (2,924)
600
34,038 38,515 (1,570)
11
PIMCO
12
5,000
10
JITF
2023 31 2023 31 2023 31 2023 31
3 187 2 124 211 6,391
2,451 38,419
@n (2,000) (18) (1,333) @60)|  (13,982)
4,315)|  (67,541)
24) (1,813) (16) (1,209) (249) (7,591) @.864) (29,122)
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13

14

2023 31 2023 31 2023 31 2023 31
100 3,703 23 453
385 26,286
202 30,795
77 1,922
2 114
11 555
134 9,929
11 586
464 3,643
77 7,804
15 320
108 7,825
820 56,651
1,383 | 148,017
(169), (6,245) (247) (4,734)
@60  (17.824)
a5 (@.850)
@  (5.636)
(16) (952)
oy 3,071)
@)  (3.623)
enl @, 00)
(1.684)]  (13,247)
@)  (4,070)
24) (514)
@  (7.685)
©20)P)| (62,242) )
©63)| (102,618)
69 @542  @4n| @737 @5)|  (4.281) 883 81,395
2022 30 2023 28
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2023 31

WEEE BE
(R {Fmir

AorCep Ireland Capital DAC
1. L50% due 10,39,/ 00203 -3 3. 000 3 Lo

1. 650% due F0/S200 500 5 470
3. 150% due 02/ 15,2024 2,200 o
Aircastle Ltd

4. A00% due 09052023 hLr) ]
hozore Bank Lid

L 050% due 09,09/ 3024 4. 104 3. 852
B 00N due 002/ 2026 1, a0 1. 518
Arvimdionn 5 A

4. 500 due 06 1452025 Al 2040 122
Atheme Global Punding

0. 050% due 0108/ 3024 3 3 s
Lo 000 due 0,16/ 2024 11 150
1. 200% due 101352023 1. 0 =)
2 B14% cue 0008/ 3024 Lkl 579
5. 70K due 05,"34/2024 3. 500 3187
Ahvelon Holdirgs Funding Ltd

o 8TE% due 02715/ 2025 Lini] 50
& 125% due 10002023 1] o
Banco Bilbao Vizcays Argentaris 5.4

0. 875% due 0918/ 2025 1. 60D 1. 575
Banco Santander 5. A

3o 5% due 067242024 1. 7040 1, 658
Bank of Aserica Corp.

0o976% due B2/ 2025 2. 700 2, hsd
i B0 due 07,23/ 2024 00 ]
B TUE% due 10/24y H) 7o
B Z33% due 0T/ 23732024 1,010 1. 011
6. 333% due B4/02/ 2026 1. 604 1. 613
Barclays PLC

10T dug [3/ 0073024 1 2050 L 103
3.032% due D607,/ 2025 4. 000 3,415
BGC Partners, Inc,

5. 3TE% due 07/ 242023 1, 100 1. 0a7
B Paribas 8.A

o ATE% due 01050 2025 1, 682 1. 623
3 800% doe 00103024 1, 30 1,2
. 0% due DO RO B0 3. 6 3. BT
BOC Aviation Led

G 205% duwe 0915,/ 2023 1. 004 1. 0530
BEFCE 5. A

4. 000% due DdLSESS 3024 500 =3
Cantor Fitzgerald LP

1. 8TS% due 00,/00/2024 - T 2. 130
Citigrop, Imc.

B 3vel due 100/27/2023 Al 2.4 1. 831
b 865% due D601/ 2024 § 300 L
Crodit Agricole S A

BT due OG22/ 3024 1, 4 1, 407
Crodit Suisse AG

5 16T% duwe 11/30/2023 (&) Al 3, 0040 1, 36
b. 465% due 0202/ 2024 5 500 490
Crodit Suisse Group AG

2 1935 due 065,06, 2026 1, 0040 IS
B B04% due 06 §2/2024 1. S0 1. 479
Danske Bank A/S

L 206% due 06,32/ 3034 1, Q00 waT
5. 375% due 001272024 1. 70 1. Bs7
O 2 14% doe 08901272023 3. 330 3321
Deutsche Bank AG

O B0 due 05/18/3024 (o) (8 iz
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2023 31

BEEH M

(Faldg) {Fufx
O 962% dug 11082005 5 3,700 5 3. 568
3. T00% due 0830/ 3024 1,200 1. 167
8 Bank ASA
I 008% due 00/38/ 3025 100 623
First Abu Dhabi Bank FJSC
5 (N9% due 02718/2025 AT L] i)
F5 EER Capital Corp.
L. G50% due 10/ 12/ 2024 3 400 0
GA Global Pueding Trust
0. 800% due 06/13,/2024 500 467
L 000 due 04,06/ 2024 20 =4
1. 250% due 127082023 o] ki
1. GIE% due 0L/15/2026 400 hE
B 30E% due 09/13/2024 00 158
o 382% due 04,/10,/2025 1, 200 1174
Goldeen Sachs Group, Inc.
1. 757% due 00/24/2025 1304 1. 063
5 6TT% due | 2/08/ 2006 L] B
7. 063% due §1/09,/2023 1. 0040 1. 03
Hana Bank
B 0% due 00132024 500 500
HSBC Holdings FLC
G 384% due 00/10/2026 4.000 4, 007
NG Groep KY
4. 100K due 10/02/ 2023 1. 1041 1. e
5. 0% due 000 202T « =00 1. 187
B 177% dus 1050270025 100 701
G B22% due 0028/ 2026 2. 400 2419
Jackson Naticeal Life Global Funding
G 132N due 06383024 2,300 23
JPorgan Chase & Co.
4 T due 07/ E8 2024 200 16
400N due 12/05/2024 200 195
G L63% due 07352024 1. 200 1, 401
B 2N dug (M35, 2026 1. 300 1. 312
LoasePlan Corp. MY
2. BTE% due 10/24,/2024 Lt ] 5id
Mitmshishi BC Capital, Inc.
i B0 due 09,159/ 2020 fre] TEd
Mitmghishi UF] Financial Group, Inc.
0. 845% due 09715/ 2024 3,700 3843
1. 9% due 107002024 AT 450 )
B 031% due 0232026 kot 1, G 1, Bah
G B85 due 07/18/2025 ] 1. i
Mizubo Financial Group, Ine.
0849 due 00083024 1.200 1. 153
Lo 241% due 0710/ 2024 1. 000 5
BO22N doe 059/10/3024 2200 2185
5. 0T9% due 07/19/2023 ALD 1,000 BAT
B 200% due 07/ 10/2024 5 500 500
Morgan Stanley
O T due 0630/ 3025 5.000 4, 740
G165 doe 04/17/ 2025 1. 0040 1, 003
Nat{eewide Building Society
(. 5500 due 01/Z2/3024 00 =7
4. 363% due 05°001/2024 . 400 2 39]
NatWest Group FLC
4. 265% due 03722/ M205 1, 00 el
GG due 06252024 1. 204 1, 800
NatWest Markets FLC
6. 405% due 00/T2/3025 g ] 501
Nomure Holdiegs, Ine.
1. 850% due 0716/ 2025 1. 300 1. 195
SN due 0116,/ 2026 1,200 1, 138
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BEES mE

(Fuliz) {Fulih
Nordea Bank Abp
5819 due 06/06,/2025 3 4. 000 1 3,959
G 40c% due 08,30,/ 2020 1,300 1. 301
Park Aerospace Holdiegs Ltd
b B0O% due 0015,/ 2024 ) Lsl]
Piper Sandler Cos.
5 200% due 101572023 B fi
@ Finance Lid
1. 125% dus DESET/ 3024 4. 000 & 821
6. 245% due 0G0/20/2024 &S00 RO5
Santander UK Group Boldings FLC
1.08%% due 0G/15,/2025 1,700 1. 70d
4. TGN due T1S15/2024 2. 200 o =<
SBA Tewsr Trast
3. 505% due 1008/ 2024 1,000 w7l
Scciete Generale 5. A
26054 due 0122/ N5 1, 604 1, 505
38754 due 06,255/ 2024 500 490
4. 2500% due 09014/ 2023 1. 304 1, 259
B 09E% due 01/21/ 2026 2100 2083
Standard Chartered FLC
3. BN due 06/21/2025 200 195
G022% due 11/23/2025 1, 600 1, 5sd
G, T due G130,/ 2026 1, S04 1. 415

Sumitomo Mitsal Finapcial Growp, Inc.
G 0% due 00/ 1R/ D026 3, T00 3, 73
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Ltd

O B00% due 091672024 B 470

0 850% due G/ 25,2024 1, 004 U]

Smchrony Fimancial

4. 250% due 08/ 15,2024 1420 1,

A.375% due 031932024 400 =8

UBS Group AG

G 6T1% due 0512/ 2026 3. 600 3, God

Yenovie Finamce BY

B 00O due 100022023 500 qa7

Wolls Fargo & Co,

L. 654% due 0602/ 2024 600 00

BoATI% due M35/ 2026 3. 000 &, 023

Wostpas Banking Corp.

4. 862% due 117162023 ALD 5, 000 P |
158, 8756

=€ 0» |

T-Eleven, Inc.

I, S00% due 02/ 10,/ 2024 5 1, 805 1,828

Barry Callebaut Services WY

b B0O% due 06/ 15,2023 1,800 1. 758

Baxier Intermational, Inc.

B. 352% due F2701,/2023 1. 000 L=

Bayer U.5. Finance II LLC

S 8TE% due 12715,/ 2023 1. &00 1, 781

5. ATE% due F2015/2003 3. 500 3, 454

Barry Global, Inc.

4. 875% due 07/15/2026 1.-150 L1

Bowing Co.

L A% due 02/ 04/2024 1, 300 1, 46

1950 dus 0200302 7 634

Broadeom Corp.

3 625% due D115/ 2024 B0 453

O Industrisl Capital LLC

10500 due 0702/ 2023 1. G0 L. 4596

4. 2000 due 0015/ 2024 3. 004 2471

Daimler Truck Finance Borth Aserica LLC

B, 99 due (4052024 1. 000 1. 00
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WS i

(Fuliz) {Fulizh
Energy Transfer LP
30008 due 06152020 i 2,000 3 1,954
4. 250% due B4/00/ 2024 1. 108 1. 04
4. 5000% due M4/ 15,3024 1, 004 )
Ford Motor Credit Co. LLC
3370 due 11517/ 2023 400 185
General Motors Financial Co., Ine.
1. T00% due 08, 18,/ 2023 B0 a3
5100 due 01172024 2.850 2,800
6. 201% due 11/17/2023 500 501
Haleom U, 5. Capital LLC
B0 due R/ 3E 203 i o
HCA, Inc.
5. 00CR dug 0G/15/3024 6,043 B, (2
Hyundai Capital America
0L BTE% due 06 L2024 (Hi ] b7l
Isperial Brasde Finamee PLC
F 1SN due 0706/ 2024 298 = I
1 500% due 0726/ 2026 00 375
4. 250% due 07/21/2005 300 )
JUE Peat's KY
0. B00% due’ 0924,/ 2024 2,100 1, 458
Hissan Motor Acceptamce Co. LLC
1. 125% due 06/16,/2024 200 186
3BTEN due 06,21/3023 500 496
Hissan Moter Co, Ltd
3. 043% due 0815,/ 2003 4. 900 1, 831
NXP BV
4 875% due 0300/ 2024 1. 000 =
Ronesas Electronics Corp.
1543 due 11726,/ 2024 700 654
5K Bmix, Ine.
L 000% die 00,/ 18,2024 1, G0 1. 841
O 000 due 05 1T 2024 00 633
SMBC Aviation Capital Finanes DAC
35500 due DM/ 1572024 1,650 I, 615
4. 125% due 07/15/2023 T4 el
TD STRNEX Corp.
1. 2500% due DE/09/ 2024 1, 504 L. 415
Transurban Queensland Finance Pty Ltd
3 750K duc 1071253003 ALD T 452
Yolkswagon Group of America Finance LLC
3 0500 due 06DE/2025 3 =T 27
Warnermedin Boldings, Ine.
3 TESR due 03 15/2025 500 43
Westinghouse Air Brake Technologies Corp.
4400 due 0 15,/2024 300 2o

57. 306

husgrid Finarce Pty Ltd

3. 7500 due 10,730,/2024 ALD h] e
A BuEE due 103003024 bl ] 130
4. 972% due 02706,/ 2024 5040 24
British Teleccmmunications PLC

4. 500% due 12042023 i 60 547
Charter Commmications Operating LIC

G, B4 due 02012024 5, 800 B, 821
Chugoly Blectric Power Co., Ino,

2, 401% dus 08/27/2024 400 =
Ensl Finance International KV

T, G50% due 09/ 10/2024 4, 430 4, 61
G SUCH% due 10/ 14/ 2025 1,200 230
Eni SpA

A 0000 due 09122023 4. 200 4 174
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BXES L=

(Fuliz) {Fulizh
lerael Elsctrie Corp. Ltd
5. 000% due 1151272024 3 1,000 3 HE
6. 875% due DE/Z1/2020 1, 504 1, 500
Jersey Contral Power B Light Co.
4. TOO% due O4,/00/ 2024 2154 130
Eorea Southern Power Co. Ltd
4. GASK due 10,730,730 ALD 3. 000 1437
MoxtEra Energy Capital Holdiegs, Inc.
4. 255% due 09°00,/202 3 1. 5040 1,477
. B00% dug 03/21/2024 3,200 30
G 051% due 0001/ 2025 £ L] 10
Pacific Gos & Electric Co.
L T0E0% due 11152003 1. §100 1, 5]
1. 2508 due 06/15,/ 2023 104 100
3400 due 08/ 15,2024 T ]
3. THO% due 0215/ 2024 104 o3
Jo850% due 1171572023 100 B
4. 250% due 08001,/ 2023 300 pa )
SG5F ustralis Assets Pry Ltd
3. 750% due 0628,/ 2023 ALD 500 ¥
Shell Interpational Fimance BV
5 T21% due L1SEBSI0ZE i BT 678
Soutkern California Edison Co.
B B24% due 40072024 1. 000 a7
Spriat LLC
7. 125% due 0615/ 3024 1051 101
Verizon Commmnications, Inc.
B A21% due 06,15,/ 2025 1,641 1, B5T

a5, 286

HER 253, 466
(BRI $256, T00)
HEHER 0, 0%
Dauphin, Penmsylvanis, Pennsylvania Higher Edocstion Assistacce Agency Revenue Bonds, Series 2006
B 3RS% due 10252036 142 143
Rt 143
(BB $141)0
ISR EM 12, 00
Fannie Mas
5. as% due 03/25/2038 1 61
Foderal Hose Losn Bark
O % due 05,03/ 2025 8, 000 T 983
B. G508 duo 06/28,/3035 (b) 5. 3040 B X
5. TIO% due 00/ 14,2025 5, 500 B, 498
Freddie Mac
2. B0 due 10,25,/ 2048 134 124
3. 000% dus 09,25,/ 2045 270 pe)
4. 061% due 01/15,/2040 254 Frr)
A 06E% due 0315/ 2037 444 437
B 5200 due 08,38/ X025 58500 B, 794
o 000% due 06,09/ 2025 6. 000 &, =9
b 650% due 0G,/07,/2025 5. B4 B, 547
G, G800 due (/002025 5. 8500 B, 798
8. TH0% due 5033025 5, B00 B, 787
b B20% due 00,/ 20,2025 5. 600 B, b7
50500 due 032103025 (1) £ 200 B, 4
Ginnie Moo
25000 doe 01,20/ 2049 52 47
25000 due 10,720,204 1] 2
1. 616% doe [1/30/ 2067 ] bad
4. 8855 due 07/ 20/ 3066 43 =}
B 335% due 00,30/ 2061 HT ar
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WEHEM i
[ i°¢] {Fmaxh
5. B6E% duo 0630,/ 2006 5 s 5 3
B T0E% due [1/30,/ 2065 106 105
5 BE1% doe D5/30/3073 1. 100 1. =8
PR B4, 703

(EAEE 5654, BEY)

610 Asset-Hacked Trust

2o due 06,25,/ 2061 59 ]
MCE Securities Corporstion Bome Equity Loan Trust

S OEER due 252034 et b 3
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust

e 057% due 06 15/2035 00 (-t
Aven Finance Mo, 2 FLC

S 10E%. due 06,50,/ 3048 GEF 1. 208 1, 658
RAML Commorcinl Mortgege Securities Trust

B 15T due B/15/ 2036 % A0 =
G 30T% due 037 152004 400 fi]
Bear Stearns A&djustable Rate Mortgage Trust

3605 due 08,25,/ 2033 14 13
1. 513% due 0425,/ 2033 4 3
Bear Stemrns Assot-Backed Securities T Trust

HoA6S% due 0925/ 3004 6 pist )
Beast Mortgage Trust

B. 157% due 09/15/2048 2 000 1. 760
Benchmark Mortgage Trust

T 256% due 0315/ 2054 A b
F.042% due 0815/ 2062 1, 000 W24
Brass Ko, B PLC

B O15% due 11716/ 2066 18 14
BEAY Wortgage Trust

B.357% due 09,715/ 2035 500 178
BX Trust

B 8730 due 0115,/ 2004 2,170 2 119
CLNT Trust

0. 302% due 111572038 40 ]
Crodit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust

1. T96% due 12/27,/3060 837 TE0
2ORES% due 0325,/ 2059 02 53
3008 due 4,25/ 2062 188 174
b, 000 due 0725,/ 2066 115 =
b 857% due 07,15,/ 2032 238 L)
CSAIL Commarcial Mortgage Trust

d 2% due 0615/ 2052 500 465
Dilesk RMES o, 4 DAC

4. 133% due 0220,/ 2060 (1 il 2 425
Buropean Loam Conduit Bo, 36 DAC

4. 355% due 02/17,/2030 656 fEd
Extendod Stay Amorica Trust

B. 165% due 0715/ 3008 5 STy 2672
Finerco ksorica Mortgage Loan Trust

0 963% due 08,35/ 3034 122 113
Fresont Home Loan Trust

b BTN due 01/25/2005 ] 121
GCAT Trust

L 081% due D6/25/ 2066 513 =5
2. BEEN due 1272772008 061 Bl
GCT Comsarcial Mortgage Trust

BT due 02/15/3038 504 132
G5 Mortgnge-Backed Secarities Trust

B 000% dus 12725,/ 206] M5 32
5. 000% due 02725,/ 2052 53 77l
HPLY Trust

B 107% due 11715/ 2036 306 o3
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Wi mE

[ 4] {Faxh
Impas CME Trnast
oo 385 due 00/ 25/2035 £ BTl i B2
b, TTE% due 03/35/2035 1] T3
INTOWN Mortgage Trust
7. 8% due 08/ 15/2039 ] B2
JPorgan Chase Commercial Mortgage Securities Trust
G 3NTS due 061572035 455 450
B B57% due 12/15/2031 Lx 113
JPiorgan Mortgage Trust
3. 500% due 06/25,/2050 ] 56
B 000 due 06235,/ 3052 331 J0G
Kinbase DAC
0% due 059,25,/ 3062 (HE Lire] 63T
Logney Mortgege Asset Trust
L. 876% due 1025/ 2068 5 306 bl
& 250% due 07252067 & T
Leng Basch Mortpnge Losn Trisst
B 113% due 04,/25/2035 370 a6y
MASTR Asset-Backed Securities Trust
5. 838K due 09257203 105 =
NFA Trust
Lo 130% due 0735,/ 2060 1, 366 1,218
1. 479% due 03252065 2 by
Mill City Mortgage Lean Trust
I 125% due |25/ 3060 L) 42
2. THO due 0815/ 2064 405 HL)
Morgan Stanley Asset-Backed Securities Capital I, Inc. Trust
6. 038N due 06/25,/3034 firl 268
Morgan Stanley Capital T Trust
B. 10T% due 06/ 15/2035 T00 657
Morgan Stanley Residentinl Mortgage Losn Trust
B, 0% due 0925,/ 2061 M2 316
Wew Residential Mortgage Loan Trust
0% due 10/25/ 2058 pioL ] 2u
3. 500% due 12725/ 1067 56 53
4. 500 due 05725/ 2058 104 105
NevaStar Mortgage Fumding Trest
5 70N due 01252036 129 127
NYMT Losn Trast
1. GTO0% due 0625,/ 2061 L) i)
N0 Commarcial Morigage Trust
G 2655 due 110152038 1, S0 1, 734
Pelaris FLC
5678 due 05/27/3057 GE 516 640
Procise Mortgage Fundimg PLC
5,304 due 10/16/2056 LR 532
Protiom Mortgege Credit Partesrs I LLC
2. 240% due 09/27/ i 107 iz}
Pratimm Mortgage Credit Parimers LLC
1 592% due 0215/ 2061 BT 764
Rosidential Mortgage Accopiance Corporation PLC
B (MO due 06/12/2048 GEP 250 e
Residentinl Mortgnge Securities 32 FLC
B 512% due 06/30,/2070 a1 a6
RESTMAC Prowmier
5. 804% due 077 10/2052 5 L 2477
Stratton Mortgage Funding
B L6T% due 0720,/ 3060 GEP s} E[u]
Stratton Mortgage Fueding FLC
b (E3% due 03/12/2062 405 a0l
Structured Asset Investment Loen Trust
B, GEE% due 092573034 3 1. 5 1486
Tourss UK DAC
oo 209% due 06,17/ 2031 G 1. G838 Z 016
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Wi e

[ 4] {Fmnxh
Tharsldeon Botel Portfolio Trust
B. 145 due 10/10/20034 E 210 % 708
Tewd Foint Mertgage Panding
5. TS due OF/302045 GEP 523 1017
. 229% due 0200/ 2054 T 4138
Towd Point Mortgage Funding Adburn 14 PLC
5. TT9% due 05,30,/ 2045 111 g7
Towd Point Mortgage Fanding Granited PLC
SoAEI% dus 10/30/305] 104 130
Towd Point Mortgage Trust
G o due 06,725/ 2058 3 it 480
B 135% due 06/25/2058 323 i
G 13E% due 10725/ 3054 25 i H
Tewsr Hridge Funding FLC
5. T67% due 10/30/ 2064 GE 1. 500 1,871
Tudor Rose Mortgages
4. BOSS due 06,30/ 3048 b6 B
Twin Bridges FLC
b, 2% due 06712/2050 267 3]
Yorus Securitization Trust
B 8HI% due 06/15/2027 ] S0 Ee
¥olls Pargo Cossorcial Norigage Trust
4. 2184 due 0T/16/2048 129 128
Pl B3 0 U & R 45, 46
(R 552, B42)
G 152% due 10/ 183028 1. 965 1943
B (L0 16 Led
G Z31% due 04/ HS2029 11 111
Anchorage Capital CLO 6 Ltd
G 310% due 0715/ 2030 2.THS bl
Apldes LD XIT
G MO% due S 15/ 3031 1. 500 1. 484
AREIT Trust
G 188 due 10/17/2038 1. 30 1.5
G 101% due 06142036 21 21
ARES L CLO Ltd
G 310% due 0115/ 2032 300 a5
Bariegs CLD Ltd
G 470% due 00/30,/ 3032 1. 000 e
Bireh Grove C1LO Ltd
B W% due 6715732031 1, &0 LATd
B Cannda Asto Trust
B A00% due 003002006 (b CAD &, 100 1. ik
BN Vehicle Lesse Trust
52T due 02725/ 2025 $ 1, 00 rai
Bumper Do 5 A
+ THA due 08/73/2032 EL® I, 000 2 138
Cairm CLO IV DAC
3 B2 due 0430730310 1971 = &)
Capital One Malti-Asset Exscution Trust
5. 68T due 07/ 1572027 3 1, 000 1, 002
Carmax huto Cwnor Trust
57224 due 06,15/ 2026 2. 00 =l
B TT2% due 12/16/2025 LoaT I, 251
Carvana huto Receivables Trust
4. 420% due §27 1072025 Ba6 Baa
O Recoivables Trust
5. 395% due 00/ 14,2024 T4 TOH

Chesapeaks Funding I1 LLT
6. 122% due 05/15/2035

E

2600
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WEEm L=

(B2 T4 {F i
Citibank Cradit Card I&fiancsd Trust
oo 439% due 06°00/2025 £ 2. 50 5 2, )
b, TOE% due 04./I2/2026 1,000 1. 02
Commercinl Industrial Finance Corporation Funding Ltd
. 2I5% due 10734/ 2030 2. 380 356
Contego CLO IV DAC
Jo851% due O)CZEH030 EXR ] 116
Daimler Trucks Retail Trust
BOTO% due 09716,/ 202 £ 1, 70T 1, 700
Iwll Equipment Finance Trust
0 530% due 2022/ 2006 2. 000 1,952
BOMC Group Student Losn Trust
o BEE% due 0227/ 2068 03 32
6. 185% due 0615/ 2067 TH9 167
EFE Wolunteer LLC
B 10E% due 10/35/3035 =} =
Elewation CLO Lid.
G A7E% due (0152029 L1 g
ELFI Graduate Loan Progras LLC
1. 500% due 12/06/2046 (] 1. B35
Enterprise Fleet Financing LLC
4. 3808 due 0730/ 2029 1. 000 ]
5. TBO% due 10/22/2029 1. 500 1. 502
Ford Muto Securitization Trust 11 Asset-Backed Motes
4. 9664 due 1016/ 2024 Can bl 350
Ford Credit Auto Lease Trust
b B2Z% due 0615/ 2025 1 1,000 1. 00d
Ford Credit Auto Jwner Trust
b 392% due D4/ 15/ 2026 B0 fiE
5 G32% due 08/15/2025 ) i)
Gallatin CLO IX Ltd
G 310% due 01212028 287 226
Gl Pirencinl Autoschile Leasing Trust
B AB1% due 06,30,/ 2025 2. 000 2, )
5 BA1% due 10205202 1, 33 1. 330
Gl Finsncinl Consuser Autcmchile Recsivables Trust
5.530% duwe 11/0T/2025 2. 154 2157
Geol denitroe Lean Managemoent (LS. CLOD 2 Lud
B L0 doe 11303030 200 158
GPMT Led.
G A0E% due 12715/ 2036 1. B I. 787
Harley-Dmvidson Motoreycls Trest
B B0 due 06 15,/2026 5, 780 B, 753
HERA Commercial Mortgege Lid
G 161% due 02718/ 3038 173 167
Hyundai Auto Lesse Sscuritization Trest
5. BT2% due 0L/15/2026 1. 231 1, 232
Invesco Buro QL0 T DAC
1 BITE due 07/ 162031 EL® 500 520
Jubdleo CLO DAC
3. TET% due D415/ 3030 2,000 2, =
380N due 04152031 1. 000 1. 40
EER CLO 18 Led
G 202% due 07/ 18/2030 5 247 2
LAD Aato Receivables Trust
5, 000% due 06153027 1, 200 1. 187
LL Assot-Backed Securities Trust
LOTO% due 0615,/ 2029 " gl
Madison Park Fonding XL Lid
6. 103% due 04222027 56 52
Madison Park Punding XXV Lid
G 405% due 07/ 39,/3030 el S
Magnetite XIV-R Ltd
. 382% due 10718/ 2031 2,800 LT
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WEEW mE

[E2 T4 {F i
Man GLG Burs CLO IET DAC
38574 due 10152030 HEY L] 5 (1]
Marble Point CLO X Ltd
b 300% due §0ES/2030 3 2. 568 2 b8
Morcedos—fHonz Aute Recoivables Trust
5 000N due 00152026 <. 500 2 490
5. 260% due 1071573025 (A 1. 43
WFl Led.
G 1901% dus 107162036 o 600 2. B2
MF1 Waltifamily Housing Mortgage Loan Trust
G 031% due 077 152036 1. 089 1. 070
MidDcein Cradit CLO 11
G. 3260% due ()29 2030 1, &80 I, 675
Midocesn Credit CLO WIII
B A2 doe 02,/30,/2031 1. 68T 1. 630
MMAF Bquipmest Finance LLC
5. 5700 due 08/08/2025 1, 604 1, 653
Mountain ¥iew CLO LLC
B 350% due 101672029 i3 470
Navient Private Bducation Loan Trust
265005 due 1201572028 3 3
Mavient Private Bducation Refi Loan Trust
L 170 due 06 15,2064 28 213
Lo 310% due 00715/ 2069 B0 Bll
1. G590 due 06/ 15/2089 1 B8
6. LOTS due (4152069 1, 082 1, 064
Nolpet Studest Loan Trust
5838 doe 06273038 1. 100 1. 081
O HIE% due 09352065 7 72
B 938% due 08/25/ 2067 473 466
5 UBE% due 02/25/2066 200 1176
G 035% due 06,27 2067 ] LT
Nissan dutoe Lesse Trust
5o 100N due 0317/ 2025 B, 500 B, 768
(K Hill Burepean Credit Partoers VII DAC
F0M0% due 10/20,/2031 EL® 1, G0 1, 6a3
OCF Baro CLO DAC
4. 000% due 09/22/3034 2,400 2,489
O7LM XV Led
G B due 06/16,/2030 3 1. 851 1, B35
Palwer Square Buropean Loan Funding DAC
3 05T% due 04152031 FLR fiie] HA
Popper SPARKT Trust Me.3
1. B63% due 08172028 AT 3ol Pl v
PFP Led,
5. 0578 due 04112038 3 b o)
To330% due 08719/ 3035 1, M0 B85
SLC Swdent Lesn Trist
5 OIR1N due 0515/ 2020 67 2]
SMB Private Educatiom Losn Trust
L 0% due 03/17/2053 356 7
. 600 dus 067 15,2054 350 34
0. 207% due 07715/ 2053 513 566
5oFi Consumer Loan Progrma Trust
B B10% due 06/ 15/ 2031 L] Bi]
G 210% due 4, 15/2031 1.341 | e
Scund Point C1O XIV Led,
G 263% due 0122029 166 165
Sound Point CLO XV Ltd
G 173% due 00/23/2029 et ] 1, 556
Sound Point CLO XVI Ltd
B T35% due O7/25/3030 2. 160 2137
Stosepenk Asset-Backed Securities
2.301% due (283033 207 191
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Sympheony Static CLO I Led
6. 085% due 10/25/2029
Theorem Funding Trust

Lo 2E0% due B2SESS202T
THL Credit Wind River CLO Ltd
o 340% due 04152031
Towd Point Asset Trust

5. 848% due 11,/20,/2061
Trales CLD 11 Led.

G670 due 0730/ X029
Venture 36 CLO Lid

B 3800 due 20,2032
Venture XVIT CLO Lid

G 140% due (47152027
Venture XAVI (L0 Ltd

G 350% due D120/ 2029
VUG Finance LLC

Bo210% due 616,/ 2056
World Oeni Auto Receivebles Trust
5. 3508 dus 11716,/ 2036

5. 302% due 0715/ 2026

Ty bty TR
(R $129, 020)
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31

wEHEH e

(S tid] g A

3 I 5 £18
M M

2,904 B8

164 161

1251 1. %

2.7 2 678

510 807

(] 50

s ]

1. 100 1. 0495

1. 500 1, 500

126, (48

Expert-laport Bank of Korea

4 G25% due 10,/30/2023

Interoeticnal Bank for Reconstruction & Development
(L G50 due D/ F0/ 3006

VA
(R §4, 147)

ALD 4, 000 2 5]
i 1. 504 1. 356
3, 957

MUFG Benk Ltd
F THES due 13020/2023° (e)

ALD 1, 000 BT

TSk » et G O

howricen Electric Power Co., Imc
SoATTR due 0603003 (o)
ATAT, Inc.

B 0% due 117202023 ()
Enbridge I 5., Inc. {e)

54188 due 06152023

3. A22% due 0620/ 2023

Global Payments, Inc (g}

AT due 0621/2023

BoOTTS due 06,26, 2023

Mendelez Internaticoal, Ine. (<)
o AT due 0713/ 2003

B ATO% due 07,14,/ 2023

NextEra Hnergy Capital Holdiegs, Inc
5, 427% due 06/35/2033 ()
Quanta Sorwices, Inc

5. 86N due D6/DE/2003 ()
Raythaon Technologies Corp.

5. 000% due 07 12/2023 (c)
Southern Califernia Edisen Co.
5. 0M% due 06,00/2023 (ch

] 6, 100 B, 076
3, 600 3, 498
3, 800 579
2, 500 I
4,900 3, 458
14904 1. 852
3,050 3,000
3,050 3,030

206 35
16,804 1, 790
£, 100 CHE
3,500 3, 500

-———
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WEER mE
(R 104) {Fuizh

Tarpersedin Holdings, Ine.
4. 99% due 03/ 15,/2024 (d) b 1. 304 E 1273
5. e diee OGS 152004 () 1, 004 L
6. 333 due 03/15/2024 (d) 1, 604 1. B0
3, 813

i WD
hustralin and New Zealend Backing Growp Ltd

LOBTON due 06012023 D 15 =
4. 5800 due 06,/00/2023 1 1 1
Hank of Nova Scotia
3. BR0 due 06,01 202% 1] 100 it
4. hEOH dup D6/01/3023 3 s ]
BNF Paribas Bank
2. 020% due 06/D1/ 2023 K 2 L}
Brown Brothers Harrimsn & Co
(0, 370%) due 06002023 ¥ 4 [}
& 0% due D6/01/3023 GEP 4 5
A TT0% doe 0601/ 2023 N T d
Cliibank N A
4. 580N due 06013023 -1 bl !
B Bank Ltd
4. bSO due D6/ DL/2023 156 156
i Bank ASA
LATON doe D6/DI/2023 ALD = 16
HSBC Bank PLC
2. 360% due 06/D1/2023 ELR 15 13
e GA0% due 06DLI023 GE 134 173
JPorgen Chase Bank M. A
1. 580% duge D6/D1/3023 5 127 127
MUFG Bank Ltd
(0. 370%) due 067002028 ¥ 234 2
Royal Bank of Canada
4. 5800 due 06,/00/2023 z 1 1
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corp
(0, 3708} due 06/00,/2023 ¥ LE] L}
. 300% due DESDLS20I3 ELR 40 43
0N due 06,00/ 2023 GEF 23 24
4. 5800 due 060072023 b ] 18
Sumitomo Mitsai Trust Bank Ltd
(0. 370%) due 06/01/202% ¥ 747 5
2 B600% due 06/01/2023 - 3 3
G0N due 06/D1S3023 GEF 118 147
4. 5808 due 06012023 ] 351 151
1,312

5o 400N due 100G/ 2023 (b () k1 14, 400 5 14, 162
I R £ B g8, ¥
(BRI 568, 433)
BEWEERGH () 1053 3 &4, 655
(R §576, 136)
ST AT TR

() (B} (0. 6%} (2,787
(BBEEERI27 27 0, B S0
oo REE LA, W ) i35, 137}
R 100. 0% 3 534, 131
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2023 31

¢ YoRER, TREERCESTIASLEEREERLTOSI L0,

(u) 202345 0 30 AEECERSHEZEEL LS ORTEERAHOEME. RREETSNRED 6.3, SO MBICHTE L6, XD ERT L6 M BE
ERELE A, BECHEEE SO NESD S E0RCEIEL DRRERD,

) SFSRTES.

¢} &—lfnt, WRETOREE D ERT,

(& =il WMETORETSRE ER1T,

A EA B S5
RTHE T F—#r (AR} (A0 %) NI It! B OF
Credit Suizse AG 5 16T% 11,/20,/2023 02, 0R s 5 Ll ] 1] I, 935 0. 36%
[eutzche Bank AG i, BTG 05,/28.,°2024 [ L | ] @947 L] 0o, 15%
WUFG Bank Lid, 3. TEEL 1221202 (62,06, 2023 [ 7 0, 15%
B A e B § 372 § 358 [N

WAL kORI |

rwa WRR
HFEH fEAERY  (ASBASE M85 A LR A B A
s 5. 230% 05/31/ 023 D601 72023 1 {2, Gl i €2, 630}
2 L § (2, 630)
HEHEA L LTI EENSNEONE
REyOmiraER R
At hELIT
TS| WAFT MNENEWE  0AM &t
L
0 §  dz.630 g 05 03 D3 (mgm)
el R § {2, 630} § [] ] [} H o § {2, 630)
HAaN [ (2, B3} $ [] ] o ] [] {2, 6300
# AN SR —§ (2690

WA LT DRORES MR DR
BT, 205 E5 A 31 HBMED, HUEFID DEMANLS ST S 0RO ERER G EL L REAS (280 ShhERoEETh S,

(f) 20234E60 31 BME, UFOw2 S —RHORIIZE-SE, BEEE 2 001 % FAoiilERER Lo TS,

LA AW L HRAILE ETF
D WL B s WD haind OO 1% T A
HEN ZEE  EEbE RS A DRSS WA (SHD —dEE
e el B ]
s 3 0§ 230 3§ 0 3 0 $ (ne3y § 0 2800 5 Rl
HALS LEORORFSMBNRS & § 0 5 (26 3 [ ; [

Y oman SN 3L BT ME, R RN AN 5 00 RN AT, EERE LT e i, CENRARE, SMENE S, SR LR s
ALARRE R ENR G,

Hoamsad—e—iil, EEFRITAYNENLS RE . IMES o olilrR, @AREEFELOROE ERBR NS G0 Rl —d,
B B & WG - 2 8 — RN T MR N SR IMRA D2 TR S S, v R F—RMEE T SR T, BRI SR
BalEls TvAy—=p@nn el L,
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2023 31

L N (R i L A
I.3 Treasury IYear Mote Septesber Shart 090023 % 3 B § o 3 (i)
Futires
IS, Tressury 5-Year Note Septesber Shart LUE R i | 137 {25 o (44)
Futures
IS5 Tressury 10-Yeor Sote September Short 092023 T (1 1] {3
Fatures
U.3 Treosury Ultra 10-Vear Note Shart 092023 13 {1 1 -1
Septesber Futures
U 5 Tressury Ultra 30-Vesr Bond Short 092023 1 () 1] {6}
Septembor Futures
b ot ] 5 ] [ $ {194}
a7 RE

[ ] AWM ERhirme
Ml b3 i (Ep) &8 (WS89 Smrikd B § ] {3 A
CI IG-359 Imdex {1, 00%) 12720,/ 2027 5 L6035 (60} 5 3 5 | i 0
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. DRGARIZATION

Each Fund disoussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds” ), which atso indwdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class” and coffectively,
the “Clisses”™), 1 a seres trust of FINMCO Bermuda Togst [the “Teoest ™), an operrended unit (gt established undet the L af Bermrada a5 & mulli-Senes s RT3 |
10 & trust deed executed by Winchester Global Trust Compamy Limited en Auqust B, 2001 (25 amended from tme to ume, the “Trust Deed”™) Efective & of the dese
of business (Eastern tme) on September 79, 2017, Maples Trustee Sendces {Bermuda) Limied (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 trustes of the Trust. Pacfic Imeestment
Management Company LLC ("AIMCO", the “Manager” or the "Imestment Adviser” ) i the sponsor of and was responsible bar stnucturing the Trust

The Toust 15 subject to requlabon and supenveaon a5 peovaded Tor in the Ivestment Funds Act 2006 and related rubes relating 1o standard funds
The terms. of the Trust Deed confer upon the Tnsstee, wath the consent of the Manager, 1he powes, in the future, to establish Turther furds in addtion to the Funds
currently in cpevation as of the date of thes neport

Rederences 1o witholders (each, a "Unsthalder™, and collectvely, the "Untholders™ ) in, or units {the "Urets™) of for an imvestment =), the Fund shal mean Unitholders
of the Fund whea held Units, or Classes of Urits (as applicable), which are attributable to that Fund

The Funds peesented i thes iepoet e lsbed Bilda:

Fund Dffarsd o
| PAAMC0 Bermuds Forsgn Loww Dssution Furd [t paly 1o heeds with @ Fund of Fonds® vnactons, a3 defiasd n the reles af the Invesomene Toats
AMED Berrmsats U5 Lo Diratass Fand Fepurtan, Japen, o 1 teads with & Bl sEvciv @ ey Gihel pridones
AMD] Emengeg Marke Sored Fond (ATF
PIMCD Ertrgreg Markets Borsd Fused [Ven-Rindgid |
| AMCD Ervarging Markts Soned Fond 1|
AMCD Real Rtotn Fond Offeend 12 et mortioen o Jopads by vy of pubic atincng throagh o dttnbatad o Japan, 388 muy
bt effored in sthir sweines a3 tha daseien of the Masager
| FINCD Sherr-Torre Sawniey [taend 1o el iorianns o Japam by vy of pubic oang Throuh o Sarmibtar andio o B
tandng compary i Japan, and mary be offered t ocher i s a the derenon of the barager
1 Hl.l'l:ﬂFﬁﬁl.hrimEaHFudIH' nﬂnu&rmndwh\d‘. 18 3wl bt B el iy, P e vihele e ek Fondy
L it S L v = AT Ay iy o, & e P cl ¥ “u sy dczxair, Jgar Wl At & e Ertand Y o et
ris e AR D fae St e 2 e et 8 s it . ¥ .

Units of the FINCO Feal Retum Furd, and AUD, IPY, and USD Classes of PINCO Short:Term Strategy have been regetered under the Financal Instruments and
Exchange Law of lapan Units of each of the remaming Funds and the C {USDY, 1 (PY), and | (U500 Classes of PIMCO Shor-Tesm Strategy have not been and e nod
curnenily expectid Inhc-'rr_,lsbm:d under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of lapan .ﬁ.-;l,pf:lmqu_ such Units ol these Funds may not be, deecthy or
indirectly, affered in lapan or to amy resident in Japan, except in complance wath applicable lapamece laws and reguiations.

2. BIGNIFIC ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The follcwnng is a summany of sigriicant acccunting polices conststently folowed by the Trust in the preparation of is fnancial statements in conlormity weth
accounteng principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U'S. GAAP™) Each Fund i treated a6 an imsestment company under the reporting
requzements of U S GAAP The preperation of financal statements in acoordance with U5, GAMP requires management o make estenates and assumplions thag
affect the repored ameaunts of assets and Babilites and disdosure of contingent assets and liabiliies at the date of the financal statements and the reporied amounts
of ereadied and decieates in e asiets from cpitations durg the mpocting pehiod Actual niudts oould diffes feam thode eatimatet

|n] Acqmired Fends The Trustes and the Manager 11.1-";(.;\-!? all ar a porhion of the assets qu‘:k’!CDEme:l_;lrg Markess Bond Fund UIMF), PIMICO En'.r_fq:'lg Madkats
Bond Fund (Yen-Hedged), and FIMCO Emeging Markets Bond Fund Il {each refered o heréin &2 8 “Fund of Furads” or the " Acquiting Fund”, which srvests in ogher
Funds) 1o the respecte credit of the PIMCO Emesging Markess Bond Fund (M) (relered to hersin as an " Aoquired Fund(s)™) Ay assets so applied wall be kbeld i such
Acepired Fund(s) as d recerved directly, Whese assets ane so apphed, the Acgueed Fundish will record the issue of Units to thee relevant Aogusing Fund at the lsue price
per Unit of such Units and will reparchase such Units at the repurchase price per Unit of such Units at the time of repurchase

Ratios shown in the Finanaal Highlights do nat indlude expenses of the Acquied Fund(sh, See Note 9, Fees and Exparses, for Burther information regarding fund fees,
a5 applicable

[b] Securities Transactions and Invesiment lnsoma Secunties iransactions are recarded as of the trade date for fnancial reporting purposes. Securibes purchased or
sold on a when-issued or delayed-delieny basis may be settled beyond a standard seftlement penod tor the secunty afier the trade date. Reakzed gains and bosses
fram securitees sokd are recoedied on 1he identified cont banses. Draidend mcome is secordied on 1he ex-daidend date, except certam dridends from famign secuntass
whete the et-drndend date may have passed, whach are recoeded a3 soon & 3 Fund is infoimed of the ex-dradend date Interest income, adjuited for the aconetsn of
discounts and amoriization of premiums, is recorded on the aocrual basis from settlement date, with the expeption of secunities with a forward startng effective date,
whene interest income & recorded on the actrual basis from eflectve date For convertible securities, premiums attibutable to the comversion Teatuee are not
amorized Esimated tax Habilines on cemain foreign seouibes e recorded an an accrual basis and ae reflected a3 companents of anlerest income or net change in
unrealzed appreciation (deprecation) an imvestments on the Statements of Operations, as approprizte. Tax labslites realzed as a result of such secunty sales are
meflected a5 component of net realized gain Closs) on investments on the Satements of Operations. Paydown gains and kisses on morigage-related and other

Roveeal Mapart | Moy 31, 20200 ¥
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asset-backed securities, if any, e recorded a5 components of imenest income
on the Statements \‘.I'I:pl'lm'.nus Dot oblgations may be pladed on noa-
acersat stabus and related intesest income may be reduced by ceasing cunrent
acauals and waiting off interest recefvable when the colection of all or a
porticn of interest has become doubtful based on consstently applied
procedures & debd obligation is reenoved from non-aconaal sabus when the
issuer resumes interest payments o when collectability of inberest is probabde

Ie) Cawh and Forelgn Corresey The finanoa! stabements of each Fund are
presenied wsing the currency of the primary economic emironmend in which 1
operates (the “lunctional cutrency”). The functional cotrency Sot each of the
Funds is isted in the below table

Thee marked valoes of forsign secunties, oxnency holdngs and other assets
and liabilities ace ranslated o sach Fund s functional cutrency barsed on the
current enchange rates each business day Purchases and sales of secunties
and income and expense it denominated in foreign cureencies, if any, ae
transtated into each Fund's respective funcional aumency at the eahange
rane in effect on the transaction date The Funds do not separately repon the
effects of changes in boreign exchange rates fram changes in market prices on
secuitios held Such changes are indluded inmet reafired and net changes in
unreaized gain o loss from vestments an the Statements of Opesations

The Funds may imvest in Boreign currency denominated sequities and may
engage in foreign curency ransactions either on a spot [cash) basis at the
rat prevailing in the curnendy exchange market  the time of thiough a
Ferweard forenyn currency contract. Realized foreign exchange gains of losies
ansireg Trom safes of spot foreign cumrendies, curency gains or losses realkzed
bebaeen the trade and settlement dates on securities ransactions and the
difference bereeen the recorded amouss of dnidends, inserest, and fotegn
withholding taes and the Bunctional auemency equevalent of the amounts
actually recesved o paid are included in net realized gain or loss on foceign
curnendy trarrachorn an the Statements of Cperations. Netl ureeakzed fateign
exchange gains and lodses ansing from chamges i faseign exchange rates an
foeeign dencminated assets and labdities other than imvestments in secuities
held at the end of the reporting periad are mchuded in net change in
unrealimed appreciation of depreciabon on Rareign currency assets and
ligbiities on the Statements of Operations

The Wet Asset Value (" HAN") and total reterns of certain Funds {or Classes
theenal a5 applicable) ane presented in the mlnﬂw‘.tx which the NAY 1§
reported (the “MAY currency”) as detailed in each Fund's Ofleding
Mesarardum (the * Olfering Memarandum™). For the putpoies af the
preserdation of the NAY and the total nebuin in the MAY wrency, the
beginning and ending NAVs ane converted using the perind beginning and
ending exchange rates, respectively, and dambutions ane comerted wting the
exchange rate at the time of the disinbution. See the following table for the
NAV qumency of each respective Fund

Funcionsl
FundfTnsr. NAY Cormmncy o
| RMCD Bermssda Fasmge Lovs Doration Fued Japanen yn 115 dolar
| PSMC) Bormeda U 5. Low Duration Fund Jaganeg yen 115, dodar
| PMICD Eangpeg Mackets Bod Fund LITH Jazost yin L5 dolat
| PMACT Emerging Markets Bond Fund (V2
= s W5 dolar W5 dolyr
PEMICT) Emerging Markots Fiond Fund (TecHodged | Jaganess yen 115 dofar
FMCT Emerging Markass Bond Fund I
- J |BRL Jzanen yan 113, dolar
LI [T
= JIMA
= JiNON
LI 1]

W Functonal
FundThar A e
*  JEIAA Jeparet yen US ol
FINCD Real Ftern Fued 15 delar US iy
PINECD) Shors Term Straceqy
1) AT dolle U dollsf
Gl panen yn US dollar
« JUF Jgranurtn yan UE dolty
« JEED JBpares yon U5 dolls
JFY Japanean yn U5 doller
B0 LS. daller US dollar

0 Mubticlass Oparationa Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
righss to the assets of the Fund equal to that of other Classes af the same
Fund, a5 apphcable, encept for specific asets and gains and losses designated
1o a Class relating 1o cureency hedging opeeatons. Income, mon-Class specific
expenses, and non-Class grecific reabred and ervnalized capstal gaing and
lesses are allocated 1o each Clas of Unas bursed on the: relatree net assets of
each Class of the respectnee Fund, a5 applicable Clais specific expenses
currently indude management, adviscry, administratiee, agency, and
distrbution lees, whene applicable

{a} Distribution Puolicy The fd-'lm1||-] table shenas the .1-|Im|:.'r'.:\d rl'l‘qm‘fll.':"
al detnibutions for each Fund Destribubions Tram each Furd may be disclaned
and disributed to Unitholders anly opon the authadzation of the Manager
which authorization mey be withheld at the Manager's discretion

Declared and Paid Mosthly:

PNCD Emerpeng Markets Bond Furd LIITR
PMED Emargeng Markets Bond Fond Yo Hedged|
PIMCT) Emeegeng Mavkoes Bond Fond Il
PN Shon-Term Straingy

L JLIPT

= JLEO
FMCT) Bermetls Formga Lew Durvton Fund
PIMCD Bermmads U 5. Lowy Durtios Fund

Declared and Paid Ennually:

PIMECT) Pread Ream Fend
FNCD Shery-Ferm Stranegy
= AD
= ClusDi
LR |
. Mo
L 1]

The Masage: does s8 expest fn declain distribelions with fespest 1o this Fusd
{or Classes thereof, if applisablel but may, in its discretion, deslare and pay

tr bt b the Linitd ety lime.
PIMCT) Emaegang Maviooes Bond Furdd i
" The Clest was Iquidated funng the epoming parod

Diestribautions, i any, will genesally be made from the relevant Fund's {or
Classs, IF applcable) net imeestment imcome In additon, the Manager may
autherize the payment of net realized capdal gains available lor distribution
Additional destributices may be declared 2 the Manager dees appropriate
Destributions paid with tespect to any Fund (o Class thereod, f appiicable)
will reduce the MAY of such Fund {or Class thersod, if apphcabie) At the
discretion of the Unithobders, cash distributions from a Fund (or Class theneaf,
if applicable) may either be neirvested in additional Units of a Fund {or Class
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theeol, d applicable) or pad 10 a Unitholder in cash, Cash payments will be
paid in the NAV cumency of the Fund. Each Fund (or Cliss thereal, if
applicable) may dedare further distributions i corsidered necessary in onder
o maintain a reasonable level of distributions for a Fund {or Class thereol, if
applicable) In the event that there 15 inadequate net income and net realized
capital gains w pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereal, if applcable)
requised by the Offering Memorandum, the Manager may pay a distriution
comsisting of a portion of the capital of ssch Fund {or Class thereat, if
applicable) Distributiors not colliecusd within Scyears om their due date
wall |Lapee i varll ccrue 1o the Benefit of the selevant Fund (o Clads thereal
il apphcable]

IF) issua and Repurchasas of Units Subsequent ta a Fund (or Class thereal, 4
applicabde) commeening business, Units of sach Fund {or Class thereof, i
applicakde]) may b mrsued by the Manager on a continueus basis at the Net
Bsgat Vabue per Unit of thas Fund (or Class thereal, i spglicable) a1 the ume
of such sssue, subject to the right of the Manager or its appointed agent, in
the sale distretion of the Manager, 1o temporarily suspend such issee Unless
stated otheraise in the relevant Offening Memorandum, for each Fund (o
Class thereof, i apphicable), the issue price per Uit for such Unéts wall be the
Net Asset Value per Unit determined on each Dealing Day cabtulated a5 set
forth below under "Determination of Net Asset Value™; provided that, ifa
nigquil 80 purchane Units n feem aorptabie to BBH & not sscenved by
Beowin Brothers Hameman [Luxembourg) 5 CA ("BEHT) peior 1o 12:00 noan
{Eastem time), the issoe price per Urit of the relevant Fund {or amy Class
theeeaf, i applicable) shall be the Met Asset Value per Unit deteimined on the
nget Deatng Dy

In ghe case of purchase of Urss which are regrtered e kapan foe drect
distribution in Japan, the puichase price of such Urits shad be paid in cash
Hopurchase in kind may be allowed fot sich Units. In the case of repurchase
of Units or temsnation of the Funds in the Tnest which ate eegistered in kapan
fee direct distribution in Japan, the Units of such Funds shall be repurchased
fram Urstholders in cash Mo repurchase in lond may be afowed insuch
Funds,

Excepr as otherwe provided in the relevant Offering Memarandum, payment
of 1he repurchase price wal be made by the Trustes o its appeinted agent by
bank trardde: geesrally vathin four (4) Business Dys after the Dealng Day
upon which the repurchase notice is received, or deemed to have been
received, by BEH, although under certasn circumsfances, payment may 1ake
uf o gighd (5] Business Days aftes wach Deading Dy

Undess stabed athenwrse in the relevant Ofienng Memodandum, the Fusds are
nod subject bo subscription of repunchase fees; provided, however, a
distibutor appeinted in the pursdiction where a Fund is dstnbated may
chirge wbscnplion of repurchase feed in such amaunts as agteed with the
Manager and the Trustes

lal Newr Actausting Pransuncaments sad Ragulitory Updates '+ \ach
2020, the Financial Acgounting Standangs Board {* FASE™) msund an
Accountng Standands Updane (TASU"), ASU J020-04, which providies
optional quidance to ease the potential acoounting burden assodated with
transitioning away froen the London Interbank Ofered Rate {"LIBOR "} and
othes relerence rates that are expecsed 1o bie discontinued ASU 2000-04 i
effective for certain refevence raterelated contract modificabons that ocoured
during the pericd Manch 12, 1020 theough December 31, 2022, InMarch
2021, the admsrsstrator for LBOR anncunded she extension of the publication
of & magonty of the 5D UBOR settings to June 30, J023 in December 2022,
FASE issued ASL 202206, which indudes amendments to extend the
duraticns of the LIBOR tansitian relief oo December 31, 2024, after which
enbities wall po langer be permittad to apply the reference rate refam

refief. Management is continwously evaluating the potential effect a

discontinuation of LIBOR could have on the Funds’ imestments and has
deerraned that it i unbikety the ASUS adoption will hinee @ matensl impact
on the Funds' fnancal statements

Iy June 2072, the FASE issued ASU 202203, Far Value Measurement (Topic
820), which alfects all entities that have imvestments in equity securities
measured at fxe valiee that are subject 1o a contractual sale resinction The
amendments in ASU J022-03 dardy that a contractual restrictson an the sale
ol an equity secursy i not consideced pan of the unit of account of the equity
secunty and, thesefore, 15 mo considersd n 2T the famr value The
amendments also require addtional dischosures for equity sequrities subject to
contractsal sale restrictions that are measured at fax value in acondance
with Topic 820 The eflective dane foe the amendments in A5U 2022-03 is b
frscal years beginning after December 15, 2024 and interien periods within
thiose fiscal years. Al this time, management s evaluating the imphoations of
these changes on the Enancial statements

3, INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

o) Investmant Valoation Pelicies The MAY of 5 Fusd, or each al e Clamges,
&5 applicable, is detemaned by dadding the total valiue of portiolio
investments and ofher assets attributable 10 that Fund or Class, less any
Tabilitees, by the total nimber of Units sutstarding of that Fund of Class

On each Fund's Dealing Day {as described in the curent Offexing
Memoeandum of the Trust), Fund Urits are ordinarily valued as of the dose of
reqguiar trading on the New York Stodk Exchange {"NYSE Close”) Information
that becomes known o the Fusds or their agents afer the time & ol which
MW has been caloulated on a partiouls day well rot generally be used 1o
retroactively adist the price of a securtty or the NAY determined sacher that
diry 1] nequlad trading o the NYSE closes darier than scheduled, edch Fund
enary caloulate it NAY as of the earlier dosng tme or caloulate its NAY as of
thie neemally scheduled dose of reqular trading on the NYSE for that day,
Each Fund generally does not calculate its NAY on days during which the
MYSE i closed Heswever, if the NYSE is dosed on a day it would noemally be
open for basness, sach Fund may calodate its MAY as of the normally
schididied MYSE Close bt such dary o such other time that ach Furd may
deteimane

For purposes of caficulating MAY, portholio securities and other assets Tor
which market quatations are readily avalable are walued at market value A
market quotation is readily avadable cnly when that quotation (s a quabed
peice funadjusted) in active markets Tor identcal imeestments that the Fusd
can aogess 3 the measurement date, provided that a quotation will not be
teadily avatable 14 et redable Markey value s g ally derpimned an
the bares ol official deseng prices o the Last reported sales prices. The Funds
will normally use pricing data for domestic equity seosities receved shortly
atter the NYSE Close and do not nomally take into account radng
cleaances of settfemens that take place afer the NYSE Clase. Investmaents
for whach market quotations ae nok 1eadily available are valued at faw value
at detecmined in gaod farh hr the Manager of perians acting at ther
deectian As & general peinciphe, the Tair value of 8 secuity or other asset
the price that would be reeived to el an asset or paid to transfer a habaliny
in an ordethy transaction between market parbcipants at the measurement
date The Manager has sdopted methods Tor waly g sissurities and athser
a55ets i circumstances where market quoltes are not readily avalable, and
bars the resporsbiity for applying the Rair valuation methods. The Manager
may viue Fund peetfalio secuties for which market quotanons ane not
teadily avadable and othet Fund assets wiilizing inpats Trom pacng services,
quatation reporting systems, valuation agents and other thind-party sources
(ogether, “Pricing Sources”]. A fareign (norrLl 5. ) equity secwity iraded on a
forengn exchange or an made than one exchange i typecally vatued wsing
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pricing inbormation from the exchange considered by PIMCD 1o be the
pramany exchange If market walue prcing 1 uwied, a I'g-:r':.]u (oAl S :H_‘q'J'I:.'
sacurity wall be valued as of the dose of rading on the foneign exchange, or
the WYSE Close, il the NYSE Close ooours before the end of trading on the
ferwign enchange

Domessec and foreign {non-U 5 ) fized income secunities, nosexchange traded
dervatives, and equty options are noemally valued on the basis of quotes
obzained from beokers and dealers or Pricing Sounces using such data
reflecting the pancipal mackets Sar these secunties Praces obtaned from
Pracing Scurces may be based on, amang other things, information provided
by market makers of estrmates of market values obtained from peld daza
neling [ et ments of securilies with samdae charachisnsics. Cerain fied
income securities purchased on a delayed-deliveny basss are marked to market
daily umitil setthement at the forward settiement date. Exchange-traded
OpROns, EX0EHE equily GpROnS, futres and optons on fubees ane valued &
the settlement price determined by the rebevant exchange Swap agreements
are valued on the basis of bed quotes obtained from brokers and dealers o
market-barbed prces supplied by Pricing Sources. With respect 1o any padticn
of a Fund's assets that are invested i ahé o Mone Gpen-end managament
imeestment companies {other than eschange-traded funds (ETFs")), the
Fund™s AN will b caloulaned biased on the Bavs of wuch imestments, Ogpen-
il mansgemEnt ifvesmen] companies may incude affikated funds

I & foreign {noreU 5] equity seouity’s value has matenally changed after the
tlose of the security™s prmary enchange or prinopal market but belore the
WYSE Chote, th security may be vadued at {air valpe based on procidunes
establshed and appioved by the Manager. Foreign (non-U 5.) equity
securities shat do not trade when the NYSE is open aee alsevalued at fair
walop With respect 1o Toregn (mon-Ui 5 ) equity secunibes, o Fund may
determine the Tair value of irvestmenis based e mlormation provided by
Precing Sources, which may recommend Fair value oo adustments with
iefierence B other securities, indices o a4sets. In consadering whethes b
waluation m required and in determining fair values, the Manager may, amang
other things, consider significant events {which may be considered to include
changes in the value of LS. securities ar securities indexes) that ocour after
the chose of the relevant markes and before the NYSE Clese A Fund may
utdize modeling toots provided by thind-party vendors to determine fair values
of foresgn {non-U 5.} securities. For these purposes, unless athenwise
diberminid by the Mangges, any movermint in the .Iapl.:.ab'-.- relerence mdex
of instrumend ["zero tragges”) bebween the earlier dase of the appicable
Tereign market and he NYSE Close may be deemed to be a signihicant event,
prompting the spplicaten of the pricing moded (effecively resudting in daly
Fair valuations) Foteign exchanges may permit irading in faeelgn (nan-U 5.)
equity seourities on days when the Trust is net open for business, wiech may
et ina Bund's ||nr|,‘.:ﬂl:| imvestments birng alicted when Unithalder ame
unable o buy of sell Units

Senior secuned fipating rate kans for which an active secondary markel mosts
to 4 reliable degree will be valued at the mean of the last avadlable bidfask
prices in the market Toe such loans, as previded by a Pricing Sendce. Senior
secured floating rate loans Tor which an actve secondary market does rot
enist to a refiable degres will be valoed at fas value, which is imtended o
appromrmale marked vaise I valurg 4 senior secirid rb..ﬂmq TalE loan &
Fair value, the factors considersd may include. but are mat limited 1o, the
Tediowing: (3) the oeditworthiress of the boerower and any intesmediate
partcipants, (h) the teems of ehee laan, (¢} recent pnoes m the market for
similar laans, if 2oy, and {d) recent prices in the market for instruments of
similar quality, rabe, peniod unbl next interest rate resed and maturity

irves tmigids vatuied an Curndracei othed than the fu'-qlm.u'qulrl,'nw
of 2 Fund are corverted to the funciional cuemengy using exchange rates
ohaained from Fricing Scuces. As a result, the value of such investments, and

intuen, the NAY of the Fund's Urits may be aflected by dhanges in the valioe
of curmences in relation o the funclional cureingy. The walue of imeaments
traded in fateign markets of densmanated in curtendes ather than

the functional currency may be affected significantly on a day that the Trust is
nat open for business. As a result, to the extent that a Fund holds foreign
{nan-LL5 ) imvestments, the value of these imvestments may change a1 Gimes
whien you canned pusthase, redesm or exchange Units and the value of such
rrvestrnents will be reflected m the Fund’s nest calculated Nay

Faur wiluafoan may fequange subjectne determinaldns aboun the wvalueof &
secunity. Whie the Tnost's policies and prooedures aee interded o result in a
calcuation of a Fund’s BAY that Tairly reflects security vahoes as of the time of
pricing, the Trust cannat endune that fanr values determinied by thee Manager
of persons acting at their duection would aocurately reflect the price that

2 Fand could ohtain for a secunty if it were to dispose of that secunity as of
the gine af pricing (foe inssance, in & Toroed or distresssd sale) The praces
wsed by a Fund mary diffes fram the valis that wauld be reabzed i the
secunities were soid

%) Fair Vale Hisrarchy U 5 GAAT describes far value o the price that

& Fund would recerns 1o sell an aseq of pay 1o traealer 2 babddity in an ofderly
transaction betwesn market partopants at the measurement date, Iy
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prionitives inputs to valuation methods
and requeres disclasune of the fair value hieraechy, separately for each major
categony of disets and babilites, 1hat seqregates far value measurements imto
Bevefs {Leved 1, 2, or 3) The inputs or methodolegy used for valuing seourtees
are nod necessarily an indication of the risks assecated with investing in those
secunties. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined 2 follows

= Lesvel 1—Quoted proces (unadiusted) in acive markets of exchanges for
iderrtical assets and kabdities

= Level }—Significant ather observable inpats, which may indude, but e
not himited to, quoted prices for similar assets or Babilities in markets that are
actve, quosed proes fior idensical or similar aseets of liabiligies in markess that
B nol acine, inputs ather than quoted prices that e observable far the
assets of liabilites (such as interest rates, yield curves, wolatlites, prepayment
speeds, loss seventies, tredit risks and default rates) or other market
conobarited rputs

® [l E‘—Elr,r!"-:..lnl unahsereable inpats baked on the best inkeemation
arcailabile in the cincumitances, to the extet obenable inputs are nal
available, which may indude assumptions made by the Manager or persons
acting at their directacn that are used in determining the L value ol
rreEsimEnts

Assets or hiabilites categonzed as Level 2 or 3 as of pevind end have been
transfermed between Levels 2 and 3 since the prior period due 10 changes in
the method wikeed in vilu i) Lt s BTy Tiandders from Lived 2 0o Leved
3 ane a result of a change, in the ntemal course of business, from the use af
miethods used by Pricing Soerces (Leved 7} ta the use of a Beoker Quate or
valuaban technique which utilizes sgrebeant unobdervable inpats due to an
asence of narnent or 1ediable market-based data (Level 3} Transfess from
Level I toLevel 2 are a result of the avalability of curent and reliable

e ket-bred dats peividid by Pivaing Soundet o atfer valuation hithnagui
whuch ytlize sagnificant ohoervable inputs.

In accordance with the reguivements of U5 GAAP. the amounts of transhers
in and cutof Leved 3. if matenal, e disciosed in the Notes to Schedule of
rrvestments for each respectve Fund

Fou Tair valusations wsang significant unobservable inputs, U S, GAAP requires
o deschose transders ing and out of Level 3 of the fair value hieraschy and
purchases and Bsves of Level 3 assets and habulithes duting the pensd
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Addivonaly, U 5 GALP requites quantitative mformaticn regarding the
significant unohuercable inputs wied in the determanation of Ear vatue al
assats or Babdites categorized s Leved 3 in the fair value hierarchy In
accordance with the requirements of US GAAF, a fair valuse herardhy, and i
material, detals of sigraficant unchservable mpans, have been included in the
Nertes to Schedide of Imvestments for sach respective Furd

Ie} Valuatiom Techniques and the Fair Valus Hararchy

Lewal 1. Laval 2 and Lavel 3 irading assets and trading Rabilities, a1

fair vadue  The valuatson methods lar " techniques™) and sgrticant inpuss
usied in determineng the Tar values of portalio secunties of othee Jsets and
lighibties cabegonzed as Level 1, Lesvel 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hiesarchy
are & (ollows:

Commen stecks, ETFs, exchange-traded nates and linancal desreatne
instiuments, such b% Tutures condraas, nghts and waerinls, of opltens an
futures that are traded on a national securities exchange, ane stated at the
last reported sale or settlement price an the day of valuation. To the extent
these secunities are sotreely raded and valuaton adiustments ane not applied,
thoey ane cateqorized as Level 1 of the far value Rerarchy

Imartments in regritened open-end imvestment companies [other than ETFs)
wll b walued baded upon The FAVE ol such imvisiments and ane cateqgorzed
as Level 1 of the fair value hierardhy Investments in unragistered open-end
imvestment companies well be cakoulated based upon the NAWs of such
imcestments and aee comsidered Level 1 provided that the NAYS ae
ohaervablie, cabrulabed dady and are the value at which both purchases and
sales will be conducted

Foeed incoeme secunties incliad g corporate, comoertible and myniopad bonds
and mates, U5 govemment agences, U5 treatury obligaters, soversign
issues, bank loans, comvertible prefenred secwiities and noneUL 5. bonds are
nermally vabued an the basis of quotes obtained from brokers and dealers or
Pracing Sources. that use brakes-dealer queratons, reported trades o
walisation estimates from their internal priong models. The Pricng Sounces’
internal models use inputs that ace ohservable such as issuer detads, interest
rates, yeeld cunvess, prepanyment speeds, credi mibefapreads, delaull rates and
queded prices far similar assers. Secunties thal wse semila valuation
techniques and inputs a5 described above ane categonzed as Level 2 of the
Fasr vahye bierancty

Feeed income securities purchased on a delayed-delvery bass or as.a
repurchase comemitment in a sale-buybadk transaction are marked to market
daily wril setbement o the Torwaed setthement date and are categarged
Lewed 2 of the faur value hietarchy

Morgage-related and assat-hacked securities are usually issued a5 saparate
tranches, o clasies, of secunties within sach deal These securities are ala
nermally vabued by Pricing Souces that use beker-dealer quatations,
reparted trades of valuation estimates from their internal pricng models. The
pricing models for these securities uswally consider tranche-level attribates,
current markeq data, estanated cath Mews and marker-based yield spreads lor
each wanche, and incomorate deal colfateral perfarmance, & available
Morgage-related and asset-bached securities that use similar valuation
techniques and inputs a5 descnbed sboa ane categarhed o Levdl o thee
Fair value berardhy

Impestments valued {denominated) in curmences other than the functional
Ll..;l-;'ﬂ"u'n-" a Fund aee comvened 1o the functienal ouir ency uking exchangs
ranes [curency spot and Sorward rates) obtxned from Pricng Sources. As a
resylt, the NAWV of a Fund's Units may be affected by changes in the value of
currencies in refation ta the functional cumensy. The value of securities traded
in formgn markets of demominated in curtencas ather than the funcional

curtency may be affected sigrificanthy on a day that the Trust & net open far
business Valuatian adjustments miny Be pplied 1o cotam seouiles that ane
soledy traded on a foregn enchange to acoount Toe the markel movement
between the close of the foreign market and the NYSE Close These securities
ane valued using Pricing Scurces that consider the correlaton of the trading
pattems of the feeesgn secufity 1o the intraday trading m the U S markets fer
irvestments. Securities using these valuation adustments. are categorized as
Lirvel 2 af the fair vahe higrarchy. Prelered securnities and other equities
traded on imbcinee markets of valued by reference to umilar metruments are
afso categorized as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Equity-linked secuwites e valued by rederenc g the kst reported sale or
seqthermern price of the linked reletenced equity on the day of valeation
Foeeign emchange adjustments are applied to the last reparted price 1o
comert the linked equity's frading owrency o the tontrad's seftling ousmency
These mvestments are categonmed as Level 2 of the Tair value hieraechy

‘Valuation adjustments may be applied to certain exchange taded futues and
aptions to account for market movement between the exchange seltfement
and the MYSE close. These securities e valsed wsing quates obitained fnem a
quotation reporting system, established market makess of Pricing Souces
Financial derivatives wseng these waluation adjustments are cateqorized as
Level 2 of the far walue Fatrandy

Equity exchange-Trdded optans and cwer the countel Firancial demvatre

irestruments, such as lorwaed fareign cumency contrans and opBons contracts,

derive their value from wnderlying asset prices, indices, reference rates, and
ather inputs o a combination of these factoes Thise contracts are gl
valued on the bases of quabes obtained from a guotation reparting system,
established market makers or Pricing Sources (nomally determined as of the
HYSE Close) Depending on the product and the terms of the tramachan,
financial derivatree instruments can be valsed by Pricing Sources using a
sevies of techniques, indhuding simulation prcing models. The pricing models
e angts that are ohienasd fom actrvely quated markets such &5 quoted
pticed, st detalt, indices, bidiask spreadk, interedt rates, mmplisd
volatfites, yield ourves, dividends and exchange rates. Finandial derivative
struments that we smilas valsation Sechniques and inputs a5 desonbed
oo g categonded as Lewel 2 of the fair value hierarchy

Centralty deared swaps and over the counter swaps derte their value from
undedying asset pnoes, indices, mlenence rates, and ather inputs o a
combination of thete Tacton Thiy ane valued wang o beoker-dealer bid
quatation of on market-based prices provided by Pricng Sources [nomaally
determined a5 of the NYSE Close). Centrally cleared swaps and over the
courted wwaps can be valued by Prcing Sounes uiang & sene of techniquoes,
including sevlation peicing madels. The peicing models may use inputs that
are phaerved from aciely quoted markets such as the overreght index swap
rate |06, LIBOR Borward rate, interest rases, yield cunves and credic
spread These securiies are categarzed bt Level 2 of the fae value histarchy

When a far valuation method is applied by the Manager that uses signidicant
unchiervable inputs, meestments will be priced by a method that

the Manager o pedsorns acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
ame calegonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

Pacoty peicing procedures set the base price of a fixed meome secunty and
subsequently adpat the price proparmanally 1o market value changes of & pre-
detemmaned security deemed to be comparable in duratson, generalya LS
Treasury or sovereign note based on country of issuarce The base price may
B @ beghes -dealer quote, transaction price, of a0 sternal vadue a5 dernoed by
analysis of market data The base price of the secunty may be recet on a
peviadic basis based on the availability of market data and procedures
appioved by the Vaduation Dvenight Comareties %qrr‘.-:,uil. changes i the
unohsercable inputs of the proay pricng process (the bate ptice) would resuh
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in direct and proporticnal changes in the fair value of the security. These
SECUTilies a0 Cabegoingd b Level of the Lar value heerarchy

IF third-party evauated vendor pnong is not avallable or not deemed to be
indicative of fair wvalue, the Imvestment Adviser may efiect to obiain Broker
Dhcied drw.ﬂ'y Tresem thie broker-cealer o pasied-treough Hraker Quote from
a thitd-party vendor In the event that fair valye is based upon a sngle
spuered Broker Quote, these sequnities are categotized as Level 3 of the fair
walur herarchy. Broker Cuotes ane typically reciveed from established marker
paricpants. Although independenty recerved, the Imvestment Adveer doss
not have the transparency bo view the underkang inputs which suppart the
market quotation. Sgnificant changes in the Broker Quote would have direct
and proportaanal changes = 1he fair varlye of the fEcunty

The Discoanted Cash Flew model is based on future cash flows generated by
the riestnient and may be normalged based on opected imestmen
perfamance. Future cish Rows are discounted 1o present value wing an
appropiiate rate of tetum, typecally calibrated to the iniial ransaction date
and adjusted based on Capital Asset Pricng Medel andfor other market-
based inputs Sspnificant changes in the unobsereable inputs would resdt in
direct and propomtional changes in the Fair value of the secunty. These
sequrities are categovized as Level 3 of the fairvalue hieranchy

Shom-term debr mstruments (fuch 26 commeraal gt} haing a cemasning
matunty of 60 ding of less mnay be valued at amonzed oxt, 5o long a5 the
amarityed oost valie of sich shor-tevm: debt instruments & approxmabely the
same a6 the Far value of the instiument a3 determined without the use of
amortined oot valuation Thse seunisss am :.ﬂm::-;td o Lewel 7o Dimel
3 of the fair value hisrachy depending on the source of the base pice

Securities that are smalles in size than institutional-sized or reund lot
postions of the paricular secundyfinstrument type may appdy an sdusiment
Factor 1o the dady vendar-provided peice for the coemesponding round bt
position to amnve 34 a Fair value for the applicabile odd lot positions. The
.:||,I|u-.'.m|'nr1.'u:l:n| s dEterrmuned h,n:rsmprm;] she prces of imternal trades
wath visndor pracis, cabculating the veesghbed sverage differences, and using
that diflerence as an adjustment facior to vendor prices. These securities are
categonized as Level 3 of the fairvalue hierarchy

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

|s] Delwyed Dalivary Tranesctions Certain Funds may purchase or sell
secunitios on 3 delaged-delemery basis. These tramsactions imakme a
codnmitment by a Fund ta ;ll.rl.hryr o Sl st hr.!lplede'.l-'mmd [=1a]
or yiekd, with payment and delreery taking place beyond the oustoenary
settlement pesiod When delayed-delreery tramsactions. ane outstanding

a Fund wall dr_su]nu'.r o iecewe a5 collatéral bqud assets 10 an amdunt
sufficient 1o meet the purchase price or respective obbigations. When
purchasing a secusity on a delayed-delvery basss, a Fund assumes the rights
and risks p.‘-:lwm,'ld‘-p al thee wcuty, inclidng the nsk (:!'pum i yeld
Muchsations, and takes such fluctuations ino scocunt when determning is
NAY. A Fund may despose of or renagotiate a delayed-delivery tansacticn
aftes it i entered wnta, which may result in 3 reakzed gain o¢ leds When

a Fund has sold a secunty an a delayed-delvery bass, the Fund does neq
participate in future gains and losses wath tespect to the security

[b] Inflation-Pndexed Bonds Certan Funds may imvest in infiatien-indexed
bonds. Inflation-indened bands are fmed sncome secuntes whose pancipal
waliee 15 periodically adjusted by the rate of inflation The evterest rate on
these bomds & genesally fooed at issuance at a rabe hower than typical bonds
Over the life of an inflation-indexed bond, however, ingeress will be paid
based on a principal value, which b adusted for inflaton Amy increase o
decrease in the princpal amount of an inflaton-indexed bond will be nduded

s interest inoome on the Statements of Operations, even though ewestors do
gt tecersd their principal il maturnity, Repiymens of the ceiginal bond
peincipal upon matursty (a5 adjusted for inflation) i quaranteed in the cage af
U5 TIPS For bonds that do nat prowide a similar quarantee, the adjusted
princiral value of the band repaid at maturity may be less than the crginal
principal

ie| Loan Participgations, Axsipamants and Originatieas Certain Funds may
rvest in direct diebd instruments which are interests in amounts owed to
bendlers or lending smdicates by corporate. govemmental, of other borowers
A Fund's investments in haafs may be in the Torm of paricipations in leans ar
assignments of all or a portion of loans froen third parties os imvestments in or
oaiginations of loans by the Fund. A loan is often administered by a bank o
ot financial iestitution (e " lender™) that sc1s &5 agent for all halders The
agent administers the terms of the loan, as speafied in the lnan agresment

A Fund miy ivest in multiphe series.or tranches of a loan, which may have
wlrning bisig v Cadry diffesent socaned ndkd ‘When a Fund puichises
assignments from lenders it aoquires direct nghts against the bormowers of the
foans. These loars may inchude participations in bridge leans, which are bans
Taki Gt Iy s coviini fae & ':l"u'!-;lP:mdl:!:l-;ll:.llf,'ll-;s than o )
periding arrangement of more permarent financing through, for example, the
msuance of bonds, frequently high yield bonds fssued far the purpose of
SuSIGAE

The typees af loars and related imestments in whidh the Furds may imest
nclude, among others, senior kaans, subondinated loans (induding seoond
fien loarss, B-Motes and mezzanine loans), whale kaans, commendial ieal
etabe arvd other commercial baans and structured baans. A Fund may
coiginate loans of aoquete direct infevests in loans theowsgh primary loan
destrbutices andior in pinvate transactions. In the case of subardinated loans,
thine My be wgh dicant indehibednis rank i ahead of the Bomrower's
clbgation 1o the holder of such a loan, induding in the event of the

e ower's insoteency. Mezzanime boans are typecally seowed by a pledge of
an equity interest in the mortgage boerower that owns the real estate rathes
tham an interest in a mongage

Irrvesiments in loans may indhade unfunded loan commitments, whach are
contractual chingatsans far funding Unfunded loan commitmints may include
eesnobving credit Tacilities, which may abibgate a Fund 10 supply additional cach
1o the besroer on demand. Urtunded loan mommitments: represent a future
ahligation in full, sven thaugh a peccentage of the committed amount may
mat ke utilized by the bareower When imsesting in a koan partiopation,

a Fund has the nght o recetve payments of peincpal, mferest and any fees to
which it is entitled anly from the fendr selfing the fean agreement and oaly
upon ceceipl of payments by the lender from the Bomower, A Fund may
tecehve a commitment fee based on the undrawn portion of the underbyéng
ime off credit portion of a koan n certain droumstances, a3 Fund may receive a
penatty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a borower. Fees eamed o
pand are reconded a5 a component of interest income of interest expense,
respaciively, on the Statements of Operabiors. Unfunded loan commitments
ane reflected & a listwlity on thee SLatements of Assets and Luabifitess

0 Mortgage-Related and Other Asset-Backed Securitins Detan Funds may
rrvest o morigage-retated and other asset-backed secundies that directly or
inderectly represent a partiopatian in, or are secured by and payable from,
baanes on real property. Morigage-related securities. are created from poals of
residential o commercial enprigage loans, incudng morgage ans made by
saings and lean irstibations, mortgage bankers, commarcial banks and
others. These securities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
irterest and principal Interedt may be deteemined by fooed of adjustable cates
The rate of prepayments on underbying mortgages wil affect the price and
volatdity of a morigage-related security, and may have the eflect of
shartening o extending the effective duration of the secunty eelatve 1o what
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wirs anticipated at the time of purchase. The timely payment of principal and
inbeeest ol certain mrgage-related securities i quaranbeed with the full fach
and credit of the U5 Govesnment. Peaols created and guaranteed by non-
governmental issuers, induding govemment-sponsoned ooposations, may be
supparned by varsous fams of insarance or guarantees. but there can be no
assig ance that private insuters of quaraioes can meet their sbigations under
the imvsurande pelices of guatantes arangements. Many of the risks of
imaEsting in mm:g.:qc-:clalﬁ! sicuniaes secured by sommercial mertgage
loans risflect the effects of local and other econerme: conditions on real psnate
markets, the ability of tenants to make bease payments, and the ability of a
property to attract and refain tenants These sequrities may be less liquid and
iy @chibit grsater prioe volatibty than ather o nf—mm::jdn}r-:ddltdm
other asset-backed seowites Other asset-backed seoarities ane created from
marny types of assets, including, but not bmited to, auto loans, acounts
recenvable. sixch as coedit card recenvatiles and hespital account recenvablin,
home ety loaes, student baans, boat loars, mebde home kans,
receaticnal vehice loans, manutachaed housing leans, ainoalt leases,
computer leases and syndicated bank loarrs. The Fund may imeest in any level
of the capital stneciuee of an issuer of mongage-backed or asset-baded
seourities, including the equity or " frst Boss” tranche

| Cablataraliced Martgage Obligations ["CN0s") ae debt obligatons of a
legal entity that afe collateraded by whole mortgage loars of provate
mirtgage bonds and diveded into classes. CMOs ate stnschared into mulople
dlasses, often reflerred 1o & “trandhes”, with each dlass beanng a diffesent
stated maturity and enbitled to a different schedule for payments of prinopal
and imtenest, indudeng prepayments ChMOs mary be less hqud and may edhibic
greater price volatiity than othes types of mortgage-related or asset-badked
seuibes

1Al Strippad Mortgege-Backed Sacuritins ("5MES") ae dernaative multedlass
mierigage secunties. SMBS are usually stnectured with two classes that pecene
different propomions of the interest and principal distributions on a pool of
mortgage assets. An SMBS will have one class that will recedve all of the
inbeeest {iF imeneit-onky of "I07 classl, while the ot chins wall recenve the
entite prmcipal {the princpal-anly or "0 dass). Payments ieceived for i0s
are ircluded in inberest intome on the S1atements of Operations . Because no
privcal will be mecenoed 2 the matusity of an 10, adjustments ate made to
thee cost of the seaqutity en & monthly basis untd maturity These adjustments
are included in inbesest income on the Ssatements. of Operaticns. Payments
recerved fior PO ane freatied as redudiions to the cost and par value of the
sagutilies

lg) Collataralired Debt Obligatioas ("CD0<7) include Collateralzed Bond
Obdigateans (" CBOs™ ), Collateralized Loan Obbigations {" CLOs") and other
similarhy structured secursties. CBOs and CLOs ane types of asset-badied
securines A CBO i a trust which is backed by a diversified pool of high nisk,
below imeestment grade feed ingome seowites. A (L0 is a trust typically
codlateralized by a pocd of loans, which may include, among others, domestic
and .‘-:ll-ﬂl’:n Sefdd wiuied loans, famcd precunsd loahd, aad subcedinate
corpoeate loares, including kaans that may be rated bslow ewestment gtade o
equivaient unrated loars. The risks of an ievestment in 3 CDO depend Lagely
o6 the type of ke collateral secuites and the class ol the (00 in which

a Fund irvests In-addition to the nonmal risks associated with fixed income
senrities discussed elsewherne in this report and the Funds’ Offering
Memarardum [2.g, prépayment nisk, cradit nik, bousfay sk, markeq mik,
structural sk, legal risk and inserest rate risk (whach may be exaterdiated o
the infterest rate payabde on a stnacheed inancing changes based an
multiples of changes in imdenest rates or imversely to changes in inferest
i CBOs CLOs, and ather C0O% carry sddiional erchs including, but nog
limitad %o, (] the possibility that distrbutions. from coll aberal securities will not
be adequate to make interest or cther payments, (i) the guality of the

collateral may dedine m walue or defade, [ii) the nsk that a Fund may imes
in CEOs, CLOs, o other COOs that ace subgrdinate 1o cther clisses, and ()
the complex structute of the security may not be fully understand at the time
of imestment and may prodisce disputes with the issuer or unespected
irvestment results

] Payman® In-Hind Securitias Cerlin Funds may ovest o paymint m-ked
secunties {"PIEL"). PIEs may give the issuse the opbon at each interest
payment date of making interest payments in either cash andfor additional
debit secunties. Those additional debt securilies wsually hive the same terns,
including matunty dates and interest rates, and associated risks 2 the
ongingl bands. The daly market quotations of the original bonds may indude
thie accrued interest (refemed to as 3 "dify peice”) and réquire & peo rata
Sdjustement from the unssalzed appreciabon of depuacanian of imvesiments
10 irerest recesable an the Statements of Assets and Liahilities

{#) Restrictad Secunities Certain Funds may hald imvestments that are subject
1o legal oo contractual restrictions on resale. These secunitses may be sold
pettvately, but may be required 1o be registered of exempted Trom such
reqistrataan beloee being sold to the public. Private placement secunties ane
generally considened 10 be restricted Disposal of restricted imvestments may
rrchal i me-oonduming nigotatnss and epenses, and prompt sale a1 an
aoceptable price may be dfficult to achieve. Restricted imestments held by
the Funds at May 31, 2023, 35 applicable, are declosed in the Notes to
Schedule of Eveitments

i Streetorad Notes Ceman Funds may imvest in Structuned nabés and othes
related instruments, which aee prvately negotiated debt abligations in which
the prinapal and! o interest is determsened by reference 10 the perfarmance of
a benchmark asset, market or interest rate [an " embedded index™), such as
sefected securities, an index of securities o specified interest rates, or the
differernial performance of two sasets of markets, such & indexes rellectng
bonds. Strectuted instruments may be ssued by corponations, snduding
banks, a5 well as by governmental agancies: The terms of such structured
wntruments necmally proside that their pincpal andiof infefest payments ane
1o ket Ecdpursted upwiands or dowemwands (but ordinanly not below pess) to
reflact changes in the embedded index while the stiuchored instnaments ae
outstanding. As a result, the interest andior printipal payments that may be
made on a structured peoduct may vary wadely, depend ng on 3 vatiety of
factors, induding the volatility of the embedded index and the effact of
-:h.1r|r_|n:-s-r. the embedded index; on prncipal and'or sxlenest paymints

(&) Gewarnmant Secovities and Japasese Govermment Sacoritles
Givednment seoities, such a5 reasury bills, notes and bonds, ae
obligations of, or guaranieed by, governments, thes agencies or subdivisions,
of govemiment-sporsoned enlerprses  Rapancie GowEnmeny securnibes, such
&% reasury bills, motes and bonds, are cbhganions of, o guarantesd by, the
laparese Govesnment, its agencies or subdadsions or government-sponsoned
enleprises, Government securities and lapanese Government secutities e
subject to matket and intecest sane sk, and may be subject 1o varsng
degrees of oedit risk. Government secunities and lapanese Government
secunties indude peg ooupen securities, which do ot dstnbute inberest on a
curtent basis and tend 1o be subject 10 greater market mik than mishe-
paying secuntses of simiar maturnities

W ULS. Gawerament Agencies ar Government-Speaverad Enterprises

Caertain Funds may mraest in seowrities of U S Govesnmient agendits o
gowernment-ipanioned enerpress U S, Government tecunties ane
obbgations of and, in certain cases, guasanteed by, the U5 Govemment, its
agendies or instrumentalities. 5ome U S Govemment securitees, such a5
Teeasury bills, motes and bands, and secufities quaranteed by the Govesnment
Maticnal Mortgage Association (" GNMA™ or "Ginnie Mae™), are supponted
by the full fazh and credst of the LS. Geverment, others, such 35 these of
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the Federal Home Loan Banks, are supported by the right of the issuer 2o
borrow from the U5, Depanment of the Treasury {ihe "U5 Tremuny ™) and
others, such as those of the Federal Mational Mortgage Association ["FNMA®
or “Fannie Mae), are supporied by the dsoetonary authority of the 1S
Gesemenent S puschase the agendy’s abligations U5, Gowernment securilies
may include reto coupon secunties, which da not distribuse interest on &
current basis and tend to be subject to a greater risk than interest-paying
secuities of similas enatunties

Gerereenint-related quaraross e, nol backed by the full Taith and credic of
the 5. Govermment) nclude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Comparation {"FHLMC or ™ Fredidie Mac” ). FNMA, 15 a govemment-sporsoned
coepocation FRMA puichases coneentional (Le , not insuned of quarantied by
amy government agency) resedential mortgages fram a list of approved
sellersfsenvioens which include state and federally chartered savings and loan
asccitions, mubudl snings banks, commaencial banks o credit uraons and
mortgage bankers Pass-theough securines rsued by FNMA are guarastesd as
to timely payment of princpat and intevest by FNMA, but are not backed by
the full faith and credit of the U 5. Government. FHLMC issues Partcipation
Ceutificates {"PCs "), which ate pats-through secunties, each representing an
undivaded interest im a pool of residential morgages. FHLMC quarantees the
limaely payment of imeress and witimate collecon af principal, but PCS ang it
backed by the Tull fasth and eredit of the U § Gowenment

In June X9, FUMA and FHLMC started issuing Uniform Morigage-Badied
Securtties ("UMBS") i place of their qurrent ofieaings of TRA-eligihle
scur e (e ‘Slr.qk- Sicutity Inispee”) The 5!.1;![' Socurity rtiatve seeks
tor-support the overall liquidity of the TEA market and aligns the
characherisics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects that the Single
Security Ientiatve may Rare on the marked for TEA and ogher manmgage-
backed securities ane urcemain

Rt timing strateqies can be wsed where a Fund seeks 1o extend the
eication or maturity of 2 position, such as 4 TRA security on an undering
assat, by closing out the pestion befare exprabon and opening a new
position with respect b substantially the same undarkring asset with a later
expiration dabe. TBA secusities purchased or sold are milecied on the
Stasermints of Aeets and Liabilites s an asset of lability, respednely

|m] When-Issued Transaetions Ceran Funds may puchase of sell secuntes
on awhen-issued basis. These trarsactons are made conditionally because a
sacurity, although authorized, has not yet been issued in the market
Transactiens Lo purchase oo sell senuities on a when-ssued basis mclve

a commitment by a Fund to pechese or sell these seouites for &
predetemaned pioe of yeeld, with payment and delrery taking place beyond
the customary setfllement pediod. A Fund may sell when-isiued securities
belore Ih,-f' ate delnvered, which may result 0 a realged gan of s

|n} Bank Dbligations Bank obligations = which & Furd may ievest ndude
certificates of deposst, bankers’ acoeptances, and foed time deposits
Certificates of depasit ace negesable conlicates issued against Bunds
depesited in a commencial ank for o defenite pencd al time and earning &
speafied retumn. Bankers” acoeptances are negotiable drafts of bals of
exchange, nommally drawn by an imparter or exporter to pay for spedfic
merchandise, which are " accepied ™ b‘f i bark, meaning, i eflect, that the
bank unconditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instrument on
maburity Fieed time deposits are bank obligations payable at a stated
matwrity date and bearing interest a1 a food rate. Fived time deposits may be
wathdearaen on demand by the rreston, but may be subject 1o early
withdarwal penalties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
remarng matwity of the d;\-'.-;allun

5, BOAROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Thee: followeng dischosures contain information om the Funds” abilty 1o lend or
Eeomowy cash o securities bo the extent permitted under the Ciffiering
Memorandum, which may be viewed o boriowing of ferancing trarractions
by the Funds. The Bacatice of these instruments is descenbed Beloa For
detailed desoripbion of credit and counterparty risks that can be associated
with boeromings and other financing transactions, please see Note 7,
Frincipal and Other Risks.

fa) Ropurchase Agreements Cemain Funds may engage m iepurchase
ageements. Under the terms of a typical repurchase agreement,

@ Fiord purchases an underdying debd cbigation [oollateral] subject to an
ctiligation af the selles 0o repuicharie, and & Fund 1o tegell, the abligaticn at
an agreed-upan pice and time. In 3n open matunity repurchase agreement,
there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
teimanated by the Fund of cournemparty at ang tme. The market value of the
collateral must be equal to or exceed the tatal amaunt of the repuwchase
wcliligations, intluding imterest. Repurchase agreements, induding accrued
mterest, are mcluded on the Statemenss of Assots and Laabibzies Intesest
eamed is eacorded 3 a component of inbesest moome gn the Statements of
Operations. bn periods of increased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay a
fee for receips of collateral, which may resull in interest expense 1o the Fund

&) Reverse Repurchase Agresmants Certan Funds mis entes info reserie
tepurchase ayreements In a reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund defrers a
security in exchange for cash to a finandal institution, the counterparty, with
a simultaneous agreement 1o repurchase the same or substantally the same
LECUity 3 an ayeed upen price and date. In 30 Gpen matunty feverse
repurchase ayreement, there & no pee-detemaned repurchase date and the
agieement <an be Termenated by the Fund or counterpaty at any time

& Fund 15 entiled oo recence principal and intetest piments, i by, made an
thie secunty delhened 1o the counbespanty during the term of the agreement
Cash necessed in exchange for secuntes delvensd plus acoued inferest
parymmenss b be made by a Fund 16 countivpanties ace reflecied as 3 fability
on the Statements of Assets and Liabikties. Interest payments made by a Fund
o countesparties are ecorded a5 8 oomponent of interest expense on the
Saatements of Operabond In pandds o ingredded demand Tor the SNty

& Fund may recenve & Tee for use of the secunty by the counerparty, which
may result in interest income to @ Fund. A Fund will seqregate assets
detemined 10 b bgued by PIMCD or will othenwise cover s chligations
under rewere nepichise agreements

] Sale-Buybacks Cetanm Funds may enter e financng ransactions
elemed to as “sale-buybacks’ A sale-buyback fnandng transadtion consists
ol a sale al a security by a Fund 1o a Brancial instiution, the coumepanty,
with @ gimidtaneous Sgneement 10 tigurchase the ame o sadtrstaritially this
same seuity at an agreed-upcn price and date A Fund is nat entitled to
receive principal and interest payments, if any, made on the security sold ta
thie counterparty duning the tem of the agreement. The agresd-upon
peoceeds fod seouities 1o be repurchased by a Fund ate reflectad a5 a liabdity
on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. A Fund wall recognize net income
ripresented by the price differentual betwoen the prce secenved for the
trarsfered security and the agreed-upan repurchase prce This is commenly
refented to as the 'price drop’. & pice diop consists o {1) the: foregone interest
and inflasionary income adhstrments, if any, a Fund would have cthenwise
eecedved had the securnity not been sald and (il) the negotiated fnancing tems
between a Fund and courerparty. Foregone interest and inflationary income
adjustmenits, o any, ane recorded a5 components of interest income on the
Statements of Operations Interest payments bated upon neqatiated financng
tesmes made by a Fund to countenparties are recceded as a companent ol
interest expense on the Statements of Dperataons. |n peviods of inoeased
demmandg for the secoeity. & Fund may necein a fee Sar use of the secunty by
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the counterparty. which may result in inderest income 10 a Fund. A Fund wall
segrigale kets detetmined o be hquid by PINCE) oo will atherade coves 115
obligations under sale-buyback transactions

[d] Short Sabes Certan Funds may enter into short ales ransactions. Shar
sales ane transactions in which the Fund sells a secunty that it may not oan
A Fund may make short sabs of secunties 1o (i} offier potential dedines n
long pasitions i similar secunties, (i) 1o increase the flexbility of the Fund,
L} bor irvvestrmeent return, (s} as part of a nsk arbitrage strategy, and [v) &
part of its overall postiolio management strategies imvolving the we of
deivaatve irdlfumentt When b Fund efgaped if & shorl <alé o My boiiow
the secunity sobd shoet and deliver it bo the countempaty. The Fund wall
crdinanly have to pay a fee or premium to bomow a seouity and be obligated
1 Py the hender of the secutity vy diadend of interest that accnses on the
sacurity during the peviod of the loan. Securities sold in shoet sale transactans
and the diidend or inlenest payable on such securities, il any, ane rellected a5
el {ar cho Labed on the Stateeents of Asiest and Lisbilhis Short saled
expose the Fund o the risk that it wall be required 1o cover its shon postion
at a time when the secuwity or other asset has appeecated in vafue, thus
resuining i Mddes o the Fianed A ghadt £ale o © Pt thibax” if

thse Fured holds in its portfolio or has the right 1 acquine the seowity sold
short, or securnities identical 1o the seousity sold shor, 3t no additicnal cost

A Fund will be subgect 1 additional ik 10 the extent 1hat il engages in shest
sales that &ee not " agandt the box” A Fund's loss on a shon sale could
theoretically be unlimited in cases wheve the Fund is unable, for whatever
reason, bo dode out its shoet position

B. FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The follewing desclosures contain information ca how and why the Funds use
financial desvative instnuments and how financial derratrve insruments
affect the Funds’ finandal position, results of aperations and cash flows. The
lecation and fairvalue amounts of these emstruments on the Statements of
Assets and Liabilrbes and the net nealized gan (loss) and neg :I‘q.‘v_}c ]
uneeabred apprecistion (deprecation) on the S1atements of Operatices, each
categorized by type of financial derivative contract and related risk exposure,
are ircluded in a table in the Nodes 1o Schedule of investments. The financial
derivative instruments autstandng as of perad end and the amounts of net
realized gan {loss) and met change in unreakzed appreciation (depreciation)
o fnancial dervateve instrumenss during the pengd, as disclosed in she
Notes to Schedule of Inveiments, serve a4 mdicaton of she volume of
finandial denvative activity flor the Funds

|a] Forward Foreign Correscy Contracts Cerain Funds may engage in
Torwiard fonege urrency contracts in connpctuon with sestling planned
purchates or aes af secunses, 1o hedge the curfency expoture Fsocated
wath some or all of & Fund's securities or as pan of an imestment strategy. A
forwiand fareign cusrency contrack is an ageeement between two pares 1o buy
and well & curency at 3 561 priceon a furre date The macket vabue al 3
forward foresgn currency contract fluctuates with changes in foreign currency
emchange rates. Forevaed Joreign curency contracts are marked to market
daily, ard the chandge in value 15 tecorded by 2 Fund a3 a0 unrealed gaen or
loss. Reakzed qains or losses ane equal 1o the difierence between the value of
thee condract ai the time it was apened and the value at the tme it was dosed
and are recodded upon delveny of receipl of the currency. These contracts
Ty reohe market fik in exoess of the ullle..']l.lrdqa a1 of bags reflected on
thee Statements of Assets and Lisbilities. In additicn, a Fund could be exposed
to sisk if the counterparties are unable to meet the terms of the contracts or if
the walue of the ourrency changes unfzsorably to the unclionsl currency. Ta
mitigate sudh sk, cash or seounties may be exchanged as coflateral puesuant
to thee terms af the underlying contracts

Certain Funds, having a hedged Class, may abso enter inta forward foreign
curiengy cosiracts desgned o offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
onder to beave the hedged Class with an esposure to currencies other than the
functicnal cumency These can bie no guaraniee that these Class specific
{orwaed Foreign curtency contrasts will be successhul

i) Futores Comtragts  Certien Funds may entes inba Tiunes comracts. &
futuses contract is an agreement 1o buy of sall @ secutity of ather aieq fee a
5e1 price on 3 future date and is traded on an exchange. A Fund may use
futwies contracts 1o manage i exposune 10 The securities markets of 16
Ensirermenis. in inderest rates and cumency values. The primasy risks associated
with the use of futures contracts are the impesfiect comelation between the
change in market value of the securities held by a Furd and the prices of
futures contracts and the passibility ol am dliqud market Futunes comracty
are vafued based upon their quoted daly settiement prices. Lipan enteting
oo @ futures contract, 8 Fund s neguired to deposit with its futures braber an
smount of cath, U S Govermemint a0d Agency Dbhgathon:, of selec] soviiegn
debit, in acooedance with the initial mangin requeements of the broker o
eechange Futures contracts are masked bo market daily and based on such
ety in thi price of the contracts, an Jppropnate piyable of recenvabile
fior the change in value may be posbed or collected by the Fund [ Futures
‘Wariation Mangin™} Futures Yanation Margins, if any, are dischosed within
centrally deared financsl deteative instiumets on the Statements of Asiets
and Labelites. Gaing of lossed are regognized but not consabered reafized unnl
the contracts expire or close. Futures condracts invohve, 1o varying degrees,
risk of boss in excess of the Futures Vianation Masgin induded wathin
exchange raded or centrally deared financial dervathe ingtruments an the
Statements of Assets and Liabistes

f} Optiona Contraete Cerfain Funds may write of purchase ophions to
erhance retums. o o hedge an existing position or uture imvestment. Cerlain
Furds may wiite call and put oplions on secunities and financal deshative
irstruments they own of in which they may imvest Wiiting put options. tends
1o increase @ Fund’s enposure to the undecying instament Writing call
option temds 1o decrege a Fund's exposue 1o the undeiying instrumeny
When a Fund weitss a call of put, an amouet equal to the premium recenved is
recoeded and subsequently marked to market to reflect the current wvaliee of
the cption wiitten These ameunts ate incuded on the Statersents of Asets
and Liahilites Premiums recened from wniting eptions whach mpare are
treated as realzed gains. Premiums recerved from waiting options which are
exercrsed of chosed are added to the proceeds or offset agairst amounts paid
on the undedying futures, swap, Security oF cutrency rantaction to determine
the reafized gain or loss. Cerlain options may be written wath premiums to be
determined an & futere date The premiums for these aptions ane based upan
npbiad volatdity paramitens .'|r5p[‘~:'|fu"~:l weems A Fund a5 3 weiter of 20
opticn has no control over whedher the underlying instrument may be sold
{"call” ) or purchased ("put™) and as a result bears the market risk of an
unifivorable change in the price of the instroment undething the witten
option. There is the risk a Fund may not be able to enter it a desing
trarrsaction because of an Migud market

Coerlan Funds may a0 purchase put and cill opbons. Purchising call aplions
tends 1o inchease & Fund's expasure 10 the undering instrument. Purchasing
put optices. tends to decrease a Fund's exposuee to the underying instrument
A Fund pays a premeum which s included a5 an asset on the Statements of
hasets amd Liabilitsas and subsequently marked 10 masbet to reflect the
cunent value of the option. Premiums paid for purchasing options which
expire e reated as mealized lossts Certan options may be purchased with
petemiures 1o be determined on 2 futute date. The presmums for these options.
are based upon impled velatlity parameters at specibed teems. The risk
assgdated with purchasing put and call options is limited 1o the premium
paid Prostoums pasd lar purchasing ophoed which s exerdised of closed &
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added 10 the ameunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the uderhang
ITAERIMEnt ransectsan to detsmine the realged G s wrhen the
umderking trarcaction is executed

Cowdit Dalailt Swaptions Cenain Funds may wnte or purchase cedit default
swiap s, bo hedige expasune to the oredit risk of an imvestment withou
m.\lunr, @ comminmaent 15 the underhang irstrument A cridi defauh WapTan
ts an opitien 10 sl o buy oredit peatection 1o & specilic refarende by entening
into a pre-defined swap agreement by some speahed date n thee futiare

Foreign Correscy Options Cestain Funds may wnte or purchase foeeign
curnency options 10 ke used a4 & short of long hedge agamst posuble
wariations in feeeign enchange raies of to gain exposure to foresgn cusrencies

Inflation-Capped Optiess Certain Funds may wivte or purchase inflation-
tapped aptions to enhance ehams o for hedging opportunites The purpose
of purchasing inflatisr-capped aptins 15 5o peotect 3 Fund fram inflasan
ercrsaon dhove a cerain rate on @ given noticnal expesure. A floor can be
used o gove downside probection to irvestments in inflation-linked products

Intarest Rate-Cappad Optione Certan Funds may wiite or purchase inferest
rate-capped options to enhance refurns of e hedging oppedtunities. The
purpoie of purchaging interest rate-capped aptions i to protect a Fund Tnom
feating rate sk above a certain rate on a given notional exposure A foor
ran be usad fo give downside probection to investmends in intenest rate lnked
products

Inturest Rate Swaptiens: Cerlain Funds min wiile of purchase injeress rane
swap s which are cptions to enfer into a pre-defined swap agreement oo
to shorten, extend, carcel or athersse modity an emsting swap agreement,
by some specshied date in the funeee. The wiiter of the saaption bicomed the
counterpaty 4 the swap if the buyer exercses The inlerest rate swaption
agreement waill specify whether the buyer of the swaption wil be a fxed-rate
recenvet of & foed-1a0e payer upon exeice

Dptions en Extbampe-Traded Futores Contracts Cerlan Funds miy wiie o
purchase options on exchange-traded fubwes contracts {™Futures Opion™) to
hedie an easting position of future imestment, for speodatie puposes o fo
manage expoiuse o market mosements. A Fulures Optian is a0 option
contract im which the underkang instrament i< a single futures comract

Dptions sn Securities Certan Furds may waite or purchase spbons on
securities 8o enhanoe retums of 1o hedge an esting position o future
iresstment. An oplion on 3 seourity L;u'_-;aj;l{\cll'lud secutiby a5 Thee undérhying
instrument for the opbion conract

[d} Swap Agressssnts Certain Fumds may svest in swap agreements Swap
agreements aoe bilaterally negotiated agreements betwenn a Fund and a
counterpaity 1o exchange of pwap irvestment cach fows, assets, fermgn
currencies of matker-linked returns af specified, future intesvals Swap
agreements may be privately negotated in the OTC market or may be deared
thraagh a third-party, known as 3 central counterparty of dermvatives deaning
organizatson {*centeally deared swaps™) A Fund may enter into asset, credit
defaudy, ross-cumency, enterest rate, tabal retuen, vanance and other forms of
SWa jFepments to manage its exposure b redil, currency, inferest rate,
cormmodity, equity and isflation sk, In conmection with these agreements
seautities of cash may be sdentified as collateral or marngen in acocedance wath
the terrs of the respective swap agreements 1o provide assets of value and
recourse i the event of defasl o |,|.|nl\.|u;||i;,'|'|r\-s-nu.‘..rﬂl::lI

Centrally cleared swaps are marked to market daily based upon valuations as
determined from the underlying centract oe in accordance with the
Fequetemenls :'|F'Ih|,' ceriral Caunlpdrty o -:ll,':r.'.;.i'.r.u:'-.. -;!-m'lnl; cfganiialan
Changes im erarket value, (F amy, ace reflected as a companent of ret change
in unseakzed appreciation (depredaticn) an the Statements of Opesabions

Dty changes in valuation of centrally cleaned swaps (" Swap Variation
Masgin™}, i any. are drchosed within centrally cheared financial dereatig
irsiruments on the Stmements af Assets and Liabilites. OTC swap payments
recerved ar paid at the beginning of the measurement period ace included on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbilites and repesent premives paid o
received Upon enteding o the swap ajteement 10 compensate for
ditfererces hetween the stated 1eims of the swap agreement and prevailing
ket conditans [cnedin spreads, cumendy exchange fades, inberest rates, and
okt relevant facton) Upfiom premiums recened (pad) are smitially reconded
a5 lisbifities {assets) and subsequently marked to market to reffect the cument
value of the swap. These upfiont presiums. are recorded a5 realized gain or
lerssis on the SLatEments :IFU',]I,'I:E::IH'L LN Bisimi assan of mabutity ol th
awap. A liguidation payment recened or made at the termination of the swap
B reoceded s realized gain of less on the Statements of Oiperations. Met
periodic purgmaents reomvied o paid by o Fund Bee inel e o part of mealped
gans of losses on the Statemens of Operations

For purposes of applyeng certain of a Fund's imeestment policoes and
eestrickang, paap agneements, like other denvative instiuments, may be
valued by a Fund a1 market value, notional value or full exposure value In the
case of a credit default swap, in applying certain of the Fund's imvestment
pobcies and resirictaons, the Fund will walus the redit dedanh W Al it
nabonal value o i full expesure value (e, the som of the rahianal amaunt
fior the contract plus the market valoel, but may value the cedit default swap
at market vaiue for purposes of apphying centain of the Fund's other
rrostimienl poldaih and redtrachors. Foi example thi Fuund Ty il et
dedault seaps at full exposure value for purposes of the Fund's cedit quality
guidetres {if any) because such value in genesal bester reflacts the Fund's
Sl SOOI Epodaid duding thi terr of the crade delaolt swan
agreement. As a result, a Fund may, at imes, have notional exposure 10 a0
asset cass {before mesting] that is greater or kesser than the stated limit or
eesteictan neted in the Fund's Offersng Memarandum. In thes content, both
the rotional amount 2nd the market value may be pouithe o negate
depending on whether the Fund is seling or buying protection thiough the
credit default swap. The manner in whech oertain secunties or other
sstruments ane valued by the Fund Tor purposss of apphyrg imeesiment
peolbcies and restricticens may differ from the manner in which those
irnvestments ame valued by cther types of imvestons. Entering inta swap
Sieements imndived, jo vaying degreds, dements of imerest, credin marke;
and documentation risk i excess of the amounts recognized on the
Statements. of Assets and Liabites. Such nisks imvolve the possiilty that
then wall be mo bguid marked Tee thise agreements, that the countesparty 1o
the agreements may defauli on s obligation %o perform of disagres as 1o the
meaning of contrachesl terms in the agreements and that there may be
wnlivorable changes in intenest rates of the values of the avset upon which
the swap is based

A Fund's madmum risk of krss from countespaty cedit risk i the discounted
et vatue of the cash flows o be recetved fiom the counteparty aver the
congract's remaining life, 10 the extent that amouwsn 15 pasiive. The nsk may
b mitigased by having a master netting arrangement beteween a Fund and
the munmpal‘."a'd I::- the persting of collaterad to a Fund to oover a Fund's
exposute 1o the cournErpaty

To the extend a Fund ki a paliy 1o s the net ssount aeed 10 ol 1o b
recedved from a single counbesparty under exrsting swap agreements, such
fimitation anly apphies to countenparties to OTC swaps and does not apply to
centeally deaned sevagrs where the counterpany o & cential counterpany of
defieatives deating ceganization

Cradit Defaslt Swap Agreamants Certain Funds may enter into credit default
Swaps on coporate, loan, soveresgn, U 5 municpal og U5, Treasury issues 1o
provide a measure of prolection against defaults of the issess (e, to reduce
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risk where 3 Fund owns or has mposune 10 the relerenced obligation] or to
take an actoer bang o shart poditon walh cespedt ta the Tkelivood ol a
partiodlar issuers defadft Credt defautt swap ajreements emobe one party
making a stream of payments (refemed to as the buyer of profection] to
angther party (the seller of pratection) in exchange for the right to ecerve 2
speafed retum in the event that the referenced entity, obigation ot index, a5
spedfied i the swap agreement, undergoes a certain credit event As a seller
nfp:n’.l:{l, an on credit delaudy swap agregnts, a Fund will genenilly regenns
Tean the buyer of protection a foed rate of ncome throughet the teem of the
swap provided that there is no credit event As the seller, a Fund would
effectively add leverage 1o s portiolio because, in addition b its tosal net
asgits, the Fund would be subject 1o mvrssment axposuce on the notional
amount of the swap

If a Furd i & seller of protection and a credit event oo, # defined under
the ters of that particulss swasp agreement, & Fund wall eithes (i pay 1o the
bisyes of protection an amount equal to the national amaunt of the swap and
take delivery of the referenced obligation, ciher debvesable cbligations o
unsderlying securities comprising the redesenced index or (i) pay a nel
sattlement amount in the form of cash or secunties equal to the national
amownt of the swap less the recovery vahee of the referenced obligation o
underlying sEcurnitits compdising thae referenced index i a Fund is a Eriryer ol
pratection and & credit event occurs, s defined under the terens of that
partiodlar swap ajpeement, a Fund wall either (1) recesee from the saller of
protection an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap and delnver
th sirlarercnd obligatean, other dishwable cbhogabions of l...-bdl,-:|'|.1n',|
sacurities compnsng the referenced index or (i} receve a net settlement
amauni in the form of cash or securities equal to the notional amouns of the
s less the recovery value of the refenced ebligation o undeiing
securities comprisng the referenced index. Recovery valses are estimated by
markel makers considening either industry standard recovery rates of enbity
specl Factors and conidérations unbl a credt mient oocurs Il a credt event
has ooouered, the tegmeery value s desermined by a facisated sucton
wherely a minimum number of allowable broker bads, together with a
speabed valuation method, are used to calculate the settlement value. The
ability 1o delrver other abligations may result in & cheapest-1o-delver option
{the buyer of protection’s right to choose the deliverable obligation with the
bwvirst value [olloweing @ credkt event)

Cradit delauly soap agreements on credit indioes smeclve one party making a
stream of payments 1o another party in exchange Tor the right to receive a
spedfied rebum in the event of a write-down, priccipal shoetlall, merest
shortfall or deault of all or pai of the referenced enones comprising the
credit indax. A credit imdex is @ basket of credit instruments of exposures
designed 1o be representative of some part of the credit market a5 a whole
These indices a0 made up ol eeference credias that e judged by a pol al
diealens 1o be the mest liquid entitied in the credit delault smep market based
on the sector of the index Components of the indices may include, but e
not limited to, imvestment grade securitios, bigh yield securities, asset-hacked
secufiies, emerging maskets, andior vatious cred ratings within each sectos
Credit indices are traded using credi defaul swaps with standardzed terms
including a fixed spread and standard mazurity dates. An index credit default
s eeferences all the nasmes in the indexr, &nd il there 5 & default, the credit
evend 15 settled based on that maere’s wesght in the index. The compesitson of
the indices dhanges peniodically, wsually every six months, and for most
indices, each name has an equal l.'w_m]h', in the index & Fiand gy use credit
defadt swaps an oedit indsces to hedge a poetolio of credit default swaps of
bonds, which is less expensive than it would be to buy many credit default
S 10 achieve @ similar eflecy Credig delagdy s o indicrs e
instrumends bor protecting imestors awning bands spaer dedault, and
traders use them to speculate on changes in credit quality

Implied credi spreads, represented in absolute terms, utilized in determining
the market value af credic delault S B redmeTS ON Conponate, |oan,
soveresgn, U S municipa of U S. Treasuny issues a5 of period end, il any, are
disclosed i the Notes to Schedule of Investments. They sarve as an indecator
af the current status of paymentiperformance ik and repaesent the lkelibood
of risk of default for the teferenced entity. The imphed credit spread of a
particular referenced entity reflects 1he cost of buying'sefing protection and
may inchade wl’rl:.r". [y siquingd 1 b made o enter inlo the
agtesment Wider aedit spresds repeesent a detenoraton of the referenced
entity’s ceedit soundness and a greaber likefihood or visk of default or other
credit event ocourring as defined under the terms.of the agreement. For oredit
default swag agreements en assat-backed secunities and credit indices, the
quoted market prices and resulting values senve as the indicatoe of the cument
status of the paymentiperformance rsk Increasing market values, in absolute
1ot when comparnad 1o the national amount of e TN, MepELenl A
detericraton of the referenced entity’s credit soundiess and a greate:
likelitood ar risk of default or ciher oedit event ocowrring as defined under
the terms of the agreemaent

The mamimuen patential amownit of future paymants (undiscounted) that

a Fand as a seffer of peotection could be required to make under a credit
default Seap agreement equals the notianal amognt of the dgreement
Motanal amounts of each indidual credit default swap agreement
outstanding a5 of period end for which a Fund is the selier of protection are
duschosed in the Notes 1 Schedule of Imvestments. These potential amounts
ol b p.ullu”lr ollise Bry drry ndcereeny valuis af 1he et efrensed
obbgatiors, upfront payments recefved upon entening into the aqreement, of
roel amounts fecenved from the settlement of buy protection oedit dedault
Ywip bgreements entived in8o by & Fund fat the same referenced entity o
enflities

Interest Rate Swap Agresments Cenain Funds ae subject to inbevest rate
risk exporsure in the rermal course of puradng their imestment objectves
The value of the faed rate bonds that 2 Fund helds may decrease | imensy
tates rise. To help hedge against this nsk and to maintan &5 ability 1o
generate income at prevailng market rates, a Fund may enter indo interest
rabe Swap agreements Intenzid rate sveap acpeemments svohee the exchandgs
by & Fured wath ansiher pary for their sespecive oammitment b0 pay of
receive interest on the notional amount of principal Certain forms of inserest
rate swap agreements may ingludie: i} interest rate caps, under which, in
tetutn for & premium, one party aqrees 10 mate payments to the other 1o the
extent thal intenest rates excesd a specfeed rate, or "cap”, (i} intenest rate
floors, under which, in return for a premium, one party agrees to make
parynents oo the cther 1o the: extent that inferest rates fall below a ypeafied
rate, or “fleor”, (i) interest rate collaes, undedr which a party sefl a cap and
purchases a floor or vice versa in an attempt 1o protect itself against interest
rabe et exopeding given mimmum of maximum levels, (i) callable
inerest rate swaps, under wiich the buyer pays an upiront iee in
consideration for the right 10 early terminate the swap transaction in whoe,
al peeo oot nd At a predesermined date and time poad 1o the mabuiity dae
) spreadiacks, whech allow the interedt rate swap users 1o lock in the
forwaed differential {or spread) between the interest rate swap rate and a
specified benchmark, or () Basis swaps, under which two parties can
enchange wariable imfenest ratis based on diflerent segments of money
markets

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

fa) Principal Risks I the nommal course of business, the Funds for Agquined
Fund{s), if applicable] rade financial instruments and enter sio financal
transactions where sisk of patertial loss exists due to such things as changes
w the maket (markes nek) or Taduie o |n.:h||-'r,- al the athe ety b A
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transaction to perform [credit and counterparty riskl See below for a detailed
description of select principal ks

Fund of Funds Risk To the extent that cenan Funds wwest substantiady o of
their respeciive assets i Acquired Fund{s), the nsks assocated with investing
in these Funds will be dosely related 1o the reks associated with the secunties
and other imestments held by the Acquingd Furdis) The il .‘,'-ul thit Funds
ta achieve their respectne imvestnuent objectives may depend upan the ability
o the Acquired Fund(s) 10 achieve ther respective imaestment obijectives
These can be no assurance that the imestment objectve of any Acquined
Fundls] vall be achieved The NAY of 3h Acgaring Funid sl Misetiste in
response to changes in the respective MAY of the Aoguired Fund(s) in which it
imests.

In she neemal couse of business, Acgured Fund(s) trade fnancal instomenis
and enter into fnancial transactions where sk of petential loss easts due ta
changes in the market {market nsk), or failure or inabality of the other party to
2 EANACHOA 10 p-ﬂ'h:rln (eredit and countapacty nskp

Market Righs A Fund's imvestments in finarcial dematiee irstruments and
other financial instruments expose the Fund to various risks such as, but not
lenited ta, ingedest rase, Teseign fnon-U 5 ) curency. equity and commedty
nikd

Intevest rabe rigk is the nisk that fiwed income secunties and other mstruments
held by a Fund may dedine in value because of an increase inimerest rates. If
nominal intenest rates rise, the value of cenain fied income secunities held by
a Fund weuld litely decrease. A nominal interest rate can be desoribed a5 the
sum aof a real interest rate and an expected inflation rabe. Interest rate
changes cin be sudden and unpeedictible, and a Fund may [ode money d
ket changes aie nol anticipated by Fund management A Fund may not be
able to hedge against changes in intesest rates or may dhoose pat io do 5o for
cost or ciher reasons In addition, amy hedges may not work s intended

A of the date of thes teport, witerest rates in the Ureted States and many
parts of the waorld, ncluding certam Europsean counlries continue bo inrease
In efforts to combat inflation, the U S Fedesal Reserve raised interest rates
mudtiple times in 2027 and has sndicated an expectason that it wil contirue
o rafse inderest rates in 2023 Thus, the Fund cursently Taces a hesghtened
level of risk associated with rsing interest rates andfor bond ywelds. This coukd
be drraen by avatiety af Bacros, wneclunding but nat fmised 19 centl bank
monetary poehicies, dhanging inflation ar real growth rates, general ecomomic
conditions, inreasing bond issuances or reduced market demand for low
yiekling investments. Further, while bond markets have steadily grown over
the past thees decades, dealer imventomes of compedate bands are near bistesic
lows. in redation to marked size As.a result, there has been a significant
nechucticn in the abiity of dealers o “make markets”

Fareign (nan-U.5. ) securiies in this repon are classified by the counsry of
incorpesation of a kolding. In certain instances, a security’s countny of
incorposation may be dfferent from its country of economic msposure

I & Fured imoeits chresctly an Toeesgn (pon-U 5 ) cuirencies of in securitess that
trade in, and recetve revenues in, foreign (nan-U 5 ) curtences, of in financal
derivative instruments that persde exposune to fovsgn (non-U5 ) currencoes,
1t wiill b sbgect 5o the sk that Therbae cureencies will decline in value nelative
1o the Burse cuntency of the Fund, ar, in the case of hedging posibons, that
the Fund's base cunrency wall dedine in value relatiee 5o the currency being
hedged Cumency rates in foeesgn countries may Fhictuate sigrificantly over
shert pediods of time Tor 3 pomber of reasans, induding changes in inberest
rates, intervention for the faduze to intervena) by LS. or foreign governments,
central banks or supranational entilies such as the Intemational Monetary
Fund, & by Ii‘r'-—mll-ﬁ'ldfl:ulnﬁnty-: e of alker polined! disslopments

in the United States or abroad. As a resft a Fund's imvestmenss in foreign
curiency-dendminabed Securtiess miny reduce the Fund's etums

The market values of equities, such a5 comenon stocks and prefemed sequrities
o ety related investments such a6 futures and options, have histoncally
risen and fallen in penodic cpcles and may dedine due to genetal market
conditsons. which are not spealically relazed 1o a partiodar company, such s
real or perceived adverse aconomic conditicns, changes in the general
autlcat for comparate earmangs, changes in intenest or curiency rafes, publlic
heatth emengencies, such & the speead of infectious illness o dsease, of
adverse emestor sentiment generally. They may also dedine due to factors
which afect a panticular industry or industeies, such as kabor shortages oe
ircrespsed producion dosls and compititnee conditions within an indiring
Dufieren types of equity saqurihes may readt diffecently to these
developments. Equity secunties and equity related investments generally have
greates macked prce volatilisy than fourg] income securilies

Cradit and Countarparty Rigks A Fund well be exposed 1o aedil nsk 1o
parties with whon it tradies and wall akso bear the risk of settlement default
A Fund minimizes concentrations of aedit nisk by undertaking transachors
wath a large number of customers and counterparies on recogrded and
reputable exchanges, where applicable. OTC dertatrve fransactions are
subject to the risk that a countesparty 1o the transaction will not fulil its
contractual oblgations s the ather party, a5 many of the protections afforded
1o ceniraly ceared dermeative transacions might not be avadable for OTC
devtwative transactions. For devivatiees traded on an exchange or through a
central counterpay, credit isk resides with the creditworthiness of

the Fund's cleaning broker. or the deannghouse iself, rathes than with a
counderparty in an OTC defivative transaction. Changes in requlation relating
1z a Fend's wse ol dersvatases and related instruments could potentially limn
of impact the Fund's abilety 10 1fvest 6 deireines, by the Fl.l.'l:l'l.-.lb!l[‘, (]
empday certain srategies that use demvatives andior adversely affect the value
of performance of dersatwves and the Fund. A Fund could lose money if the
issuer of guatantor of a foed income security, or the counterparty 1o a
financial deriatree instruments confract, repurchase agreement of a loan of
peortfolio securites, is unable or umwilling fo make tmely princepal andfor
e payments, of 1 athenwee hanor it obt cations Secuntsts and
financral derrvateve irstruments ace subject o varying degrees of credy ndk,
which may be reflected in credit ratings

Similar to credit sk, a Fund may be exposed to counerpanty rek, or the resk
that an institution o ather entity swath which a Fund has unsettled of apen
transactons will defaule FIMCO, as the Manager, minimizes countesparty
risks bo the Fends through 3 number of wiays. Prior 10 entering inko
trafsachons with & new counterpay, the PIMGO Courterparty sk
Commitiee condiscts an exterrshe credit feveew of such cournterpaty and must
approve the use of such counterparty. Furthermore, pursuant 1o the terms of
the u-jt'f,m-} oonstacy, 10 the exber that unpasd amaunts owed 1o 3 Fund
exceed a predetermined threshold, such coumerparty shall advance collateral
1z a Fund in the form of cash or seourities equal in value 1o the unpasd
amount gwed b a Fund A Fund may irdesd such collateral in secofites of
otber insoruments and will fypically pay intesest to the countesparty on the
collateral recehved i the unpaid amount cwed to a Fund subsequenthy
decreases, 3 Fund would be requined to retwin to the counterpary all or a
pamtian of the collateral privaoushy advanced. PINCO™S Mbempis o minimine
Counterpasty risk may, howeser, be unsuooesshs

Al erarvacticens in listed securities ane settiedipaid for upon delrvery using
sppiovied countespanties. The ik of default s considered minimal, as defonery
af seounies sold is only made coce a Fund has recened payment. Pagment &
made on a purchase once the securities have been defivered by the
counieiparty, The trade will Tail i either party Tails to meet its obligatsan
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[b] rtchaer Rakn In general, each Fund may be subject 10 additional risks,
inchading, but not limited o, risks related to gavernment negudagion and
intercention in Bnancial markess, operational tisks, rcks assaciated with
Tinancial, econcenic and ghobal market disoptions, and oybersecurity risks
Please refier to each Fund's oflening doosmenis for a more detailed
descriptich of the rks of irvesting n the Fund

Masket Disruption Risk The Funds ans et 1o imvsiiment and aperibional
nsks asspoated with financial, economic and other gichal market
developments and disruptions, induding those ansing from war, termoeism
market manipaation, government infenventicers, difadts and shutdawns,
polincal changes o dpfamatic developments, pubibe health emesgencies
{such as the spread of infectious deeases, pandemics and epidemics) and
naturall eevaranmental deasiers, which can 3l rnr_,.}'.r.-cf_.'lrr{:ml the
securities markits and caude & Fund tolose value Thise events can sl
impair the technology and other operational sysbems upon which a Fund's
service providers, inchading PIMCD a5 a Fund's imwestenent adviser, mely, and
could othenwie disrupt a Fund's serace peovidens’ sty to fulfill thelr
chligatians to a Fund

U5 and global markets recently have experenoed increased volatilty,
inclisdheg a5 & eesult of the recent Falunet of camam U S and nor-U 5. Banks
which could b2 harmiul to the Funds and issoers in which they imest For
example, il a bank 31 which a Fund or issuer has an acoount fals, any cash or
other assets in bank or custody accounts, whech may be substantial in size,
could be temponaly inacoessible or permanently lost by the Fund ar issuer, I
abank that provides a subsceiption liee credit faolity, ssset-based faolky,
other ciedit ‘..'||;|||r:|- andice enher tenicis b an e of 1 a fund fail, the
issuer of fund could be unable 1o draw Sunds under 25 credit Tacilines o
chiain replacement credit facilines oo ether sendoes from other lending
instauticns. with similar terms

I5susers i owhich a Fuhd may imoest can be affectid = :.'g'..flll:ry.ﬂ the: banikirsg
sector. Even if banks used by issuers in which the Funds invest remain sobvent,
continued velatidity in the banking secior could contnbaute fo, caase ar

interriady an economa lecesaon, incease the coits of capital and banking
senvices of result in the isswers being wnable 1o obitan o relinance
indebtedness at all or on a5 favorable terms as could cthenwise have been
obiained. Londitions in the banking sector are evohang, and the soope of amy
poseritial impacts o the Funds and isswers, both Brom market conditions and
alse potential hegislateee or 1egulatony responsas, ate uncerttan Such
conditions and responses, as well a5 a changing interest fate ervinanment,
can coranbune to decreased market bauidity and erade the value of ceman
hoddings, including these of S and non-U'S. banks. Contimsed market
wolatility and uncertanty andlor 3 downtum in market and economic and
Tindnecial conditions, & 4 relul of developments in the banking wector o
gtherwise [incduding as a result of delaped atress to cash or cedit lacilfties),
ol have an adverse impact on the Funds and issuers in which they invest

Governmeat Interveation in Finanelal Markets Fedenal, state, and oiher
geeetnments, Their sequlatany agencies, of self-requlstony ceganizations may
take actions that affect the requiation of the mstruments in which a Fund
imvests, or the issuers of such Evstruments, inways that are unloeeseeatble
Legiskation o regulation may also change th wary in which a Fund ool s
requlated. Sudh legilation or regulation could limit or predude a Fund's
ability 1o achieve its ewestment objectie. Furthermaore, volatile inancial
markets can expose a Fund o greater macket and liquidity nsk and potential
difficulty an valeng porfolo wstruments held by the Fund. The valse of a
Fund’s holdings is ako generally subject to the risk of futare local, nabonal, o
global ecanomic disthance hased on unknown weaknesses in the markets
in which @ Fund imvests Bn addian, i e nod certain that the U S Govesnment
wall inlervene in response bo a future market disturbamce and the effiect of any
such futune intenvention cannot be predicied. It s diffiult for issuers to

prepare for the impact of futwe financial downtuins, althcugh companies can
ek o I‘.|L‘1:!I‘.‘r‘.rd manage futuse unoeLan s thepwgh ek managemient
plogIams

Ragulatary Risk Financal entibes, such a5 imestment companies and
irnvestment addisers, are generally subject o eniensive government regqulation
and inpervention Government requiatian and'ol mlerventon may change the
wizy & Fund is tequlated, affect the expenses incurred deectly by a Fund and
thevalue of its imestments, and Emit andfor pradude a Fund s sbdity to
achiear its inoesiment abjedtve. Govemment sequlation may change
‘.II.‘\"LW“‘" a0 iy [ g o il et dofriquindis. Modedner,
gawernment requiation may have unpredictablie and uninbended eflects

Oparational Rlsk An vestment in 2 Fund, like any fund, can invotve
operatanal nisks aising from facions such a5 processing emon, human exnos,
inadequate of iafed intemal or exiemal prodesses, ielures in systems and
technoloqy, changes in perscnnel and ertors caused by thind-party sennce
providers. The ocoumence of amy of these falures, emors o beeaches coukd
eesult an @ loss of infarmation, requlatery serutiny, reputatonal damage o
other events, any of whach could have a material adverse effect on a Fund
Wihile a Fund seeks to minimize such events through conteols and oversight,
thine miry sl b fadures that coudd cause lesset to the Fund

Cybar Security Risk Az the use of technology has become more grevalent in
the course of business, the Funds have become potentially more susceptible
1o cpevational and information seqwity risks resulting from besaches in oyber
secunty. & Bbresch in cyber security nefers 1o bath mtentsnal and
unintentional cyber events that may, among other things, cause a Fund to
lerse proguistary information, suffer data coeruption andfor destnaction or lose
cperatsanal Capacty, tesullin the unaythonped newase o othir misuse of
confudential informaton, o othienwise disnupt nommal business opeatong
Cyber secunity Exlures or breaches may result in financal losses to a Fund and
s initholders. These faelures or breaches may als0 neswlt in disruptans fo
business eperatang, potentatly tesudtng in fimamcial kosses; meference with
& Fund's abdity to calouiate its net asset vahoe, process Unitholder
Transactions of athenwise branse business with Unitholders; impedements 1o
trading: vislatians of appicable piivacy and ather Lawes; equlatory fines;
penaities; reputational damage; reimbuesement or other compensation costs;
additional complianoe and oyber secutity risk management costs and othes
adverse condegquences. In addibon, substantial costs may be incuened i oider
1o peevent amy cybes incdents in the future

B. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

T Fisreds miay be subpa bo vadious netting amangements " Master
Agreements” b with select counterpartees. Master Agreements govern the
terres of certain tansactions, and are sntended 1o reduce the counterp arty rsk
aisoaated with relevant trafactions by specdiang credit pratectian
mechanisms and proveding standardization that is intended to improve legal
cestanty Each type of Master Agreement qoveims Cerlain bypes of
tramsactons, Dflerent ypes of ransactions mary be waded out of dferem
Fegad entities or affdiates of a particular angardzation, resulting in the need fior
multiple agreemsenis with a single counterparty. As the Master Agreements
i i ba Ui Gt o dilfecint et typed, 1hisy sllow aFund 19
close out and neq its total exposure 10 8 countempaety in the event of a default
with respect 1o 3l the transactions governed under a single Mastes
Agreement with 3 counserparty. For finandial reparting purposes the
Snaterments of Assets and LiabiBtes generally present denvative assets and
liabilites on a gross bases, which reflects the Tull nisks and exposures priod to
g

Mater Agreements can also help kit counterparty risk by speafyng
collateral posbing amangements at pre-aranged exposure levels. Under most
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Master Agreements, collateral is routinely transfesred & the 1
o Lilimn L 3 collateral akeady in place] governed
umder the relesant 1 with a coundeparty in 2 given acoount
excends 3 specified threshold, which typically ranges from zeno 1o 5250000
depending an the coenterparty and the fype of Master Agreement. United
States Treasury Bilk and U S dollar cash are generally the prefeered Torms. of
coflaseral, although other secunities may be usad depending on the tems

e in e applecabile Master Agreement Securities and cash pledoed a5
| are reflocted a5 asset om it pments of Acsets and Labilines o
either a component of bvestments at value {securities) or Deposits «
tounterparty. Cash collateral recerved 55 not typically held in a segregated
account and at suck e relleced as a by an the L8 4§ af Biets and
Liabilites &5 Depasits from counterparty. The market value of any secunties
received as collateral is not reflected as-a component of NAY. The Fund's

| can chandg subrtantialy withen 3 shaet
penied, as it is affected by each transaction subgect to the relevant Master
Agreement

Mariber Repurchase Agreements and Global Madter Repurchase Agreements
(indesidually and collactreely " Master Repa Agreements” ) qovem repurchase,
vse repurchase, and sale-bayback transactions bebween the Funds and

i Qo
i s, ITLLEDGN, Some i (1] Lt of ded L.
mainbenance of collateral The mark e of transachions under the Master
Repo Agreement, oollateral pledged or recerved, and the net exposure by

& ol penad end e duceded in the Notes 16 Schidule of

Master Sequntes Forwand Transaction Agreements {"Master Forwaed
Agresments”) govemn ceitan foradnd settfing raniactans, woch x TBA
secuties, delayed-delvery oo sale-buyback ransactions by and
between the Funds and select countemparties. The Master Foraard
Agreements mantain proveions. (o, amang other th abcn and
conliimanon, payment i i afin, and

rraredfer events of del
maintenance of oollateral The market value of forward settlng transactions,
cedateal pledged or received, and the net expasune by countesparty a5 of
penod end are disclosed m the Nates 1o Schedule of Investments

Customer Account Agreements and refated addenda govern deared
demvatmves ransactions such as Tusunes, options on futunes, and deared OTC
dereaines. Such rantactons requins pasting af iniay magin b detenmnid
by each refevant dearing agency which is segregated in an account at a
hatures commisssion merchant ["FCM™) engistened with the Comenodity
Frtueess, Trackeg Commisgioa {TCFTCT) In the Ulnitisd Stated, coumeipany ik
may be reduced as creditors of an FOM cannot have a daim to Fund assets in
the segqregated acoount. Portability of exposwe in the event of an FCM
delacly seenatio futher reduces nek po thae Funds mangin, of
ChudhQes N MArke] waise, ale gérerally enchanged Bt may mat be
netied between futures and deared OTC derivatives unless the parties have
agreed 1o a separate arangement in respect of fund frargining The market
il ar aocumulated unrealized appreciation (depreciation), initial mangin
posied, and any unsettled vanation mangin & of period end ae disdosed in
e Motes 10 Schedul Frrepstmenls

Insetnational Ywaps and Dervatees Asgaciation, Ine Matter Agreements and
Credit Support Arnexes 71504 Master Agreements™) govern bilatesal OTC

v transactons entered into by the Funds with select counterparties
asler Agresments mantam provisiors foe |J'|'|||'r._'|' ihligations,
Iepeesentations, agreements, colfateral posting and events of default or
tesminaticn. Evenits of termination include conditions that may entitle
Loafilhég. = 10 #ecl b I-.-fn||||.|le~-:'.|r!1- CTER T o
outstasding tanssctions under the applcatle 1504 Madter Agreement
election to temirate saly could be material to the financial statements The

B0A Master Agieement may contain additional pegvisions that add
ipaity pratiction beyand oo L'l.rjl-ul'l.':c sting daiy txporiung if the
courteparty has a dechne i credi iy below a peedelined level o as
required by requlation Simdarly, if required by regulation, a Fund may be
requined 1o past additionad collateral beyond coverage of daily mpoture.
These amounts, if any, may (o if requined by law, vall) be sageegated with a
third-party oustodian: To the extent @ Fund is required by requlation to post
addimenal oo il by catrage of dady expoture, & oould poter
ceufing #igible atuses to mest collates
h such pasting The market vafue of OTC
financal ateee instruments, collateral receied or p
exposute by countemparty a5 of penad end are disclosed
Schedule of b

=)
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8. FEES AND EXPENSES

Fund _ _ Management _ Advisory  Adwinististive  Ageney  Distibatien
FIMCO Bermuda Foreign Lows Duration Fund ) = S
PIMCO Bermuda 0.5, Low Duration Fund 12%E%
FIMCO Real Raturn Fund - 0 45% 0% 0 (12 % )
PIMCO Short:-Tarm Stratagy
FT] [145% 0 E0%

= & uso; =

 JLFT)

o« JEn

. P 010%
S
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ment, advisory and administrat

see foes, if applicable, are paid ml;r‘.hl"l.'. amears to FIMCD for r-:l;'.':J-nJ of aranging dor the peovrsian of .]J-.-W.-?-_

aned 1hird-party secnces including aued, custodial, trustes, portlohio M p e, trinsbe uf printeg sennoes. The sgendy and
distribution fees, i applicable, are paid montbly in arears 1o resmburse financial interm e that provide sepvices and distnbution redating to the Units of the
applicable Fund {or Class theseal, as applicabie) In the case of the PIMCD Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund and PIKCO Bermuda 5. Low Duration Fund, FIRCO,
out of its management fee, wil bear the costs asseciated with advisary and administrative senvices, § 1% of which is designated 1o cover administratve expenses. n
exchange foe this fee, FIRACO wall bear the costs of cartain third-pamy seraces required by the Funds, induding audit, custodial, tustee, port accounting, legal,
transfer agent and printing services PIMCO, and not Uritholders; would benefit from any price decease in the cost of such third-party services,
L] faom an ncreake i net asets bn addison, with espeet b Funds e kit e an adminitratve e, FIMCO gengtally makes a r'l;".

ron such afee

Ll Ao, Qedran F arvd Charvsees of Funds subject 1o management, adveony, Mdmeneatiave, sgeney of detnbution lees PIMCO lapan
en Rapan, is paad a fee from the kapanese Investment Trusts or other evestment vehides that invest in such Funds or Classas and a portion of
such fee is then allocated to PIMCD to compersate it for its senices, as applcable

The Funds s theregl, & applicable) may bear gtber expendes related to i tht ane not covened by the management, adviiary, admiresiratnig,
agendy or disteibution fees, including but not limited to: () tames and govemmental fees; (i) brokerage fiees and commissions and other partiolio Nancaction expenses;
osts of bomowing money, indiding interest expense; (w) extraordinary expenses, indluding costs of kgation and indemnifcation expenses; and (v} amy expenses
allocaned o allccable 10 2 specific Class of Unity, a5 applicable PMCO has paid the organizatonal expérdes amsocaed with the creation of each Fund

I OgHE )

PINKCO haes pasd thee g
Fund may be boene by the

rabional expenses asociabed with the creation of the Trust. IF further Funds are Launched, such costs directly attribusable 1o the relevant
evant Fand

10. HELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestment Adviser is 3 related paety to the Funds and is a majorsty-owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees paid 1o the refated party, il any, are
disclosed in Nede 9, and aconzed related party fee amounts, if any, are disclosed on the Statements of Assets and Liabities

Certain Funds are permined 1o purchase o el secunties from o to cenain refated afifaced funds under specfied condimions outlined in procedures adogied by the
Imvestment Adviser. The procedures have been desigred to ensure that any pusthase of sale of seounites by a fund from or 1o anather fund that is o could be
corsidend an affiliate by wirtus of haw g & commen sdeiver for alfdianed mvestment acdeisars) m effooed at the cusrent market pice. Duwring the penod endied May
11 4, the Fundis) below engaged in purchades and saes of securines Ao affiased funds (amounts in thousands )

find Prchane S
PIRACD Bermisdn Foresgn Lo Darisen Fusd § Mo [
FIC0 Bermauda U5 Low Duration Fund 5
PR Ecorpery) Medaricets Boad Fund ING 1,306 T8
PLACY) Raad Peturn Fund B0
PSR Short-Term Ssitegy 405 W5

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Unader thir Trust's oigangriiond dotuments, oertin partus {indudng the Trustes an 0h ste indemnifued dgarst oeman bhabadites thag may sise out of
performance of their dutses 1o the Funds. Additenaly, in the normal course of business, 1he Funds enter inta conracts that contain avanety of indemnification dacses
The Funds' mamimum exposure under these amangement o a5 this wiould irvolve future daims that may be made against the Funds that have not yet
occureed. Howwever, the Funds have net had pnor claims o lodses pursusant 10 These oar

15 Wit

12, UNITS DF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The Trust may ssue.up to 500, 000,000,000 Units. The Funds may have a sgnificant concentration of resk, a5 certain Usitholders own mode than ten percent of ¢
assets of each respective Fund. Such concentration of Unithelders” inserests could have a material effect on the Funds i the event these Unitholders request &
withdrawy substantial amounts of capital a1 the same time. Sulrsonpticons. and redemptions of units of the Funds are denceninated in the Funds® NAV cumency and
coimveried bo the Funds' functional camency at the spot rate on the ransaction date. Units of each Fund are issued eithout par value The Trustee, with the coasent of
e Manadges, mary m the fis i odler 30 addienal J

o o Chare of Clinides o

(=]

Changes i units af bereficial interest were as Tollows lunis and amouwnts in thousands®):

Rzl Pagert | My 31, 2600%
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Wear Ersded fear Ended Wear Ended Wear Ended
May 38, 3073 May 31, 2023 My 31, 7083 By 31, 2003
Lisirs AErint Units AT Ursts AT iUnits LT
Fxept for ooty pid 1 4 187 2 § L Zi L B39 Wi L]
KD HiA Wik N'E i Hik L 1489 ¥ BA0
Coat ol waty ridpirmnd (4] 12,000 e 11,330 (1] nasn HiA W&
M50 NIA KiA L LU Nk KA A5 5N
Wit e [dheroassl
nisgiting feam Fund it
| —— 24k I8E L L - (LTI v K
ear Eudoct s Ened Wear Ended ‘awr Enced
May 3, 2083 May 31, 2023 May 3, 203 My 1. 223
Uhndes At Units Aot Units Agncunt iUndts Amourl
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HEA Wik NI N Wik [ vl e
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JINA NIk LT 1 555 Wik R L) Kik
| LI HIA HiA ] W WA LT 1] 551
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JLE WA ik NE L1} Hih L Ha L]
| Hik Wk ral ] \1,350 Wik LY we Hik
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13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS
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Schedule of Investments PIMGD Short-Term Strategy

= =
AsiCap kelind Cagital DAC
1150t 18073 L
|50 dow 12504

1500 dow TS24
Aweainh Ll

4 500 dob DFTST023

Aarara Bavk Lad.

1 0505 dos DSOS20M

5900% due 03THHOE

Bapardiown 54,

& S0% dow 004D [T
Atbwon filabal Fanding

(1 2500 dow 01087024 i
0 dod DA/REGIA

12007 don 15132023

2504% doa DI0EAM

3 73T cow DRTAGTY

Lvalen Haldinge Fending L,
TSR dow DX YRS

5.K25% dua 13012023

Baseo Bilias Veraya Arpsataria 54,
0875 dow O ERZY

Eanco Sentander 58,

18375 dos OF2

Bk ol Aameiien Coep.

D576 due MATLTORE

1884 doe 07232004

73T don VIFTARIRY

6200 dow 0RN7024

B335 da MITHHDE

Bankep FLE

1007% dua 12RTEE4

1512 due 05000

EEC Parnars, lac,

3759 dob IAAGIZT

NP Paribas S,

15% dam DV0RTIRE

1 800 doe 0U/DB204

A.705% dot DVIRATES

DL Avaation L1,

B X555 don (326702

EPCE SA

A 1005 dob DUESIM

Cantor Firzgperald LIP

£ ATEE dow (AP0

Cisgreay, fac,

5I7EW doe 182772023 LB
5 595% dub DEU1Z024 ]
Crodet Agricels 54,

SEAT% don 0325

Creden Suriis L0

5. FET dow | 20T ) L
5855 do (20304 i
Crodet Suiime Geoap AD

T 5 due DSUSHE

BT dus DS/ITT024

Caerkn Bank A5

| 6% dun DECT024

175 dea DVERTEN

BN e 020D

Bweteche Bank A

0 B8E% dua DSIETM

05675 de 11V05302)

17000 don O3S0

DNE Bank AER

2 86E dee DIT7RP025
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FNC AL
AT

Firnt Ab Db Bank PISC

SNGH doe DNIEMS 1L 0]
5 MR Capital Corp.

U 50 dow IYHIM § &0
GR Glebal Funiing Tresn

(1800 dus 05127004

11000 duos (AOEM

L2505 doe 120270023

1 EYSH: dow QUSO8

STBEN dos DFNIOIM

B3I due DAIN200S

Caldrman Sacha Oraup. Ine,

1 THIH doe DRZPEDS

S617% dee 1Z0S28

TR dow 1172520

Hana Back

5.9 dee D1

HERC Maldinga PLC

B3R da DI11000%

TG Grvag NV

4 100 doe 15032

5 F3E% do DATIERY

B AT don 1032003

BRYI% dob 03782009

Jatksan Matiaaal Lile Glabat Funtag
B 3T dob DEDERTNM

JPHargan Chaee & Ca,

3 797% doe 0723704

AT do 12057004

B N doe 002N

63875 det AR08

LeasaPlan Corp. NV

2RI dan 104004

Mitsnbishi HC Capital, boc.

11960 dus DYDY

Mimubish UFJ Fisaneial Sieap, lse.
11 B4E don DHVST024

£ S5 dow 10177024 L
BIEITH dos 02202008 i
BBEIE do DVEEOIDY

Miraha Flasncial Givag, lac.

0 BATH doe DRBEMM

N247% dob DYDY

TN don 0FN100M4

SIPE dee DVEEZD23 M
52015 dos DVREI0M §
Margaa Stankey

1 T30 dos 050N

6. 355 don DVIIRDNS

Karmrwits Baikdang Saciety

05500 do DR300 0
63 dot 0201704 180
MatWiest Gy PLE

405 don 1300700 Lo
B S due DRSO L8
NarWen Markets PLE

B RI5% don 02720005 L]
Mamura Heidmga, lag.

IS do ONBEEDS i

2 EAE dus DUMETE2S L2200
Nandea Bank Abp

3 A% den DEDSTITE i)
B Aoy DAGEY LYo
Paik Agsspace Heldings L1,

5 500 dun D2EST024 50
Piper Sandler Cas.

52007 dee 10VST02D -x)
ONB Firsnce Led.

1. 25 dua DRI 400
B 4B du 03710204 -]

§ 8B ¢ Bk Buamus

g HHsE

g

B

§888% #E2s

- e me e

88
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P
Sautander N Group Holdiaga PLC
1 RS doe BVHSS (R B ]
4 T3 dua 1 VESTIZ4 130
SEA Tower Trust
1365 e 190804 L
Sacigty Gemerale A
2EISW doa D225 1600
875 due D350 5
4 50% dos DYDY 1
6 035 de NU12006 LR
Standand Chartered PLG
1785 due DBTNTRE o)
B 205 doa 12205 LA
6 7300 due D33E2005 L9590
Gumiimema Mitsw Finaoial Growp. Ins.
BR1% don DUVESI0E 1T
Semiteea Mitsei Trust Book L1l
01 B0 o DRI 500
00 doe M2THT04 LR
Sy oy Finarcial
450 doa DRESIM L
4375 don DALRTI4 0
UES Grwup AG
BETT5 dow DSV IT00E 1550
Vossvia Fisince BY
50007 dea 13027023 50
Wells Farge & Ca.
A con DETTTI4 (]
BPE dow DA2S00E 1000
Weapis: Bunking Carp.
45575 doe 1 VIETRY MO S000
e L e
-Elwven, bac,
0 B0 ot 03 VG224 1S
Barry Callsbaut Servines NV
3500 de DELGTTEE Lam
Batwr Intomatmaal, Inc.
S50 doe 12017423 1060
Eryer U5, Fisames 1| LLE
075 due 1ESHRT LA
S ETER dos 1205003 15
Baury Dlobal, lac,
4 B75% due DVESERE LD
Enning Lo
U R33% dus DITAGIEA L
| S50 doa (20172024 1}
Essirdenes Carp,
ARTEH dob DVESTI E
CAH Indusirial Capital 1LC
1500 e 00032003 1500
4 200 due 0V 1030
Daimler Trueh Fisssee Nerth Ameriea LLC
33355 due TADSGTEY L
Ermegy Tramder LP
1 5300% dos (RS0 oM
4 7500 dod (1204 L
4 500 dow DVESOM L0080
Fard Metar Cradit Ce, LLC
13700 dum 1 V712023 L]
Gemval Wainrs Hisaneial Co, lex.
1100 dok DIEEANZY ;1]
5 D00R dow DUATREEM 1R85
B21% dua 1 V1772023 50
Halsen U5, Capital LLG
J024% dun 02243004 ]
HEA, Inc.
5 000 dua DV IS B0E

Bl Rapert | My 1, 2210
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

L]
AT L
L] 0%
Eywndz Capsal Lmaricy
QATSH dop DR/ 1 B % A
il Bramds Finamss FLT
1 K757 due 07 2E704 11 2,350
3500 dow 07C2E0D08 0 L]
4 2500 dow 07217005 0 b |
JOE Pest's N
B30 dw D240 110 195
Miwzan Matoe Acceptance Lo, LIC
1S5 dow OS0ETM 0 5]
3 A75% doe 032172023 50 ]
Niiwman Mama Ca. Ll
TN doy (STLT00D 4500 45
MEP EV
4 BPER doe (2012004 1,000 =5
Reseaas Electraniea Carp,
1543 don 128012 m -]
3K Hypsix, fac.
1000 dow DLFEI0M 1930 181
000 don DXV T Lok
EMBEC Awia i Capitad Fimars DAL
1950 dow DATS0M 1550 1518
4 155 doe DVES2023 | L]
TO STNNEX Carp.
12500 dob D20S20M4 LS00 1415
Tramsarban Geeensland Faange Piy Lod
I 7505 don TN20DY A 00 852
Velcrwagen Gravp of America Finance LLD
3950 dos DEDEDTS i 21m 287
Wainsimntdia Ealdisgs, I
TR oy VVLOIOE 900 154
Wertisghouse Lis Brake Trehmolagins Corp,
4 800 dos OVEEM 0o X5
57,106
it [om— ;
Aangrid Finamen Pry Lad,
3 750 A 10ST0M LI o] 1
4 B3 doe 1930004 0 L]
29775 dop DI0SOM 500 I
Britinh Tabecommanications PLC
4 SO0 du 10T i 1] 541
Charier Commanieatians Dperating LLG
6945 dop 020172024 580 5521
Chogalm Plevivie Pewer Ca. Ine.
2001% doy DRIEM L] g1
Eeal Firangs lnteraatianal NV
250 dun DY IR Lh ] 451
6800 dow 1R/MTTES L300 LI
i Spl
& 00 don DRN2202Y 0 41
el Elewwrie Carp. Led.
50000 dot 1UE20M 1] L]
BHISE dow DET173023 1530 1550
Jersry Camtrad Powver & Light Ce,
4 0 do 040172024 L5 Ak}
Knrea Sambers Power Ca. Lod.
4 GAER dow 12307004 M0 3000 150
Menibra Ernargy Capital Holdings, Ins.
4555 dos 0301204 (] LR H
59600 dow 032117024 1m0 )
BO51% do (30172008 930 0
Patilic Gaa & Elesti Ca,
1 700 doa | VESDTD L300 151
2505 daw DITSTDNY L] Wo
3 00 doe DATVEZM ] ]
750 dos DTHEIM i ]
505 dog 11T i 1] ]
4 2500 dos DRO172023 n B
oo mrompary ey win

L
AT AL
L] 000
SEEP Auwtralis Avsets Pry Ll
AT50% doe DE2RHIYY M 00 % m
Shell In e matiamal Fasanod BV
ST doa IVERRT § in [ 2]
Soubers Calilersia Edisan Co.
S5 dus QAT (K11 1] E-i
Sprim LLE
T EXS% doe DE/TSCHIM L] Wl
Tinliran Cammunic stenis, las.
BAIT% dob DWYSDTS a1 1857
s
Tetal Carparate Bends & Notea T53 466
(Eeat $F56,700
-‘“ﬁ i, " .i i N
Asaisnance Agendy Aevesos Bands. Serws 2006
35 o 1HTRT03E Ha
Total Musicipal Bends & Noiew (L]
[Cent $141)
Fanig May
§ 938 due (757008 -4 £l
Federal Home Lias Bank
55000 dn (SOR0ZS Lm0 138
G E0W dow (SIS i 5000 s}
3700 dob DV HITS 550 5496
Fieddie bat
25000 doa 12SDEY (5] i
0005 dob DTS4 iy |
BT doe OUAS0EY b0 i}
4 DSE dua DITST07 HE Fiij
£ SR de D280 580 L]
515500 due DSUSC025 6.060 5588
3 A dob 02072025 L500 3587
5 B0 dow (UOLHDS EA00 58
57300 dua DANIRACS 5500 5,750
§ EMR dow 0300004 L1 1"
5 S50 dow DA2120025 81 .20 [
eara Wap
25000 due 01207043 5 A7
100 don |GDLTIHE [ =} ]
4 BB don 11287067 553 580
4 BRE: doe 07287058 13 3
5 36 due D32HT061 N 1)
§ S8 don (A20055 k] %
5706 dot 1 12072065 W6 W5
337% b DBT0T073 L0 158
Tetal VS Gavernmest Ageneies 54,103
(Cant $64, 6500
510 Apant Bached Trusi
22005 dow DESRT 548 50
ACE Seearities Carparatian Home Egsity Leas Trus
AE den ATHI0H o 115
Atrinam Hotel Partiols Trust
BIET% doy 05 TSTIS 00 EE4
Lven Fimsnce Ne.7 FLC
5005 do DSTDT0LE Gap 58 1558
BRULL Commereial Merigage Seeunives Trast
B BT do DUESTE L 0 6
B07% don DXISI0M L] 61}
Eear Searng Adjistable Rits Marigage Trust
RIS duh 02757033 L 1
A5 don (U250 4 1
Ear Searas Asset-Backhed Secuiitiea | Tran
1E55% due DRTHI0H B8 =8

193/369

L e T

AT AL
L] 000

Eaant Marngage Trmt

BT doe OUASHIE § 2000 & M0

Eiie horuai & Mar tgarge: Teeml

2 56% due DVISI054 00 1

AT o DRISAMET LG T

Broax Ko A FLE

ANTEW doa | VIEHBE 1] ]

EWLY Mangage Trean

6357% doe DFYST036 50 476

B Trest

ST den DUIEI0M LM 3118

CLNY Trast

B07% dua | VEST03E L] i)

Creden Suiss Marigage Capinsl Trast

1 7563 dow 1300050 an "

2 BREW don D35S bl B3

4% don MTST06T 136 LEL)

5 060% dos 07257058 L1E]

5 BT doa OVESG0T2 m a7

E5AN Commerial Wasrigage Trast

3 1435 dew DETSTIET L] 455

Bk FMBS Mo d DAL

4 E33% due D2287063 Bl LTE A5

Ewrnpean Loan Condus Na 36 DAC

& T5E dod DTUNTR0G9 BE o

Entended Stay Amarica Trum

BIER due O7/ES2E i T2

Finance kmerea Margage Lea Tren

5553 dos DETSI0M rrd 1m

Fremant Homs Loan Trest

0N o OLOLTIE (7. ] 1

GCAT Trumt

1 1% due (5257HRE .55 &5

1E05W don V72065 % N

GCT Commeryial Marigage Trui

5 BT dos MYEST0AN 500 an

55 Marigage-Batkad Seterities Trest

5000 don F2SHIT H5 £}

5 00 o T22SG052 |:-x] i

BPLY Trast

B 007 doa | VES03E 08 i

Eempae CWB o

5336 dob DWD5T05 & 82

STTE dos 0ADE NS L] EE]

INTOWN Martpage Trut

TEAE due DYISA03S 00 w2

JPtnrgan Chase Commerial Margage Seceriies Trmn

BT do DEIVEAOTE L] 44

B550% don 1XYSONN i} m

JPiarpan Mangage Trean

15007 dob DTSR 58 5

50005 doe 02253052 m X6

Kwbans DAC

1057 due DSTST08T EUR B2 Lo

Legasnry Marigage Asset Tremn

LETER don 15757058 L k] il

22500 doa 07257087 s ra )

Lang Beach Martgege Laan Tress

B 1035 dow DATSI035 e ¥4

MASTR Azset-Backesd Secoritien Tram

£ I da DSTLTIM L} -]

MFA Trust

K% due 07257060 LBE LHB

VATEE dop D2THT06S s El

Mill City Marigage Lasn Tront

1025 don 11257055 B 42

2750 dot DE25ES &5 Xl

Stanbey Asset Banleed Senurities Capinal [, San. Trust
B3 dow OSSO0 b b ]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

ONCPAL NCPLL NCPLL
AT LITIE AT LITIE AT LITIE

Margaa Stanbey Caplisd | Trma Aphlsa CLO XN GPRT Ll
B U2V doe OSHSTHIME § Mm% =) B0 doe DTSN § 1S & Lam B E5EE doe FNSTHIM § 1 & 10
Mergad Stankey Praidertial Marigege Laas Teent AREIT Trase Hailey Dawidaoa Welereyele Tru
5 000 des DRSS ur HE B 36 don 1 V17710 L 154 5 100 don DE/VSTIOE 5780 38
New Residential Meorgage Lean Trum 6 E1% dan 03142008 b | HERA Commential Mergage Lid.
0541% dop 15797158 ne ) ARES L L0 L. B EETH de D3R 11} 1ed
1 500 due FI2ET057 55 53 BI00 dua DAPST0TD kL] H5 Hywadui Aute Leams Seceritiration Tront
L5005 o 1575058 s W5 Barings CLO Ll SEPTY doe DS/ B e )
NavaSitar Merigage Fundag Tour B4R des DARETIEY o0 = Baveden Evrs CLO 0 DAC
§ P8R dow DUDSNE s} Lk J817% da DAV ER i 1}
NYMT Lasn Tremt L5 1AM Jubiles CLO DAC
| BT e DE75/TH1 B %0 AT don DANSHDE 21000 180
NYD Commernial Morngags Trast 50000 dow 0DOTME &) CAfl 1700 1385 JEITH dm DUKETIAN 1,000 1.0
555 dow 10/KSTI03 L9 LM EMW Vebich Leass Trust R CLG 18 Lo,
Polaria PLC 52700 dos (2SS | 1030 56 B203% don DN IEOS 4 ul 134
5 BEW: doa 05275057 GBF 516 o Ewmper De 54 LAD Aeta Receivables Trost
Freeiae Mangage Fundisg PLC 3 704% den 03737032 R 200 1135 5 2300 don DEISTHET 1.200 1,18
ST26% doa 13DETT56 L] =2 Caien CLO IV BAE L Auseri-Bacioed Secowities Trowm
Pretium Marigsge Credit Partsers | LLC 5 oy DACRTIN Lan s ] 070 o ISVETTEE Lt 41
D40 doe BET77305D § L] A Cagited Drn Multi Kaiet Evpeutima Trme mhm:mmm
Fratim Marigage Ciedn Parsers LLC 5 B3T% due O7VNSE0E7 i L0 1002 B dow DAY HE 542
1 995% due (2257161 any e Carman Luts Ownaw Tremt Madimas Park Fonding XXV Led,
Fersidemia] Merigage hoeepranes Corparation PLE 5 T2i% don DBNSINCE 1600 1501 .435% dot 072871130 - 0
S DAGHE s 05/ TT4E :13 0 k< 5 777% dos |NISHTS 1] 1751 Magnetrie KIV-R Lnd.
Residentis] Marigage Secwitien 17 FLC Caivaia Aate Retewables T B.385% dow 10NETIN 1800 Ll
551 doe DEORTOND m BE LR dow V2NDTIRS 6 ] Maa GU0 Ewes CLO 1N BULE
FESIMAC Presmied L6 Receivables Trmd AR5 due 1ESTINY EUR ] L]
S don DAIDTTET & 13 240 § 5% dow VAR e e} Markile Paist CLO M Lid.
Fratios Measgage Fanding Chesapeiks Fandisg Il LLC G200 dow 10VETT0 § e 15
§ BTN don ORDOES 313 s ] B 2T e OS50S 2557 150 Mercedes Benr Aute Recesrables Toum
Sustton Mertgags Fundisg PLT Cinkiank Credit Card lsswace Trew 5 (800 dow QVESTE 15M TA50
50835 do (VVIT05T 5 & L 15 dus DSOSTIIE 1530 1580 52605 dod 1IVSDOS L4H 1430
Strowtwred Aust lveviment Losn Trma 5 TEE dop AT HHOE 1030 1,082 MED Lol
5 B35 don DRSO § L34 1458 ial Indwarsial Fisance Corparatien Fonding Led. B 1% dow IPETIEE LEN LN
Tourus UK BAG BI2EE dow 1A i3 T3E HFIlill‘ll'Il-Ihﬂll—illvr-mhnl'ml
5 255 due OS/7/2000 GEP 1538 il Comtmge GLO IV DAG B dow O ES208 1088 )
Tharaldssa Hated Partiele Tiest ARS1E dos LTS R k] 418 MidOeeas Credu CLO N
B AR do 1AINZEM 4 aip 58 Daimder Touska Retsil Trest 53260 dob 1257003 L6350 1575
Towd Paing Marigage Fusding 5 070 dus DS/RETT L Lnd 1,480 Mdganan Credit 010 00
§ TH% dow 07207045 GRP vz} 17 Gl Equipeent Finarae Trast B Ao I200HIN (1 F) 150
B2 don [22072054 k< $B 0530 dn NI 2000 1357 MMAF Equipment Fisssce LLE
Towd Paint Marigage Fusding Lubar 14 PLC ECMOC Growp Stedont Loan Trowt 5570 dow DSDS7025 1600 1583
5 T o (SDTEY m |-H 5 A dua (107/H0EE 02 i) Maustin View C10 LLE
Towd Paint Martgege fusding umru-lll.t B ERE d DS75/067 1 M B 350R dow 100ETIS a3 o
SAT% due 1G0T 10 EFS Valwimer LLC Mavimnt Private Education L oss Taum
Towd Painn Maripage Trem B 105% dow 18257028 r ) 1 2E50% dor I2ISMES 3 3
3750 o IST57153 8 ne ¥ Ebevatian CLO Led, Mawarnl Piivate Eueation Refs Lian Touct
B B3 duw (IS2SIRE m m BATEW den 135073 Wi[E k] VPE o DR EETTRS 38 k]
B EIE da 10257053 m 15 ELF Girsduats Lusn Program LLC LI1E% don DUKSTES 550 i
Tewesr Bridge Fusdng PLE U B3 dus VAZETONS 1930 183 1 B30 dos (S/V57063 M1 8
§ TETH dow 1500054 GBF 150 181 Ertorpriee Floed Fimanciag LLC BT dow DATT0ES 1083 1,084
Tuder Fore Meetgages £ 0% dos 072072 1000 1] Melnnt Stedent Loan Trumt
4 BASY due DEOET0LE 56 ] 5 TR0 don 10TTTIES L3530 158 5 EIE% dos 032777038 L0 1081
Tiwin Eridges FLE Fand hetn Seceritiration Trent || Auset-Backed Netes 5 936% dow IT57005 13 f
57005 oy IRT1TT050 %7 £ A E doy 10TETTM CAD oy 1] § 910 dow (RTSI067 an &5
Worwn Securisiation Truwt Ferd Condin Aate Lo Trasit 58360 due (225T06E L] LiTE
SR11% dow (RS 1 00 .| 5 577% dot DE/ESTITS | L0 1,000 B0 dus OST7I2067 1) 1
'Wella Farge Commeveial Medigage Trust Fard Coeihn Autn Owasr Tresr Mizzan Auts Leass Trest
AZHEW don DN FSTONE r. ] LF] 3IH don AT el ] § DOER o 173G 500 5.8

Basked T 5EIT% dos DRSS = 10 DMK Edl Eurepean Credit Partimers VI DAC
.'.:'.".::'EI.'? o = Gallatin CLOTX Ld T4 dos 15207091 HR LA 1583

BN dok DR21/7029 m %6 BCP Eure CLO DAC

&M Finasgial hmsmabie Leasing Trus &% don 050300 2850 o L]
ACLE ELA Lad, 5815 don DEOEHES 2000 360 BELM XV Led,
B 1555 don 18161024 1585 LM3 5Ra1w con 10217204 1330 130 BMEW da DSET030 T 1535
""“ij:”‘l'"" ; &M Finang izl Corpamer Aaiwwshile Bessivabdes Tresn Falmes Square Enrapean Loss Fusding OAC
T don 4/MIZE n LU T~ P T LI LI T e AN WR @ D
Asnpbearage Capical CLO 6 L0 i Galdantren Lnan Management 1.5, £10 7 10l Pepper SRARKE Trons NaJ
53000 aoa DNVRSAR i Ll £ 5503 don 112870033 20 18 4§ BE5 con DY 12 A kT m
Ter mrempary ey min Bl Rapert | May X1, 2210
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

L
AT AL

FP L.

ST do DU/ i ®n o n

T 1% dua DF/IRG035 L0M0 35

$1C Sombent Lean Truemt

331 do IFIWT0F & &6

FMB Private Educations Loaa Trum

1 D doe OV172H5Y 58 m

B BOIRS duw [ i} k3l

BX7% do OHTSHEY ] 56

Safi Carsumer Loas Program Tress

510 dos DFISI000 7 51

62005 dos DA/ESTOY LR 1.2

Saud Paint CLO NIV Lid

8285 due D1237HOS 186 185

Saud Paist CLO XV Lol

6173 dot DUTRAMEF LE 13

Sawd Paint CLO XV Lol

B 15 don 07257008 L8 L1y

i | th Aise b Bachad 5

2% due BX2ETITY m i

Symp by Snatie CLO | Lad.

G035 daw 1TSS [:7+°] i)

Thearem Fendisg Trust

1 0% dos 1NES0Y u ']

THL Cradit Wisd Riwer CLD Led.

G40 don DA/ESTONN 1500 i L]

Towed Paind dewi Tresd

§ BMEE de 110D 55 &E1

Trales CLOH LW,

B.570 due 07202023 L3 LI

Wambare 36 CLO Lud.

63205 dus IATGET007 11 rd 1]

Wembarn XV11 €10 L1

B M0 doa UTSEET 510 500

Wempare 0OV CLO Lod.

0750 dot 01202023 [l W\

WME Fingnpe LLC

B201% doe DRAESE -7 L1}

'Weild Dam Nuts Receivables Troat

5. 2507 dua 1 VIERIE LI 1085

3300 cen OWISTE0E L0 %0

Total Lpsrt-Basknd Securition ]

[Cowt $120020

Enpait brnpeait Bank o Naiea

4 G1E% dod 1630023 Al 4000 1551

iersiional Bask for Receasirenine & Developmaar

0 20 dos DUPGTE i (-1 1] L3665

Total Savecrign looss 18ET

[Gaat #4147

[EMORT. TERM INETRUMENTS 12.1%
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

NUNES T SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT

*  Azerobalance may reflect actual smownts roursding to kess than one thousand,

(a} The allccation of Total invesiments by geographéc region a3 of May 31, 2023 is §1.2% of Nel Assels in the United States, 8.6% in the Cayman Islands, 5.6% in
the United Kingdom, 6.2% in the Japan and otihver couniries compaising of 29.7% of Met Assets in aggregate.

i) When-ssued securfty.

o} Coupon represents a yheid to maturity.

(]  Coupon represents a wekghted average yiekd o matusity.

Markat Vabon as

Marksi Puecantage ol

Ixsuer Deserigtion Leupsn it Vb Nl Asseis

Cond # G = BT $ 2003 P 135 0%

Devtmie Bank A D Ml A 018%
MEUET Btk Ll 3 1B ] 3 BEE GAT 013

Tetal Restrictod Sicurities 5 _amiz 5351 BB

BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Pavyable lar
Barevding Suttlarruni Maturity Semoeni Rawvaien Repuichisn
Countsrparty Fanw™ Oats Dats Hosry v " A
BO% o T = Py 1 140 L 1 2578 ¥ [k
Tetal Reverss Rspurchass &presmests § 2830}

Romaining Coatractual Materity of the Agieemants

Dreareigh and Gesatar Than
[:nﬂlu.m! 'I._I'g1-:| H-d.lj! 3I-!ll_gﬂ! "E?I I:l_El
Favarse Regurchase & presments
5. Gossiamint Dalit L 12630 H l L ] i 0 ¥ 263
Tatal Reverss Ropurchasa fpgreements {H (26301 3 ] ] o § [ ] ] (26100
Tatal Burevwings 5 530 4 ] ] [] ¥ [] § [FE30T]
Payabla o Fawerss Repuwrchass dgresmantis [] [FX 1T
T Bolficewireg = & somwmary by coestwparty of the morbel vabes of Bormowenge end Diher Francrg Tresactons end colaterl pledgedtne e o of May 31, 2011
in Securities with an aggregas market vaise of §2,600 his been pheoged as collaberal under the ferms of the Tollowing masber age ts a5 of May 3,
2073
Heputehise
Agreement Payable foe Totad
Proceads Farewe Papatdn for Bariowings and
toke Hepurchase Sals-Huyhack Pajableter  Orther Finanzing Colateral
Counterparty Recaived Apresmanty Trarmactions Shatl Soles Transactions  Pladped Racaivedl HltEml"
Glotrat Masze Repurchazs Agwermers
BO% 8 o ¥ [t ] ¥ 1] .3 1] ¥ e ¥ 4501 ¥ [ 1]
Tistal Bedrovings and Otk F g T i ] 0§ [0 n_ s B

ol FINENCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS: EXCHANGE TRADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED

Unrsaised
Expiratian el fpp | Vazistios Mazgin
1] I Tips Mleniih Coniracin  [Depreciati Axiai Liadsilety
WS Tty 3 Yoar Hots Santande Fues Shail Tl i | ] = ¥ 1] B [bc
Ter mremparymy min Bl Rapert | My X1, 2210
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

Unreafwd
Fal Appraciatisn) Vadimting Madgn
Dewsrigtion Contracts _ {Dpreciation] Amt Listlity
1% Tres S Year Neoe Sepiemite Futas BT [] [ri § 1] § il
W5 Trigsery 10-Viw' Rt Supincber Futeies il il 13
5 Tremss ane Suprembar Far 13 11 1] i
ULE. Tresgery Wit 30-Yew Bond Sepinmber Firtems 4 16 ] |6
Total Futures Contracts § 5 § 0§ 11841
Urninsalized
Fixad Disal Blattuwn ity Matineal Atariy fipgpreciation) Variagion Margin
I [T v - [Pay) Ratn Duata it Valus™ {lepreeiat Asaat Linhility
COX 1635 ndix 11901 [+ ] 4 B ] JE E v 5 1 ! 1]
L0 BG-AD b 110005 OEAIE Rl EL b 1
Tetal Swvap Apresmants § 01,28 § i X § ']

Tt foliowing i 2 summarny of ihe machet valse ard verton maspn of Exchasge-Traded or Centrally Dlesed Frascal Devientse bestromenss a5 of Way 31, 304

Cash of $2,938 has been pledged as collstersl for exchange-braded ared centrally cheared fnancisl derivative instruments as of May 31, 2071 Ses Nole 8,
Master Hetting Arrangements, in the Motes 1o Financial S2tements Bor more information regarding masber retting arrangements.

Finanezial Oerivative Assats Finand il Dierivarlves Liaklites
Variation Alargin Varlation Warge
Maikst ¥alus Agsat el et Walw Lisbility
Purchaced Swap Written Sweap
Dptian Futuris L Tetal Dptism Fistures hp Tetal
Tstal Exchange Traded of Cantrally Claared # o [ 33 # = ] [ I [184] & o4 [154)

[h| FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INS TRUMENTS: OVER THE COUNTER

Custraney b8 G ita Unisalined Agpe aciation D sprecintiog]
B Dl o Rsconved Al Liskility

R 138 % 210 ] E L] 1}
GEr e -t} 3 1]
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

Seitiament Carrency te Unraatarad Agpreciation Deprecialion]
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e .
Seitiermeat Carrency te Cusrency in Unrealaed woiatisniD latimn]
Countesparty  Msnlth e Dsliomrsd e Rcerved Azpat Liaility
ey & § 1,57 = [ I 1] & [ETH]
S iz ®.1 LEE R i 1
] El ) (L
Tatal Forveed Forsign Corrency Contracts ] 2015 8 M.86811
T folicrwing = 2 memmary by costerpay of the madtet vakon of 0TC francal derneave instromencs aad ool enal pledged mavvesd as of My 31, DT33

Cash of $3,080 has been pledged as collateral for 6 il [ ts 45 7 d by Inbernaticnsl Swaps and Derivatives Association, Ine, masber
agresments as of May 31, 2023,
Finaneial Derivati Assets Fmncial Dovivative Liabilities
Frarward
Tatal Feesign Taial Mad Markei [eifateral
Purchased Swevap Ower tha Currency Written Tecap Owver ha  Valwe of 0TC  Pledged’ Ned
Counterparty Dprioms Ageementi Causter Contacts Diptipns Agresmaniy Causter Darivatives  (Recsived] Expasups’”
i 0 § 1] ¥ 4 | (L] { | 1] § 1] L] 1481 3 L] | [ (] i
B (] 160 [ ] ] L5 ]] 131 r] i
b 1] bri ) {5 b 1] 1] frsd B3 i
0 1] ] m 0 1] (k1] (L] iy 1k
o ] 1] . | b ] 1281 e ]| o 1
0 1] ] ] ] al il [ I
B (] n ] ] 1621 (]} 2 I
b 1] 3 o ] 11,1151 A 1,01a 5
0 1] k) 0 1] 41 [i-20]] 1,058 50
! o ] 1] b ] i] 1] 1 b
1 0 1] A ] ] ]| 15 1] 0 3
195 o ] L ] b (Rt i] L] H 11
5 b 1] ] b 1] [rali]] ik 1] 1 k=
1£1 0 ] 141 0 1] -1 [ ] & riFl
Tatal Dvar the Cosntai 1 75 4 '] 13 [ ] § 1035 4 ] 3 '] § H,6611

AR WALEE OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Thse following & & surmmary of chay far oo af o Fund's dersartve mstraments catsgonesd By re mgesste. See Nate 7, Poocpad and Gotser ks, i the Moo 19 Fsaaca! Sswemns oo reks of the Fusd

Faie Valdeini 2 Finansisl Darfuwiive lrviremanis on the Stabervenis of Assets and Liabelices e of May 31, 2023;

Davissmtives. nat seeousted | o ae hasdging inatiamants

Fereign Inter esst
Comimadty Cracht Equety Cusrancy Rate
Caantracts Cantracts Contrasts Contracts Comtracts Tetal
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The EHect of Financial Derivative instruments: on the Statements ol Operations for the parssd ended bay 31, 133

Dwrivatives nat sccounted | as hedgang instraments

Forsign Intewest
Commmadity Cradil Equity Curemacy Rate
Cantracts Contiats Contract Contracts Camiracts Total
Nt Realired Gain (Lead] on Fisans il Dariaative beinemeiiy
Exthange-traded or cestialy chiarad
ot ] 1] ] 1] i 1] ¥ ] % 1 11M
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] 1] ) 1 1] |3 & ¥ L8
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Wirtnm Dptiaa o i ] L] i ull
¥ 1] i i} H 1 i 16751 E iz ¥ 216
¥ 1] i (A1 ] 1] ] 167541 [] 2EM i 1810
Ned Change m Unrealized Appreciatisn Depreciationd sn Financial Derivative Instiomeats
Exchangu-micid o pestidy citared
fuore ] ] i ] i 1] % 1] ] i i i
Smih Agiimirtandy 1] 3601 ] '] = 105
: b i i::0] H ] 3 ] ] T8 ]
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% o ] ] i [} [ i 5 4 3 B3
4 ] § [EEET § ) § 3 an ¥ 3 A
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2022 31
2022 31
481,769 70,435
0 0
644 94
1,159 169
0 0
2,824 413
0 0
27,445 4,012
TBA 557 81
275 40
1,631 238
0 0
516,304 75,484
18,845 2,755
25,856 3,780
346 51
1,162 170
9,482 1,386
TBA 1,115 163
1 0
1,620 237
4,151 607
0 0
0 0
123 18
0 0
0 0
28 4
152 22
0 0
104 15
62,985 9,208

453,319 66,275
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498,531 72,885
0 0
0 0
(20) (©)
0 0
38,678 5,655
35,110 5,133
299,959 43,854
536
458
2,822
72.19 10,554
100.63 9,538
76.58 11,196
9,852
106.29 15,540
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2022 31

6,886 1,007
0 0
6,886 1,007
196 29

160 23
1,324 194
220 32

146 21
1,520 222
44 6

37 5

300 44

147 21

5 1
4,099 599
2,787 407
(4,667) (682)
0 0
7,046 1,030
(16,161) (2,363)
149 22
(13,633) (1,993)
(21,852) (3,195)
0 0

418 61
1,928 282
) €H)
(19,513) (2,853)
(33,146) (4,846)
(30, 359) (4,438)

0 0
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2022 31

2,787 407
(13,633) (1,993)
(19,513) (2,853)
(30,359) (4,438)

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

. (96,952) (14,174)
(127,311) (18,613)

580,630 84,888

453,319 66,275
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2022 31

79.23 11,583
() 0.26 38
(7.30) (1,067)
(7.04) (1,029)
72.19 10,554
(b) (8.89)
© (2.08)
38,678 5,655
0.90
0.88
0.34

0.01
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2022 31

91.60 13,392
(a) 0.41 60
(15.43) (2,256)
(15.02) (2,196)
76.58 11,196
() (16.40)
© (2.19)
35,110 5,133
0.77
0.75
0.47

0.01
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2022 31

108.33 15,838
() 0.36 53
(2.40) (351)
(2.04) (298)
106.29 15,540
(b) (1.88)
299,959 43,854
0.93
0.90
0.33

0.01
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2022 31

2001

2017 29

PIMCO

BBH
BBH

2006

JITF
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US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP

JITF
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2020 FASB LIBOR
Accounting Standards Update ASU 2020-04
ASU 2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR LIBOR 2023
30 LIBOR
ASU

NYSE
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NYSE NYSE

PIMCO

NYSE NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE
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PIMCO

NYSE

US GAAP

214/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

215/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP

ETF

NYSE
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ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE

01S LIBOR
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US TIPS
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FHLMC
FNMA
FNMA
FHLMC
PC
2019 FNMA FHLMC
TBA
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FNMA
FNMA
PC
FHLMC
TBA
UMBS
FNMA  FHLMC
TBA
TBA

TBA
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PIMCO
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0TC
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund disoussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds” ], which atso indwdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class” and coffectively,
the “Clisses”™), 1 a series rust of FIMCO Bermuda Togst (the “Teowsa ™), an operrended unil tngst establshed undet the L af Bermrada a5 & mulli-Senes wus o e
1o & trust deed executed by Winchester Global Trust Compamy Limited on Auqust B, 2001 (25 amended from tme io ume, the “Trust Deed”™) Efectve & of the dese
of business (Eastern tme) on September 29, 3017, Maples Trustee Sendces {Bermuda) Limied (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 trustes of the Trust. Pacdic Imeestment
Management Company LLC ("AIMCO", the “Manager™ or the "Imestment Adviser” ) i the sponsor of and was responsible bar stnucturing the Trust

Beoven Ercthers Hameman & Co. {"BBH"] has entened snlo an agreement wath $tate Stret Cosporation {5tate Street™} under which State Ssreet will aoquire BBH's
Imvestor Sennces bumimess: which indudes 1ts austody, Tund accounting and administrabon, ttansfer agency, depesany, faregn exchange, trustes and secunties lending
senvices. The completion of the transaction & subject to Customasy dosing conditions and requlatory approvals

The Towst is subject to regulation and sopenvesion as provided for in the Imestment Funds Act 2006 and related nules relating 1o standard funds.

The terms. of the Trust Deed conder upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the powes, in the future. to establish Turther funds in addition to the Funds
curnently In operation as of the date of this et

References 1 wnitholders (ach, & “Usitholder™, aed collecthvely, the "Ursthelders™ ) i, o units of (or an imeestment in), the Fund dhall mean Unithalders of the Fund
who hold units, or dlasses of units (a5 applicable), which are atiributable to that Fund

The Funds peesented in this report e listed below

Fund [ffared tn
| AME0 Bermests Foregm Low Deraton Ford Dritared ondy in bonds wish & Fond of Fonds " vnacnem, a5 dedeed i (he rades ol e Invesomans Trom
AMC] Berraals U 5. Low Durateon Fusd hizoartun, Japan, of 13 eads wih 8 pesler sirctors m sy ather pradcien

AMEC0 Ervarging Markoes Sorad Fund LATF
AMCD Emergng Markets Bored Fund [V-sedged|
| ANCD Erirgeg Madkti Bused Fosed |

AN Ew'a Tatal Ratwin Fendl [Hfwresd 1o tetad sertons i Japan by vy of pubiic abieang thioogh & duinbater m . Japan, aad iy
AMED Rl Atom Foeel b EfTared 10 ek ety o thay detrmtinn of the Rlasagr
| AMDD Shedt-Terms Srasigy” Oftpind 16 dotad crpibins o Ja pas by ey of public ofesng [hroogh o utribgtal asdied & fals
| haning company I Jpan, #ad ey by ofered o other et 4 the ceceeien of the Masager
| ANED Emargeng Markts Bond Fosed (Wi DHptne aaly to ot Fundh 12 arve it 00 oo byng, et trsie! vtme b ot g Ry
| - 7 w “ v . > T Eo| o r " ~ oy e ™

e i v Ja oy UML) et Tars Seatepy d vy b it et o

n st LB Beod o Stearuy i oy i ot i B e e ek g AeE

Units of the PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund, FIMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD, P, and USD Classes of FIMCO Short-Term Sirateqy have been registered under the
Fnancial Instruments and Exchange Law of lapan Units of each of the remaining Funds and the C {USDY, 1(#Y), and ) (USE) Classes of PIMCO Shen-Term Suategy
hariee it s and e nod ustently expeciad S0 53 registirid under the Financal Insteuments and Exchange Laww of Japan Accordingly, such Unity al thiste Funds Ry
nothe, directhy of indirectly, offiened in Fapan or 1o amy resident in Japan, excepd in compliance with applicable lapanese laws and requlatians

2. EIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fellowing is a summary of sigrifcant accounting policies corsistently Tollowed by the Teust in the preparation of its financial statements in conformity wath
accounting prexiples generally scoepied in the United States of America ("5 GAAP®) Each Fund & treated a5 an imvesiment company under the repotng
requeements of U3 GABP The preparatcn of financal statements in socordance with U 5 GALP requeres mansgement 1o make estmates and assumpiions thag
affect the reponed ameunts of assets and Babilites and disdesure of contingent assets and labilities ag the date of the financal statements and the reponed amounts
of increases and decreases in ned assets from operations during the teporting peried. Actual nesults could differ fram these estimates

la] Acwmired Fumds The Trustes and the Manager miy spply all ar & portion ol the mser of FIVMCD Emaging Markets Bond Fynd (ITF), PIMCO Emenging Makats
Band Fund ['I'l:ﬂ'H[‘\dql:d:l_ and P'I?\H:I:}E-'!&c'glru; Markcets Bond Fund I feach relenad no herein a5 3 “Fund ol Funds® or the '.ﬂu;r;.. al Fursd® which ewests in cther
Funds) 1o the repecte credi of the PIMCO Emenpng Markeds Bond Fund (M) (relemed to hensin & an “Aoquined Fund{s) ™) Ay assets 20 splied wall be held m such
Mpgueed Fund(s) as i recenved diredtly, Where 3ssets are 5o applied, the Aoguzed Fund(s) will recond the issuwe of urits to the relesant Acguaning Fund at the issue prce
per unit of susch units and will repurchase such units at the repurchase price per unit of such units at the time of repurchass:

Ranos showm in the Fmangial Illthlth-:. do ngl inclyde apendes al the Acgued Fundis] See Nate 2 Fees and Expendes, for Burther information regandng fund lees,
a5 appiscable

[t] Securitins Transactions and Investment lacoma Secunties ransactions ace recotded as of the trade date for Snanoal reparting purpeses. Secunites purchased ce
sold on a when-issued or delayed-delivery basis may be settied beyond a standard settlement penicd for the security afier the trade date. Realized gains and losses.
from securities sold are recorded on the identified cost basis. Dividensd intome is tecoeded on the ex-daidend date, except cevtam dridends from foseign secunties
whede the ex-drdend date may have passed, whach ae receeded a5 soon & a Fund is informed of the ex-daadend date Interest income, adjusted for the accrersn of
discounts and amwoetzation of premiums, is recordied an the acorual basis from setthement date, with the exception of securities with a forward starting effective date,
where intenest income & recoeded on the accrual basis from eflecive date. For comvertible securities, premiums atinbatable to the comversion Teatuee ane nol

Rovseal Wapart | Moy 1, 202
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fNotes to Financial Statements co

amortined Estimated tax lisbilities on certain foreign secutities ae recondied
oit a0 sccrual basis and are rellected a5 components of interest income of hiet
thange = unrealized appreciation [depreciation) on investments on the
Statements of Operations, as appropriate. Ta liabilites realized as a result of
such seaity sabes ane reflected a5 3 component of net realeed gain Dossh on
imeestments on the Statements of Operations. Pagdown gairs and lesses on
morigage-refated and other asset-backed secunities, if amy, are recoeded as
compranents of intenest income on the Statements of Operations. Debt
whligatans may be placed an nea-accnesl status and related intetest ingome
may be redwoed by ceasing cument soouals and writing off interest recenable
when the tollection of afl or a partion of interest has become doubtiul based
on commtently soplied procedunet. A debt abligation 15 removed from non-
acaual stabus when the kssuer resumes intenest payments of when
codlectabibity of intesest s probable

Ie) Cash and Forelgn Corresey The fnanoal statements of each Fund are
pregeniied g thi curiéndy of 1he Py B{ORGTES Sinaron ment in viehsch 1
operates (the "functional curency”™ ). The functional cuerency Bor each of the
Funds 15 listed in the below table

The market valoes af foreign securities, owrency holdegs and other asets
and lianilives ace trandated se each Fund's funceanal O ey baxbed an the
currendt enchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secunties
and ircome and expense iberrs denominated in foreign curences, if any, ze
translabed into each Fund's tespective functional cummency at the exchange
rate in effect on the transaction date The Funds do not separately repo the
effects af changes in boreign exchange rates from changes in market prices en
secunines beldd Such changes are includied! in ned readaned and net :ha‘gﬂ. i
unrealized gain or loss. from imestments on the Statemernts of Operabions

The Funds may imvest in foreign curency dencminated sequwities and may
engaqe in foreign curency transactions either on a spot [gash) basis at the
e prevailing in the currency exchange markel o the time o thiough 2
Fearward foregn currency contract. Realized foreign exchange gains of loses
ansireg from safes of spot foreign currencies, curency gains or losses reakized
between the trade and settlement dates on secunties transactions and the
difference between the recorded amousts of dradends, interest, and foreign
wathholding tades and the functional aamency equivalent of the amounts
acsually recenved of paid ace included in net reatcred gain or koss on foeesgn
CuReny ramachorn on the Statements of Operatons. Net uerealoed faregn
exchange gains and losses avsing from changes in foeeign exchange rates an
feeeign dencemnated assets and habdites other than investments in secueities
heeld e the end al the |('p-¢r!i|v:l| pruid aré wchudid 10 Ret l;h;ngr i
unrealzed appreciation of deprecation on fareign currency assets and
ligbikties on the Statements of Operations

The Het Asset Value ["NAY") and total ceteens of cortain Fumds {or Classes
theemal, a8 apphcable) are presented in 1he :_um.u'l:.',-1m whach the HAY i3
reparted (the " NAY currency”) as detailed in each Fund's Offening
Mesmarandum {the " Crifering Memarandum™). For the pupeses of the
presentation of the KAV and the total neturm in the MAY qumency, the
beginning and ending NAVS are comerted using the penod beginning and
ending exchasge rates, respecively, and daimbutions are comverted wsing the
exchange rate at the time of the distnbution. See the following table for the
NAY cumency of each respective Fund

Functonal
FundfTamr RAY Carraney o
| ML Bermsds Fesgs Low Dhaetion Fusd Sagana yan LA 5. dofai
|- PIACT) Bermada U 5 Loww Dication Fund bazanem yan 125 dolar
PSMCT) Exmargeng Markots Bl Fund LITH Jazanem yen LS. dodar
PSMCT Emergmg Markts Bondl Fund (RS 5. dofar 125, dollar
LI |

ForeChe WAy

PIMCD Ermenging Mackets Bord Fond [¥en-Hedped| Japasese yen UE doflar
PIMED Ernecgng Markets Bord Fand B Jepanese yen LS dolls

nJiBR

. J e

= IR

Ik

= JITRY]

L L]
PIMED Fues Total Return Fund fira Furg
KD Real Retorn Fuad US della IS doflae
PMCD Short-Term Strategy

= A Fezatraean defar U5 doflar

a CHED U% dolte U% doll

= JUP Japreese yen U5 doflar

= S Jpaneme ymn 115 dabar

. JF Japanene yen U5 dollar

L U dollar U5 doflar

4 Mubticluss Operutiona Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
righas to the awsets ol the Fund equa to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, a5 spphcable, except for specific sssets and gaing a0d losses designated
1o @ Class relating 1o curency hedging operations. Income, non-Class specific
expenses, and non-Class speciic reakzed and wnmalized capstal gains and
lerises ane allocated to each Class of units bursed on the relatne net assets of
each Class of the respectve Fund, a5 applicable Class spedific expenses
curzently indude management, advisory, administrative, agency, and
drirbunon fees, when apphcable

o} Distribution Poliey The dollowing Labile shoves the anvcpated frequency
ol dstnbutions for each Fund Desirbutices Tram each Fund may be diclaed
and distributed to Unitholders anly opon the authodization of the Manager,
which authonzation mey be withheld at the Manager's disceetion

Declared Daily and Paid Mosthly:

PNCD Ewn Tatal Return fusd

Declared and Paid Musthly:

PIMCD Emerging Markess Bond Fand LITA
PINCD Emerprng Maskets Bond Fund fen-Sadged]
PIMC Emerpeng Markets Bond Fand 1l
PN Sters:Ferm Sirategy
" UM
- JHLSD)

PINCT Bermeds Fosmge Low Dusminn Fund
PNCD) Biarmads U S Low Durartion Fond
Daclared and Paid Annually:

PINICO Rl Rastern e

PMCD Shors-Term Stranngy

"
= Cjusm
LR |
L ]
The Masager does met sxpest 1o declass dhitribetions with respest to this Fund
o Clazzes thereol, il applicablel but may, in its ditcretion, declare and pay

ki 1 it s ot any time,

PIMCD Emerpang Markets Bordl Fond i

vl R | Wy 31, D02 =
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Distributions, if any, will generally be made from the refevant Fund's [or
Class's. o applicable) net imvesiment income In addgion, the Manager may
authoree the payment of red realized capital gars available for distrbution
Additanal distributions may be dedaned a5 the Manager deems sppropeiate
Distribusions pasd with respect 1o any Fund (or Class thereal, if apphcable)
wall reduce the AV of such Fund [or Class thereal, if applicable). A2 the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distedbutions from a Fund (or Class thesod,
il applcabile] may esther be remvested in addmonal unats of a Fund (or Class
thereaf, i applicable) or paid to a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the NAY cumency of the Fund Each Fund (or Class thereof, if
applicable) may dedaee further distibutions i corsadered necessary i onder
ta maintain a reasonable level of distribations for a Fund for Class thereaf, i
applicable) In the event that there is inadeguate net income and net realzed
capital gains w pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereal, if spplicable)
requized bey the Offering Memarandum, the Manager may pay a distrbutian
comsisting of a portion of the capital of siech Fund (or Class thereal, if
applicable) Dismbutions not collecied wathin s years. from their due date
woill Lagrie and wall acerue to the bimehit of the sebevant Fund (o Class thereal,
il appleatile]

[f] Newr Aczounting Pronsussemants and Regulatory Updates (o Warch
2020, the Finanaal Accounting Standards Board ("FASE™) sued an
Accounting Standands Update ("ASU”), ASU 3020-04, which provides
opticnal quidance 1o eie the potental adounting buiden asocated with
ransitaming away from the Lendan Intesbank Offered Rate ("LUBOR™) and
other reference rates that ane expecied to be discontinued ASU 202004 i
effective for ceimam eference rate-related contract madificazions that ogos
during the penod March 12, 2000 theough December 31, 2022, 1n March
2021, the admiristrator for IBOR anncunced the extension of the publication
of a magority of the USD UBQR settings %o June 30, 2093 Management is
continuoushy evakaating the petential effect a ducontinuatoan of LIBOR could
hawe on the Funds’ irvestments and has determined that it is unBitely the
ASU's adoption will have a material impact on the Funds” financal
SLAlLMEnts

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

|a] Investment Valuation Policias The prace of @ Fund's urats & bhated oa
the Fund's MY The MAY of aFurd, or each of its Classes, as applcable. is
determined by disiding the tatal value of portictio mvestments and othes
assats atirbautable to that Fund or Class, ket amy habilines, By the 1oal
nurmbser of units outstanding of that Fund or Class, On each Fund's Dealing
Diary (as described in the ourent Offenng Memorandum of the

Trest), Fund units ane onfinarily valued as of the cose of reqular rading on
e Mew York Stesck Exchange ["NYSE Close”) Information that becoees
known bo the Funds of their agents after the time as of which NAY has been
caboudated on a particular day will nes generally be used to retmactreely adjuit
the price of & wecutity or the BAY determaned eathier that diy Each Fund
resenves the raght 1o change the time a of which its MAV & clodated il

the Fund doses earbier

Far purpeses of caloulacng WAV, portdolio secuwitues and other et for
which market quotes ae readdy available are valued at market value Market
walue is genenally determinad an the basis of official dosing prices or the Last
O Sales preoes, of il ro sabis are ceported, Based on quabes chlaned
fram established marker makers or prices (including evaluated prices) supphed
by the Funds™ approved pricing senvices, quotation reparing systems and
other third-party sources (logether, *Pracing Senices™) The Fands will
nermally wse pricing data for domests equity seouites recened shomly aler
tie WYSE Close and do mot nomially take into account trading, dearances oo
satthements that taxe place after the NYSE Close M markes value NG
wiad, & Toeengn {man-U S ) equany secunty oraded an a foreign exchange o en

more than ane exchange is typically valued wsing priang information from the
exchange cordadeced by PIMICO 1o be the primary enchange. A Toresgn (ron-
U5 ) ety sevcurniny will Be valued o of the dese of vading on the Teeelgn
exchange, or the NYSE Closa, if the NYSE Close cocurs before the end of
trading on the freign exchange. Domestic and faneign (non-U 5.) lined
imcome seculitees, non-exchange traded derratives, and equity options are
nommally valwed on the basis of quotes ohtamed from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Seraces using sach dna reflectng the poncipal markets for those
secunties. Prices obtained fram Pricing Sennces may be bised on, amang
other things, information peovided by market makers or estimates of market
values cbtained fom yield data relating to imeestments co secuities with
sy chatacieistics. Cemain feed income secunties purthased on 3
detayed-dalvery basis are marked to market daily wntil settlement at the
forevaed settlement date Exchange-traded apticns, except equity options,
futures ard options on Tutunes aie valosd o1 the settlement price determened
by the relevant exchangs, quotes ohtained from a quatation repoming system,
established market makers of prcing senices. Swap agreements are valued
on the basis of market-based prices supphied by Pricing Services of quoies
ciitaired from brokers and dealers. A Fund’s imestments in opsen-end
manajement imvesiment comparses, ather than exchange-traded funds
(7ETFs™), anevaluisd at the RAYS of weh imesiments

W a Bareign [nan-Ul 5.3 equity security’s value has matenally changed aftes the
close of the secunty’s pnmary exchange of principal market but before the
NYSE Close, the security may be valued at far value based on procedurnes
eitablished and approved by the Manage: Focesgn [Ron % ) equsty
secunties that do not trade when the NYSE & open are also walised at fair
value With respect to forsign (non-L.5.) equity securities, a Fund may
dAetpimane e L vilos of imiments babed an infaimanan poimacked bry
Pricing Senvioes and ether thind-party versdors, which may recommend fas
value or adjustments wath reference to other securities, indices or assets In
congidersng whether Bar valwation is requined and in determining Lai

values, & Fund may, among ather thengs, cansider sgnificant events (which
may be considened to indude changes in the value of U5 securnities or
secursties indices) that cocur alter the close of the celeant market and before
the NYSE Close. A Fund may utikze modeling tpols paoided by thind-pary
vendoes to determine Far wabues of foreign (non-L.5 ) securties. For these
puipses, any movement i the appdcable reference indik or intrument

(" zeto thggee” ) Between the eaclier close of the apphicable fansign masket
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 1o be a significant event, prompting the
application of the pricing model (effectively resultmg in daily far

valuations). Foregn enchanges may persif trading i Toeeign (mon-U 5 )
exquity securithes on days when the Trost is mot apen for business, which may
result an a Fund's portfolio investments being affected when Unitholders are
unabihe 10 buy of sl uets

Senior secwred foating rabe foas for which an adive secondary market exists
1o a reliable degres will be valued 31 the mean of the last avalable bid/ask
prices in the market far such loans, a5 provided by a Pricng Senvice Senior
secuned Tloabing rate loans far which an active secondary macket does not
exish 10 a meliable degree will be walued at fair value, which is intended to
aproximate matket value. |nvaluing a sensot secured floating rate daan at
Tar value, the Tactors consadered may include, But ace not limited 5, the
followang: (2] the credtaanhiness of the borgwer and any mtermediate
particpants, (b the terms of the loan, {c) recent peices in the market for
amiar loans, i any, and (d} recent prices o the market for irstruments of
semilar quality, rate, period wiil nesdt inbesest rabe reset and matuity

Ierestments valued in currencies other than the functional cumensy

ol & Fund are comeerted o the Tunctional CUMiEncy UsIng éxchange rates
citaired from Prcesg Services. As a result, the value of such imestments and,
in tuen, the MAY of the Fund's urits may be affected by changes in the valus
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of currendies in relation 1o the functional curmency. The vatue af imeestments
Iranded iy ‘.‘H:ﬂp‘: markels of denominated in ourendiEs ifs than

the functional currency may be afiected significantly on a day that the Trust is
notopen for business. As a result, o the exnent that a Fund heodds foeeign
{reori- AP 5 ) imvestmendts, the value of those imestments may change at times
when you cannot purchase, redeem of excharge units and the value of such
imvestments will be reflected in the Fund's next calodlated HAY

Imvistmanas bor which markes quotes or market-based valuations are not
readdy mvalable are valoed at fair value 5 determined in good Ewh by

the ddanages or persons acting at theer direction. The banager has adopted
mathods Ror valuing securities and other assets in crcunrstances where
marked quites ane ot readily ivalfable, and had delegated to PIMLO the
respansibility for applying the far valuation methods In the event that market
quiotes or market-based waluations are not readly available, and the security
of asset cannol be vilued puriuant 1o a Manager spproeed valaation

mithod, the value of the secusity of Zset will be determined in good faith by
the Valuzation Committes Mariet quotes are considered nat readily available
in arumstances whese these is an absence of curnent o reliable markes-
based data (e g, trade infoimation, bediask infarraation, indcative market
quictatices " Broker Quates ™), Pricing Services’ prices), induding where
eeents cocur alter the clase of the melevant market but priar 16 the NYSE
Clase, that muatemally affect the values of the Fund's seountes of aseld
addition, market quotes are considered not readdy available when, due 1o
extracedinany drourrslances, the exchanges of markiess on which the
seamhed fade da not opiEn e |r.1d|:|:_| Tee thi nbine dig and 0o aither
market praces are avallable The Manager is responsble for monitonng
significant events thad may materially atfect the values. of the Fund's secunties
of sty And fai dieim riry wehither the viluie of the appheatle Secunbied of
assets sheuld be reevaluated in gkt of such significan evenis.

‘When a Fund uses L valuation to determine the valee of a portiolio seounty
of other aseet o puspodes of calculating rts MAY, such mestmens will not
be priced on the bass of quates from the primany market in which they ane
traded, but rather may be priced by anather method that the Manager o
persons. acting 31 their direction believe reflects fair valse: Fair valuation may
requse subjecive determinations about the value of a secunty. Wide

the Teust's poficy is intended to resuit in 3 caboulation of a Fund's MAV that
Fairty refects security values as of the time of prigng, the Trust cannat ensure
thart o vaboes determined by the Manager or perions acting af their
direction would acowtately reflect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security if it wene to dispose of that security as of the time of pricing {Bor
instaerce, i & forced of distressed sale) The prases uioed |.';r & Furnd may d Hay
Tram the value that would be reakzed if the securities were soid

[t] Fair Value Hisrarchy L 5 GAAP desoribes fai value as the prce that

a Fund woubd receive 1o sell an asset oo pay to transfer a hability in an ondecly
transaction Between market particpants at the mexuntment date I
establshes a fair value kieratchy that priortzes inputs to valuation methods
and requires disclosure of the Bair value hierarchy, separately for sach major
catRgany of aveets and liabidaes, that G BN [air value measueements inle
leveds (Level 1, 2, or 3) The inputs o methodelogy wed for valuing securities
ane not pecessanly an indication of the risks assoniated with imeesting in those
securities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined as doliows

= Level 1—{ugted prices in active markets or exchanges o identical assets
and linlites

= Level —Signilicant other chiservable inputs, which may indlude, but are
nod limited 1o, quoted peicss for samilar assets o habilties in markess that ae
active, quated prices for idertical oo similar assets or labilibes in markets that
ane ol active, inputs osher than quoted prices that ae observabile Tor the
assets of babdite (such a3 inbesest naness, weld cunves, volatiktes, prepinrmn]

speeds, lous sevenities. cradit risks and default rates] or other market
comoborited mputs

B Level 3—Sigrsficant unobsercable inpuis based on the best infarmatian
availdble in the droumstances, to the extent cbsenvale inputs ae nat
available, which may inchode assumptions made by the Manager or persons
actinng o their deectian that ane used in determining the Lar value ol
restmEnts

I accondance with the requeements of U5 GAAP, the smounts of transhers
w1 and ot of Level 3 matenal, are disclosed in the Notes 1o Schedule of
frevestments for each respectre Fund

For Fair valuations wseng sigrificant unobservable inpats, 115, GAAF requires
16 deaclose bransbers mio and out of Level 3 ol the Fair value hieraechy and
purchases and msues of Level 3 assets and habilites during the pernicd
Additionally, U5 GAAP requres quantitathe information regarding the
1~qn||||.ar1 unkigarable snputs wied i the determinatan of T walue of
Fusets of liabilines categorzed as Lesel 3 in the Ear value hiscarchy Bn
acooedance with the tequirements of U5 GAAP, a fair value hieranchy, and
materal, detaiks of significant wcbservable nputs, have been indeded in the
Motes 10 Schedule of knestments Tor gach respectie Fund

{g] Waluation Technigees and the Fair Yalun Hisrarchy

Lavel 1, Level 2 and Loved 3 trading assats and trading liabilises, at

fulr vabes Tha valuation methiods o2 “techrigues”™) and significant inputs
used in determining the fair walues of portiolio secunities of other assets and
fabilives categoeized as Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the far valee Meranchy
ae as ollows

Fined miome secuntaes evcluding coipangte, cofvertible and mumapal bends
and netes, U S gowesnment agencies, U5, reasury obbgations, soveteign
rsues, bank boans, oomeertible prefermed securities and non-U 5. bands are
namealy valwed on the basis of quotes obtamed from brokers and dealers or
'~‘:u;|r1 Sevooes that e broker-dealer quatations, ieported Jrades or
valuation estimates feom thelr intermal pricing models. The Pricing Sennces’
irtemnal models use inputs that are cbservable sudh as issuer details, enterest
rabes, pekd g, prepayment spends, onidit nikatipnesd, defauds ranes and
quobed prices Tor similar sssets. Secuntes that use smilar valuatian
techriques and inputs a5 desoribed abowe are categonzed as Level 2 of the
{ar valye h|m.1r-.'h:|-

Fixed income secunities purchased on a delayed-delvery basisor as a
repurchase commitment im a sale-buyback trarsaction are marked to markes
daily unsd settlernent at the forward settlement date and are categorized as
Level 7 of the far walue hetrandy

Mervgage-related and asset-backed secunties are usualy osued 3 separate
tranches, or classes, of securitios within each deal. These securties are also
noimally walued by Frscing Sennces that ube brake -deafer quotabond,
reported trades o valuation esbmates from their infemal peicing modets. The
pricing madels for these saowites usually consider tranche-leved attributes,
cunent market data, estimated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for
exch ranche, and incorparate deal collateral performance. as available
Mertgage-related and asset-badoed secunities that use smslar waluaton
techeagques and inpuls o desorbied abowe ane categonzed a3 Level 2 ol the
Hair value hierarchy

Cemmon stocks, ETFs, exchange-fraded notes and finanoal dervatme
irstruments, such as futures conteacts, nghts and warrants, o ophions on
fubures thar are traded an a national sequrities exchange, are stated a1 the
st reporied sale of settlemnent peice on the day of valuation To the extent
s securnties ane actvely traded and valuation adjustments ace not applied.
thiey & categorned a5 Level 1 ol the Tair value hieraechy
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Investmends vakied {dencminated) in currencies ather than the functional
|.|.n¢r{,'|:-‘ a Fund aee comvered 1o the functienal CUIMBACY Uking e h.mqr
rates [oumency spet and Sorwaed rates) obtaned from Pricng Senvices. As a
resuft, the NAN of a Fund's units may be atlecied by changes in the value of
urrencies in relation to the functional cumency. The value of secunities traded
in feresgn markets o denaminated im currences ather than the funcional
rurrency may be afected significanthy on a day that the Trust is not open for
busingss. Valudtion adssiments may b applied 5o oertain securities thad ane
solely traded on a fareign enchanges 1o accoum for the markey movement
between the dose of the foresgn markes and the NYSE Close. These seouities
are valued using Pricing Senvces that consider the comelation of the rading
patterers of the Bareign security bo thee intraday tradng in the U5, markets fo
imvestments. Securities wang these valuaton adjustments are categorized as
Lewved 2 o the fair value hierarchy. Preflerred secunties and other equities
traded on it markess of valised by relrance 1o srmelar mibiuments ane
abso categorized as Level 2 of the fair value herardy

Equity-tinked securities are valued by referencing the last reported sae oo
setthement price of the inked referenced equity on the day of valuaticn
Fareign exchange adjustments are aoplied 1o the last repaned prce to
corwvert the bnked equity’s trading curency to the conbract's settling curency
Thesse irmvestments ane cabégorized o Lovel 7 of the far vabue Hmerdichy

Invesments in registered open-end investment companies {other than ETFs)
wall be valved based upon the MAVs ol such investmenits and are categonzed
as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy Imvestments in wniegistered open-end
imegstment companees wall be caloulated buted upon the Ay of such
imeestments and are considered Level 1 provided that the NAYS are
chservable, caboulabed daily and are the value at which both punchases and
wabies will B condutted

Valuation adpstments may be applied 1o certain exchange traded Tutures and
cptions to accound for markel movement between the exchange settlement
and the NYSE chote Thesr securtics are valued wing quates obiained Trom 2
quetation (epestieg srstem, established macket makers of pricing senace
Finandial dervatives using these valuation adpusiments are categonzed a5
Level 2 of the {air value higrarchy

Equity exchange-rraded options and over the coumer financeal derrative
instruments, such as foewand fareign curency contracts and options contracts,
dertve their value from underying asset prices, indices, mfenerce rates, and
oshis inputs of & dombindtion of these factars These comracty am ncmally
walued on the hasis of quotes cbiained from a quotation reparting system,
established maret makess or Pricing Sendces (normally determined as of the
NYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction,
fimamcial dervatie instruments can be valued by Priang Senices using a
senes of techniques, mduding simulation priong models. The pricing models
use inputs that are cbserved Trom actiely quated markets such a5 quated
praces, rssuer details, mdsoes, bidlask spreads, inberedt rates, implied
wokatibties, yield ourves, dnidends and exchange rates Finanoal demvative
instiuments that use similar vialuation teckeiques and nputs as described
above are categorzed as Level J of the fair value beerardny

Centrally deared swaps and over the counder swaps derive their value feom
underlying asset prices, incioes, reforence rates, and oshes inputs o @
cormbunation ol these factors. They e valoed using a broker-dealer bud
quetatcsn of on marker-based prices prenided By Pricing Senaces (normally
determined as of the MYSE Close) Centeally deared swaps and over the
counber swaps can b valued by Pricing Sendoes using a secies of techrigques,
inclisding simulaben priceng madels The prioing models may wse inputs that
are clserved from actvely quoted markets such as the ovemnight index swap
e (TO187), UBOR Toradsd cate, mvtereit rates, yvield curves and creds
spreads. These seoutities are caleqoneed as Level 2 of the Tair value hisraschsy

When a fair valsation method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unobsernabile inpats, avvestients will be poiced by 2 method that

the Manager or pessons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
are categonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hieranchy

Pecory pricing procedunes st the base price of 2 Tived income secunty and
subsequently adjust the prce propomonally b markes vabue changes of a pee-
detarmned sacurty deemed to be comparable in duraton, generalya LS
Trearsury of sowediign nodie based on country of issance The base poice may
bee & broker-dealer quote. transaciion phice, of &n memal value a5 derved by
analysis of market data The base price of the secutity may be reset on a
penindic basis based an the avalabilty of market data and proceduies
appioved by the Valuation Owversight Comratiés S.ujr." cant chandgis i the
unohsersable inputs of the prooty pricng process. (the base paice) would resull
in direct and proparional changes in the far value of the secunty. These
securities abe calegorzed a5 Livel 3 af the Lar value berancky

H third-party evaluated vendor pracing is mot avadlabde ar not deemed 1o be
indscative of Law value, the Manager may efect to chiain Broker

Queses directly from 1he broker-dealer o pavsed-through Broker Quate from
a third-parmy vendar In the event that far value is based upon a single
sourced Broker Quote, these securities are categorzed as Level 3 of the fair
valug h'.rlarrh:ll gk Quotes ane Sypicalby recenied Trom establahed market
partiopants, Although independently tecetved, the Manadger does rot have
the transparency to view the underbying inputs which support the market
quotation Sigrificant changes m the Brober Quote would have direct and
pecpartional changes in the Tarvalue of the secuiity

Refererce instrument valuation estimates fair value by utilizing the comefation
of the security 1o one or mone binad-based securities, market indices, andiar
ather linancisd irstruments, whese pricing information o readily evalable
Unobsensabbe inputs may indude these used in algoritken Tormulas based an
percentage change in the relerence instruments andlor weights of each
reference instrument. Significant changes in the uncbsenvable mputs would
eesudt an diret and propomianal changes in thie Tair value of the secuney
These securities ane cateqorized as Level 3 of the fair walue heranchy

Shart-fem delbt nstraments (such 33 commencial paper) having a remaning
maturity of 60 days or ks may be valued & amortized <ost. so lang as the
amanized cost value of such short-term debit snstrumenss is approamately the
same a5 the fair valwe of the satrument as determined withaut the we of
amanized cost valuation These secuiles aoe caneqaiined i Levid 2 or Level
3 of the far value hierarchy depending cn the source of the base price

4, SECURITIES ARD OTHER INVESTMENTS

fa) Dalayud-Dalivery Transactions Certain Funds may purchase o sell
securities on a delayed-delivery bases These ransacticns irvolve a
commeitment by a Fund 19 purchase of soll Securties LY peadateriunid prace
o yiehd, wath payment and delreny tating place beyand the qustamany
setifement pernad. When delayed-delvery transactions are outstanding,

a Fund wall designate of receie as collateral liquid assets in an amount
sulfscsent ta meet the pusrchie price of respectnae obligations, Whin
purchasing a security on a delayed-deliery basis, a Fund assumes the nghts
and nists of ownership of the secunty, including the risk of prioe and yield
Huctuations, and takes such fluchuations intoe account when determining its
HAY A Fund may dispose of of renegatiase a delayed-delreery transaction
after it is endered into, which may result in a reafized gain or boss. When

a Fand has sold a secunity on a delayed-Celivery basis, the Fund does not
paiticgpate in futune gang and losses with nespect 10 the secutity

) Inflation-Indazad Bonds Certain Funck may evest o inflaban-indexed
bands. Inflaton-indexed bonds are fued income seowities whose principal
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walior is pevicdically adjusted by the rate of inflation The interest rate cn
e Bandd 5 i;t'lu'l.ﬂ:,' fooed &7 issuance a1 a fabe howes than il bords
e the life of an inflation-irdexed bond, however, interest will be paid
based on a principal valee, which is adjssted for inflation. Ay increase or
decrease in the princpal amouns of an inflation-indexed bond will be mduded
a5 inferest income on the Satements of Operations, even thewsh imestors do
not receve their principal until matunity. Repayment of the onginal bond
prircgal upen manbaity (a5 adpsted for inflanon} is puatanteed in the e of
U S TIFS For bonds that da net provde & umidar quacantes, the adjusted
privcipal value of the bond repakd at matunity may be less than the original
prrspal

Ied Loam Participations, Assignments and Oviginations Certan Funds may
imoest i dhrect dedl instruments which are @ienests in amounis owed 1o
lenders or lerahing syndicates by ooporate, governmental, or other bormowsers
A Fund’ s smaestments in Joans may be in the fem of participasions in boans or
.'|wu_',r|-1-.'|lx nf.‘ll| & a pedligh q| I ||c||n thurf Pt OF il i O
oiginations of loans by the Fund A loan is often administered by a bank or
other Enandial institution (the “lender”) that acts as agent for all holders. The
agent adminmbedd the teems of the laan, & '.[.'-l"v:||mJ iy thit loan agrbement

A Fund may imeest in muliple senes or sranches of a loan, whech may have
warying terens and camy different assoniated risks. When a Fund purchases
aspgreenly e Dindbe s 1 atares dinect .'||_||1I:. agnns the bamoveen al thee
lpans. Thi=e loans may include particpations o brdge kaans, which ane lpans
taken out by boanowers for a short penod {yypically less than ane year)
pending arrangement of mane permanent finanang theough, for example, the
tsspance af bonds, frequently bugh yeld bonds issued for the purpese of
BOUETIONS

The types of kaans and related rvestments in which the Funds may imest
inclisde, among ahers, demor lang, subordmated logns {including tecand
liem boans, B-Notes and mezzanine loans), whole loans, commerdal real
estate and other commeroal loans and structured loans. A Fund may
orsganat loans or axquing deedt inbenests m Bans hlu,}qh primary laan
distributions andfar in private transactons. In the case of subordmated foans,
theee may be significant indebiedness ranking ahead of the boerower's
ohhgatsan 1 the holder of such o loan, mchuding in the svent of the
borrower's inscheency. Mezzaning loans e typically secured By a pledge ol
an equity interest in the morigage boimower that owns the real estate rathar
than an interest in a morigage

Imvestmends in koans may include unfunded loan comeitments, which ace
coniracheal obligations for funding. Untunded Baan commetments may include
revahing credst fachties, which may chiigate a Fund ta supply additonal cash
1 thee Beirovesr on demand Unfunded loan commitments cepresent & future
obligatan in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
not be utized by the borrower. When investing in a lean pasticpation,

A Fund ks the '||:||". 10 nECETe Py maenis :-‘punc-;!nl_ mbetest and .|rr§,-’.|-r:. (2]
which it is entitled anly from the lerder selling the loan agreement and only
upion receipt of payments by the lender from the bormower A& Fund may
receEnve a cormeritmens fee baded on the undrawn pochen af the unGethIng
line of credit portion of & loan In cerian aroumstances, a Fumnd may recene &
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomowes. Fees samed of
paid are necoided a6 a companent of infedest income or infenEt expense,
nespeiscinvedy, o the Statements ij”:?_,ﬂ"'ld:h’,lll:. Unfurded loan commitments
are reflected a5 a liability on the $atements of Assets and Ligbilities

[d] Musetgage-Related and Othar Assat-Backad Seemrities Cedan Funds may
imees1 1n mostgage-relited and other asdef-backed securies that deectly o
indirectly cepresent a pactiapation in, o se secuted by and parable fram,
loans on real peoperty. Mortgage-related secunties are ceated from pooks. of
resadenttial or commeercial mortgage kaans, including mortgage loans made by
saniregs and hoan instlutadns, momgage bankeds, commevcal banks and

wothers, These sequrities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
et and prinGipsd Enteneil midy be determined by Troed e adpustable cates
The rate ol prepayments on underhing morigages wil afect the price and
volatility of a morigage-related sacurity, and may have the eflect of
shartening or extending the effective duration of the security relative 1o what
wi antopated a the time of purchase. The timely payenent of prncipal and
imterest of certain mortgage-related senuities is quaranteed with the full Taith
and credit of the U 5 Gevemiment. Pocls created and quacanteed by non-
gevernmental Bsues, including governmen -spoansaned corporations, may be
supported by various Torms of insurance or quasantess, but there can be no
assurance that parvate insurers or quarantors can meet their obligations under
the infurance palicoes of quarsntes a rangements Marsy ol the miks af
imvesting in mortgage-related securities seoured by commercial mongage
Boams reflect the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
markers, the abdiny of tenants to make lease paymints, and the ability of a
propsety o attract and retan tenants. These seounties may be less boud and
may exhibit greater prioe volatiity than other fypes of mortgage-related or
other assat-backed secunities. Other asset-backed secunties ane created Trom
marry Types of assets, indluding, but not limited 1o, auls kans, aocounts
eeivable, such as oedit card recerables and hospital account recervables,
hame equity loans, studert loars, boat loans, mobile home foans,
eecreational wehicke baan, manulactured housing loans, secraft beases,
compiter lBases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund may imest in amy level
of the capital structure of an Bsuer of mortgage-backed or awset-backed
secunties, includang the equity of st lods " mranche

{a} Collateralized Mortgage Obligatiens [*CL!0") are debt cbligavens of a
Iegad entity that are collaterahized by whole marmgage loans o private
marigage bonds and drded inte davses. ChOs are structuned into multiple
clisses, often seferced 1o as “tranches”, with each dass beaning a ddferem
stabed maturnity and entitied & a different schedule for payments of principal
and interest, mduding prepayments. CM0s may be less bquid and may exobat
qreater price wolatilty than other types of morigage-related o aset-backed
LeCunlies

i Stripped Mongage-Beched Secorities ["50B5 7] e devative multi-dass
morigage sequnities. SMES are usually structured with twa diasses that recesve
diflerern peopostaces of the inferest and pancipal dstnbations on a poal of
mongage aseets. An SMES wall have one dass that vall recenve Jl of the
imterest (the intesest-only or "107 dass), while the other dass will recenve the
erflire peincipal (the princpal-only or "PO" class) Payments recetred for 10
ate included im inferet income on the Statements of Operations. Because m
princpal will be recered at the maturity of an 10, adustments ane made to
the cost of the security on & monthly basis wntil maturity, These adusiments
e inclipded o amtener income on the Statements of Opeiatians Paryments
received for Ps are treated as redudtions to the oost and par value of the
securties

g Collataralized Dabt Obligations (" C00s" ) include Collateralized Sond
Obilganees {*CB04"], Collatealired Loan Obfgatand ("CLOS™) and other
samilarly structeed seomites CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-backed
secureties. A CBO is a trust which is backed by a deversified pool of high risk,
Eselenw Emaestenent grade foud income securities. & CLO i3 4 trust typecally
collateralized by a pool of loans, which may include, among othees, domest:
and feaeign senice secured loans, senior unsecured loans, and subordinate
coiparate loans, mcluding loans than may be rated bislows imaesimens fjrade or
equivalent unrated loans The risks of an imvesteent in @ COO depend langely
on the type of the collateral sensities and the class of the COO i which

@ Fond imvessts. In addition to thie naimal risks associated with fed imcome
secunties dicuised elsa®use in this repoit and the Funds L'II"-m:n]
Memorandum (e ., prepayment risk, cedit sisk, hquidity nsk, market sisk,
structural risk, lagal nisk and interest rate risk {which may be exacerbated if
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I mteresd rate payabde ona stnactured fingncing changes based an
gl -:lfl;-.‘l.]:r.‘lp:"i I irres fates OF imersiy fo changiss in inberist
rates)), CBOs, CLOs, and other CO0s camy additional risks induding, but not
limited 8o, (1) the possibility that distibutions from collateral securities will not
be adequate ta make interest o cther payments, (i) the quality of the
cofaseal may decline in vafioe or defaull, () the risk that a Fumd may invest
in CBOs, CLOs, or other {D0s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v}
the complex structure al the seourity may nat be fully waderstood 2 the time
of wrrestment and may produce dspates with thes suer of unsspiected
imvestment resuits

[h} Payment bn-Kind Securities Certam Funds may imeest in payment m-kind
securities (TP} PIKS may gave the ssuer the oplion a8 each intenest
payreenil date of making inbenest payments in either cash andier addtianal
debt securities. Those additional debt securites usually have the same terms,
including maturity dates and intenest rates, and assodated risks a5 the
opnal bonds The daly marke] qudtatadns ol 1he anginal bomds may widude
the accrued interest {refierred 10 3s a "dirty pice” ) and require a pro rata
adjustment from the unrealized appredation or depreciation on imvestments
18 antefest recenable on the Statements of Adsets and Laabdites

[T} Resstricted Secwrities Cenan Funds muy bald mmestments (hat ane subject
to legal or contractual resinctions on resale. These securities may be sold
privately, but may be required to be registered or exempted bom such
regstration befane being sold to the public Private placemens securities ase
generally consafiered 1o be restncied Dvsposal of restricted imvestments may
imvcdve time-consuming regotiabions and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acceptable pooe may e difficih 1o ackerer Rencted imvestments keld by
the Fureds at May 31, 2022, & applicable, ace dischosed o the Motes 1
Schediufie of Imesiments

0} Strwcturwd Motwa Ceortain Funds may smoist in structured notes and other
refabed mstruments, which are privately negotiated debi obligations in whach
the prinapal andl of interest is determined by reference to the perfarmance of
a benchmank seel matkel oF infedest fate Lan embeddied index | such a8
selected secunties, an index of sequrities or specfied inferest rates, of the
differential perlormance of two assets ar markets, such as indiexes reflecting
bonds Structured instruments may be rssued by cosporabons, induding
banks, & well & by governmentd agendes The teems of sudh stuchued
instraments nesmally provide that thesr principal andlor interest payments are
1o b adjusted upwands of downwands [but cedinanly not betow 2eral to
refiect changes in the embedded index while the structured iestruments are
sustanding. As a resuly, the interest andlor principal payments that may be
made on a stuctured product may vary widely, depending on 2 vaniety of
Factoes, inchading the wolazihsy of the esbedded index and the effecy of
changes in the embedded index on prindpal andfor inberest payments

[kl L5 Gevernmant Agencies o Gavernmant-Sponsed Eaterprizes

Casitann Funds may imasgt in wecunies of U 'S Govemeaen IR, af
government-sponsoted enteipeises. U5 Government secuities ace
chligatans of and, in certain tases, guaranteed by, the US. Government, ds
agenoes of ingtrgmentalities. Some U5 Govemment securities, tech o
Treasisy bells, notes and bonds, and securities quaranteed by the Governmen
National Morigage Assooiation | "GHNMA™ or "Génnie Mae"), are supported
by the Full faith and credit of the U5 Government; others, such as those of
the: Federal Home Loan Barks, ane supported by the right of the istuer 5o
boerow froen the U S Depariment of the Treasury {the "US. Treasury” ) and
others, such as those of the Federal Mational Mortgage Assocabion " FNMA®
of “Fannie Mae" ), are supparied by the deoretonary authornity of the (5
Geverremnent 1o purchase the agengy's obligations U 5. Govesnment securities
may include zero coupon secunties, which do net distribuse inferest on a

curtent basis and bend to be subject 1o a greater risk than intenest-paying
securties of simdar matunitss

Gimvernment-selated guarantors {1.e, ot backed by the full faith and oredit of
thia LS. Govemment) indude FbA and the Federal Home Loan Mongage
Covposation | FHUMC™ o “Freddie Mac™) FNMA i a govemment-sponsond
coiporation. FNAMA puechases corventonal (e, nat insued of quaranteed by
any goverrenent ayency) residential morgages from a list of appeoved
seflersseracers which mclude state .m-‘.ilrdl-:dl‘,- chanieied sxnngs and loan
Essocianons, mulsal drangs banks, commerncsal banks and credit unions and
mortgage bankers. Pass-through secuntes issued by FNMA ae quatantesd a5
1o timely payment of prncipal and iterest by FRMA, but 2t not backed by
the full faik and credi of the U5 Govemment. FHLMC rsues Particpation
Certificates (" PCs" ), which are pass-thisugh securites, each represanting an
undivided anferest in a pool of residental mortgages. FHUMC guatantees the
nmmiely payment of inteest and ulomate colfection of prancipal, but PCs aee not
buacked by the full faith and credit of the U 5. Government

fn fune 20719, FNMA and FHLMC started issuing Uredorm Mortgage-Badced
Secunties {UMBS" ) in place of thewr current offerings of TRA-elgble
securities (the " Single Security initiative” ) The Singfe Seouwity | nitiacke seeks
1o support the overall liquidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactermbos of FHAMA and FHLMC cemdicates. The effects that the Singhe
Secunity Initathe may have an the market for TEA 30d ather mongage-
backed sequities ae uncertain

Roll-timing strategies can be used whene a Fund seels to extend the

S ahon 6f m.l'.ull?,'b‘ i pedanion, such ik THA secunty on an underhyng
asset, by dosing eut the position belore expiration and opening a new
pasition with respect to substantially the same undedying asset with a later
expiration date THA secunties purchased of sold are reflected on the
Snaterments of Assets and LisbBtes a5 am asset of lisbility, tespeatively

] When-lsseed Transsetions Cestan Funds may purchase oo sell secunites
on awhen-issued bass. These tansactions are made conditionally because a
security, although authonized, has not yet been issued in the market
Tramiachond 1o puichase of Sl Secunties on B wivn-rdosd bids vk

2 comeitment by & Fund to purchase or sell these securities for a
peedebermined peice of yiedd, with payrment and delivery taking place beyond
the custamary settlement periad. A Furd may sell whenritsued fecunted
Eedinre they ae delhoened, which may nesalt in a cealzed qain of loss

{m) Bank Obgatiems Eank cbligations inwhech a Fund may imeest indude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fixed time deposits
Cortifcates of despost ang rﬂ:ll.lhlru:fllf&r.alm dued against Turds
deposited sn a commercial bank for & delinie period of tre and eamang a
speahied return. Bankers' acceptances ane negotisble drafts or bills of
exchange, nonmally drawn by an smporter o exporter 1o pay bor speaic
mischandie, which ane “accepted” by a bank, meanang in efiect, that the
bank uncanditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instument on
maturity Fioeed time deposits are bank obligations payable at a stated
maturity date and beanng nteneit at a hxed rane Froed tene deposits may be
withdrawn on demand by the imeestoe, but may be subgeet 1o early
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market conditicns and the
maining maturty al the obligation

5. BOAROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The lolipeeng dischosunes contamn informatson on the Funds’ ablty to lend oo
Esoirow carsh o Securities bo the extent permitted under the Oiffiering
Memorandum, which may beviewed as boriowing oo Fnancing transactions
bey the Funds. The bocaticon of these instiuments is descnbed below Fora
detailed description al credit and counterpamy ersks that can be associated
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with bamawings and ather inanding transactians, please see Note 7,
Prancipal and Qther Retks

|a] Rapurchase Agreamants Certan Funds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a typical repunchase agreement,

2 Fund purchases an underlying dett abhigation {oollaberal} subject 1o an
oblkatxn of 1h seller 1o eepurchase, and a Fund to resell, the obigasan ag
an ajpeed-upon price and fime: [n an open maturty iapurchade agreement,
there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
erminated by the Fund oe counterparty al any time. The macket value of the
collaneal mist be squal 1o of enceed the total amount of the repurchase
chligatians, incuding inberest. Repuechase agreements, induding acoued
interest, are indsded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. interest
earmed o recorded & a component of intenest incame an the Satements of
Opetatiens. In periods of increased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay a
fee for recespit of collatesal, which miy eesult i interest expense 1o the Fund

[b] Revarse Repurchase Agroaments Cimain Funds sy ente inta nesege
repurchase agreements, In & reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
secuity in emchange for cash to a financial stituton, the counterparty, with
a simuitaneous ageement 1o repurchase the same oo substantialfly the same
secuE ity at a0 agresd ppon price and date. 15 an open Mttty resee
reputchase agreement, thede is no pre-determined repurchase date and the
agreement can be berminabed by the Fund oo counterparty at any time

A Fund is entithed o recene principal and intenest payments,  any, made oo
the security delivered o the counterparty durmg the term of the ageement
Cash receiad in exchange for securities delivered plus aommoed interest
payrminls. to b mnade by & Fond 10 coumerpaitss an reflected 26 4 lab ty
on the Statements of Assets and Liabilibes Interest payments made by a Fund
to counierpartes ate recorded a5 3 component of interest expernse on the
Statements of Operations. In periods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund mary recenve a fee for use of the security by the counterparty, which
may eesull in interest income to 3 Fund A Fund will seqregate assats
determined ta be liquid by PIMCD o will othersise cover its obligations
UTET vl P unG hage P

k) Sals-Buybacks Ceman Funds may enter into finanong mansacnons
refierred 1o & “sale-buybadks” A sale-buyback financng transaction consists
of 4 sale of a secunity by 3 Fund 1o a linancal institution, the countenparty,
with & semultanesus sgresment to repudchase the tame of substanbally the
Same seculity at an agreed-upon prce and date. A Fund & nof entitled 1o
recedve prnopal and interest payments, if any, made on the secuity sokd 1o
thit counpty :Jl.rl:lu thee term of the ipemien] The agmed-upon
procesds Sar wecunitse 1o be repuechased by a Fund are reflected s a liabibty
on the Statements of Assets and Liabilibes. A Fund wall recognize net income
represented by the price differential between the price received for the
transferred securdy and the syreed-upon repurchase paice. This i commanly
refieered 1o s the “price drop”. A price drop consists of (1) the foregone inberest
and inflaticnary income adjustments, if any, a Fund would have otherwise
eceneid had the sectty not heen sold a0 (i) the Aegetialed |:|'|.'||'n:|r-g i
bepaeen a Fund and counterparty. Feeegone interest and inflationary income
adjustments, if any, are recoeded a6 components of inberest intome cn the
Statements of Cpeiatans. Intensit paysents bated upon nigotated fmanang
terms made by a Fund 1o counterparties aee recorded a5 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. in periods of ncreased
demand lor the secunty, 8 Fund may receive 2 Tee Tor use of thie weeunty by
the counterparty, which may result in imerest income 10 3 Fund. A Fund well
segregaie assets determined to be liquid by PINYCO o0 will athersise cover its
obligatians under sale-buyback transactions

[d] Bhort Sales Cortian Fundd may enter anlo thon saes trasactons. Shod
sales ane traniactions in which the Fund selk a sequrity that it may pot cen
A Fund may make short sabes of secunties to I} offset potential dedines in

lang pesitions in similar secunities, (il 1o increase the flexbilay of the Fund

(i) Tor mmeestment negumm, (vl as p.'r!-:ll a ik arbetrage stritespy, and () a5
part of its evedall portiolio management strategies Evohving the use of
devivative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the security scld shor and defver it 10 the countesparty The Fund wil
onfinatily have to pay a fee of premium 1o bedrew a security and be sbbgated
1 repay the lender of the security any dividend or intesest that acorues on the
secursty during the period of the loan Securties soid in shon sale bandactions
and the dradend af interest payable on such securties, if oy, e reflecied 2
payable for short sales on the Statements of Assats and Lisbdities. Short sales
expose the Fund io the risk that it will be requied to cover its shoet positon
at a sime whisn the seourty o other asset has appreciated invalue, thus
tesulting in losses to the Fund. A short sale is " against the bax™ i

the Fund holds in its portiolio or has the nght to acquire the security sold
shorl, af seeuntes dentical i the Lesyun 1y sald shadt, ot na additional dodt

i, Fund wall be subject to additionad risks o the extent that it engages in shont
sales that are not ° against the box”™ A Fund's loss on a shoet sale could
theeretically be unlimited in cases where the Fund is unable, foe whatieer
teason, 1o close ouf its short position

B, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The followving disdosunes contain infoemation on ke and why the Funds use
financial deriratve instruments and how finarcial demative insiruments
affect the Funds’ Snandal peaition, results of cperations and cash Bows, The
Tocaton and L value amounts of these ingtruments on the Statements of
Bessets and Liabditses and the net reakzed qain (foss) aod net change in
unrealized apprediation (depseciation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categodied b‘.'l' type of financial derrvatve montrad and related nik exposize.
ate included in a table in the Naotes 1o Schedule of Imestments. The finanoal
desivative instruments outstanding as of penod end and the amounts of net
realed gain ass) and net change in unnsslzed sppreciation [depeeataon]
on financial dermvative istruments dunng the period, &= disdesed in the
Motes to Schedule of Envestments, serve a5 indicators of the volume of
financral dervateen actnity for the Funds

{a) Ferward Foreign Commaney Contragts Covtan Fosds may Engage in
foravaed Foreign currency condracts in conmection with setthng planmed
purchases or sales of sequities, fo hedige the curency expose assonated
with some ar all of a Fund's securities or a5 past of a0 mvestment strateqy. A
Toraed Foreign currency comtract i 0 agreement betasen two parties b buy
and sell a osmency at a set price on a future date The market value of 2
forwaed foreign curmrency contract fuctuates with changes in foreign cumency
exchange rates. Forward fonsign curmency contracts are marked 1o market
dadly, and the change in value & recorded by a Fund as an uniealized gain or
ks Reafized gadns or losses are equal to the difference between the value of
the conteact ot the tene f wias q:-n,-:md and the wafse 2 the Gme i was cloded
and ane tecorded upan delieny or recespt of the curency. These contracty
may imvohee marked risk in emcess of the ureealzed gain o loss reflecied on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbdites In addiion, a Fund could be exposed
1o risk 1 the couniempartes ate umable 1o meet the terms of the contracts or if
the value of the curmency changes undavarably te the funceonal orreny. To
mitigate such risk, cash or securities may be exchanged &5 collateral purbuant
10 the terms of the underying contracts

Certain Funds, hawving a hedged Class, may atso enter inta forward foreign
cunengy coetracts designed to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
order to beper the "mj-]ud CLarss with an expdsure 10 Curtencies o Than the
functicnal curency These can be no guaraniee that these Class specific
forevasd fioreign curmency contrads will be sucressiul
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[t} Futures Contrwets Certain Funds may enter into futures contracts &
futures coniract is an agreement to buy or sell a security or cther asset for a
st price o & future date and is oraded on an exchange & Fund may use
Tutures coniracts 1o manage its exposore by the securies markets of to
miwvements in interest rates and osrency values. The primary risks asseoated
waith the e of fulures contracts ate the impetlect corelation between the
change in market value of the secunities held by a Fund and the peices of
futures contracts and the possibility of an ilgued market. Futwes contracts
are valued based upon their quated daidy settlesnent phiors. Upon entening
b & fitunes contract, a Fund 15 regquined 30 Sepalil with it futures beoker 80
amownt of cash, U 5. Govesnment and Agency Cbilgations, or select soversign
debit, in accordance with the inital maegin requirements of the backer or
exchange. Fubures contracts are marked to marker daily and based an wuch
mivements in the price of the contracts, an appropriate payable of recerable
for the change 5 value may be posted of colfectnd by the Fund (" Futures
Vanaton Masgin®) Fubuies Varatsan Matging, i ary, ang degclosed wathn
entrally cleared financial dermvative wstruments on the Statements of Assets
and Ligbilities. Gains or kosses are recognized but not considered reakized untd
e conTacts expire of clode Fulusis comIPacTs imaddve, 1o wirnng deghees,
nsk of loss im excess of the Futures Vanation Mangn sduded withan
exchange traded or centrally deared financial darkatiee instiments on the
Statemients af Aseets and Liahilites

k) Optiors Contracts Ceitan Funds may wite of putchase oplions 1o
enhance 1etsms of 8o hedge an existing position of future imestment Certan
Funds may write call and put options on secunties and hinancial demative
insbiuments Shiy o of i wisch they may magst W ing pat oplions lends
1o increzie & Fund's exposie 1o the undeehing ensteument. Wiiting cal
options tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the underying instnsment
‘When & Fund writes a call or put, an amount equal 1o the premium recened is
recanded and subsequently marked to markel bo reflect the curmeat value of
the oo waitten. These amounts are induded on the Statements of Assets
and Ligbilities. Premiums recened Brom wiiting opticns which expire are
tredted o repired gund Prémoums necEnend from writing opond which aoe
ewercised of dosed are added 1o the proceeds or ofiset against amounis pad
on the underlying futures, swap, secmity of currency transaction 1o delemine
1he seabiad qan i logs Cotain opore may b wiitlen with promiveed 1o be
determined on a future date. The peemiums for these cptions are based upon
imphed wolatibty parameters at spedfied terms. A Fund as a wniter of an
ophion has ng control gwer whethes the underlang instrement may be sold
{"call” ) or purchased " put™] and & a result bears the market sk of an
unfavorable chamge n the peice of the mstrument underying the waitien
ophion. Thene i the risk a Fund may not be ablie b0 enber inta 3 dising
transaction because of an illqud market

Cestain Funds may also parchase put and call options. Purchasing call optons
tends ta intrease a Fund's exposune to the underying mnstrument. Purchasing
pul optians bends to decrease 3 Fund's expeosure to the underdying indtnement
A Fund pays a premium which ts induded as an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Liabilities and subsequently marked bo market to reflect the
cuerent value of the opton. Premiums pad Tor purchating optint which
expree ane treated as redlized bosses. Cenain options may be purchased with
premiums bo be deteimined cn a future date. The premiums for these optioers
are based upon implied volatifity paramiters &t specifaed teims The sk
assooated vath purchasing put and call options is beated o the premium
paid. Fremiums paid for puechasing options whidh are exercsed oo dosed ane
added 1o the ameunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underying
imeEsIment transaction b determine the reahied gan of losd when the
unierlying transaction 5 exeouied

Cowdit Datault Swaptions Certan Funds may wite oo purchase cedd default
S Bl ||r:d|}n wpire 1o the ciedit sk of an imeitment withou

mating a commitmend to the underfng instrument. A oredit default swapticn
i an ofption bo el or buy Sredit protection ta a :.r.r-;'-‘:: refenence by enbeving
e a pre-defined swap agreement by some speified date in the future

Feawigan Cutianey Optiens Certain Funds may weite oo purchase foregn
cumendy apbions ta be used as a shot or long hedge agaiest possible
VANIONG In ‘.m-:':qn eachangi M of D0 gadsn exporsune 1o hlﬁl,'r CUMences

Inflation:Capped Options  Cavtien Funds may weite o porchale nfllation-
capped options 1o enhance retums o Ter hedgng opportunities. The purpose
of purchasing inflaton-capped cpbiors i to proted a Fund from inflation
erosicn above 3 cedlain r3te on a given notional exposure A loor can be
used bo gve downside protedtion to imvestments in inflation-lnked products

Intereat Rate-Capped Optisas Certain Funds may wiite or punchase intevest
rate-cappeed optians i enhance rebums or for hedging opporiunitses. The
purperse of punchasing imtenet rate-capped cptions i 10 protect a Fund from
floativeg rate risk hove a certain rate on a given notional exposure. A floor
can be used to give dowrside protecton to imestments in interest rabe inked
products

Interest Bate Swaptions Cetan Funds may wite or purchase interest fabe
swaptions which are oplans ta enter into a pre-defined aup sqreement of
o shoten, extend, cancel or othenwise moddy an existing swap agreement,
by some specified date in the future. The writer of the swaption becomes the
courierparty [o the swap of the buyer exsrcies. The intetest rate Swaphion
agreement will specty whether the buyer of the swaption wil be a fised-1ate
recefver of 3 fined-rate payer upon exencise

Optisns on Exchange- Traded Fotures Coatraets Certain Funds may weite oo
puschase oplions on exchange-traded Tusunes contracts {"Futwes Optien ") to
hedge an exsting positien of fubare imvestment, for speculative purposes of to
manage expasure 1o market movements. A Fusures Option is an option
coneract in which the undetyrng insttument 15 & snghe Tutuies contract

Dpptines on Secarities Cierlain Funds may wiote of punchass oplios on
sedunities b enhance retisns of to hedge an edsting positan of fisture
ivestment. An oplion on a security uses 3 speotied secunity as the underlyng
irstrumaent for the Giion contract

) Swap Agreemants Cirlan Funds may il in deap sgreements. Swap
agreements are blaterally negotiated agreements between a Fund and a
counterparty to enchange o swap imvestment cash Tlows, avsets, loregn
cunnngies of markeSnied retoms at specfied, Tuture mtenals. Swap
agieements may be pravately negotiated in the OTC market or may be deased
through a third-party, known as a central counterparty or devivatives dearing
oigarization { cendraly ceared swaps™ ) A Fund may enter milo asset, oredit
dedault, cross-turency, insensst rate, total return, vanance and other fome of
SWap agresments [0 Manage is ExposUne to credit, cuemendy, inenest rate,
commixdity, equity and inflation risk In connection with these agreements,
secuisies of Cash may b idenified a5 collmeral o maegin in peoordance with
the terms of the respective swap agreemsents to provide assets of value and
recoaxse in the event of default o bankuptodinsohency.

Centrally clesed swaps e marked 1o matket daily based upon valuations &
determined from the underbying contract ar in accoedance with the
requiremens of the central counterparty or dermeatives deanng organization
Changies in macket value, il ary, ane reflecied a5 a component of net change
i unreglized spprecation (depredamon) on the Statements of Operations
Daily changes in valuation of centraly deared swaps (" Swap Vanation
Margin®}, if ary, are desdosed within centrally cheared financial derwative
irestruments o the Statements of Assets and Liabilives. OTC swag payments
recefved o pand at the beginning of the measurement period ate induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilites @ repsesent premims paid of
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recerved upen entening inta the swap agreement 1o compersate bar

dilfer ences betwstn the stated terms of the wwap agreement and peinvaling
markel conditions {redit speeads, curency exchange rates, intefest rates, and
other relevant factors). Upfrant premiums seceived {paid) are initially recorded
s liabilities {asse1s] and sabsequently marked to marked fo reflect the cument
walue of the seap. These upfront premiums ate recorded as reafized gains or
losses on the $tatements. of Operations upon temination or maturity of the
s A hguadation payment teceived o made at the Seminasion of the swap
15 reconded i realiped gmn o loss on e Statements of Operstions Net
penicdic payments received or paid by a Fund are induded as past of reafized
gains of [esses on the Statements of Cperations

For purpeses of apphing ceman of a Fund's investiment policies and
restnctions, svap agresments, like other deriatioe instnuments, may be
waliged by 3 Fund at market value, notional valoe of full expesure value In the
cage of acredit default s, in apphpng certain of the Fund's investrmen
policies and restnctions, the Fund will value the oredit default swap at i
nofional value or its Tl exposure walie (1e | the sum of the notional amount
Tor the contract plus the marked value), but mary value the credit default swap
at market value for pumposes of applying certaim of the Fund's other
imeestment polioes and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value oredit
defiudy swaps 31 Full exposure valioe for purpsoses of the Fund's credit quality
guidelines (f amy) because such value in general Better reflects the Fund's
actual econamic exposure dunng the tems of the credi default swap
agreement As a resel, 3 Fund may, a1 bmes, have notional exposaee ta an
it dasd (belors nIEeh that & grédied of lesier thar The s2ated ket oF
restriction noted in the Fund's Offenng Memozandum. In this context, bath
the noticnal amount and the marked valise may be positive o negative
dipending on whether the Fund is selling of busang peatection thiough the
credit defiault swap. The manner in which ceran sequrithes or othes
instrumenis ane walued by the Fund for pusposes of apphaing investment
policies and nesnctions may dilfler bom the manner in which these
imeesments ane valued by athes types of irvestors. Entening into sap
agreements involves, tovanyng degrees, elements of interest, redit, market
and documentation nsk in excess of the amounts recognired on the
Statements af Assets and Liabilives. Such ks imoobve the possibility thay
these will be no bguid market for these agreements, that the courterpanty to
the agieements may delault on its obligation to perfaim o dsagree a5 t the
mEaning of conteactual terms in the .'qu\f-.‘frer-',-.-..lnd thas thiste may be
unfavorah e champes i inberest rates or the valses of the asset upen which
the savap is based

A Funef s maamun sk of loss Trom counterparty cedit rsk is the discountad
net value of the cash fiows 1o be recewed Trom the cousterpay over the
onlract’s femaining Fle. to the extent that amount & positve. The sk may
be mitgated by Im'.ng i Mt eThing .]lr.nlj{'mrnthr'lwmﬁ a Fund and
i countippaety and by the posting of collateral 1o 2 Fund to cover a Fund's
exposre 1o the counterpary

T the extent a Fund has a policy to limit the et amount owed &2 or to be
received from a sngle counlemarty under emsting swap agieements, such
limitataan onky applies 1o countipartes to OTC swaps and does not apply 10
centrally cleared swaps where the counterparty i5 3 ceniral countemparty or
derivatives deanng onganz atien

Ciwdit Dalault Swap Agreemests Certan Funds may enter info

credit dedauh s on companane, kaan, sovensign, U5 muncipal o U3
Treasiry sues ta provade a meadure of protection against defauhs of the
wssuers {i e, 1o reduce risk where a Fund owns or has exposure to the
neferenced oliligation) or 1o take an active long or short position: with repect
1o the hkelkood of & partcull i s default Credi default U
agreements invohve one pary mating a steeam of payments (referred to as
the buyer of pectaction) to ancther paety (the seller of pratection) i exchange

for the right 1o mecetve a specified return in the event that the referenced
erity, phllr;u:.q‘.l of index, o e dod i the D dIetment undergoes 4
ceitan credil event As a seller of protecsion o credit default swap
agreements, a Fund will generally receive from the buyer of protection a fived
rate of income theoughaut the term of the swap provided that there is no
credit event As the seller, a Fund would effectively add leverage ta it
portiolio because, in addition toits total net assets, the Fund would be
Subjict 1o mwestment exposine on the netional ameant of the swag

H a Fund & & seber of protecuon and a credi evert occurs, a5 defened under
the terms of that paroular swap agreement, a Fund wall either i) pay to the
barger ol protection an amoent equal to the notional amount of the swap and
take deliery of the refitenced thl.].]llm othe: delreerable u{:lli]unm:. o
underying securities comprisang the refierenced index or (i) pay a nat
settierment amount in the fom of cash or seourities equal to the nosional
amount of The wwap ke the recoveey value of 1he relenenced obligabon or
underyirg secusities comprisang the telerenced index IF & Fund is a buyer of
piciection and a credit event ooours, as defined under the tems of that
particular swap agreement, a Fund will either (i) recerve from the seller of
peetecton an amount egual 10 the notional ameunt of the swap and delives
the referenced obligation, ather defrverable obligatiors or undarying

SOCUT S Compaising the relprenoed index o () recerve a nit eftemens
afmount in the Torm of cash ar secuntes equal 1o the rotional amount of the
swvap bess the recovery value of the teferenced chligation or underlying
securities comgiising the relerenced index. Recovery values ate estimated by
ekt ks Ghiridenng ethe .'\.-dusl.‘.',' starcdad fpdomidy rabed of #nility
soecific factors and considerations wntil a credit event ooows. H a oedit event
has poqumed, the recovery value i determined by a faclitated awction
-.-\.+.rr|'1".r, & Fnemuin ruster of llevable broker bidd, ndgpsther wath &
spedfied valuation methed, are wied to calodate the setifement value The
aility to deliver gther obligations may reswl in 3 cheapest-to-deliver option
it buper of peatecticn™s nght to choose the deliverable cblgation with the
Iermnest vt followang a credit event)

Credit default swap agreements on aredit indices involve one party making a
stream af payments to another party in exchange for the right 1o receree a
specified refurn in the event of 2 write-down, prinopal shanfall, interest
shorifall oe default of a8 or paet of the relerenced entities comprising the
credit indec A credit index is 3 basket of credit instruments or exposures
detngnid ta be epreientatne of soeme pat of the ceadit matket &6 3 whole
These indices are made up of relerence credits that are judged by a pedl of
dealiers ta be the most liquid entities in the credit disfault swap meeket based
on the secter of the mdex. Components of the indees may include, but are
ot fimsted to, imestment grade securities, high yield securities, asset-backed
secunities, smeigng markets, andlor various oedit ratings within each secior
Crodit indaes and traded uiing credit default swaaps wath standaedined 1erms
ncluding & ficed spread and standard manarnty dabes An index creda defauh
swap refesences Al the names in the index, and if there is 3 default, the medit
event is settled based on that name's weight in the index. The composition of
the indices changes periodhcally, usually every six manths, and for most
indices, each name has an equal wesght in the index. A Fund may use credit
default swaps on aedit indices 5o hedge a porfoic af credit default swags or
s, whuch 1 less expenshve than & would be 1o buy many credit delaull
wmaps 1o achieve a similar eflect Credit default swaps on indices are
instruments for protecting irvestors cwring bonds against default, and
Wader: wse them 1o speculate on changes in credit gualty

fmphied credit spreads, represered in absolute verms, ubilized in determrenng
the market value of oredit default swap agreements on (orporate, loan,
wetengn, LS municps o U 5 rrl'.cr\.ur:l- 155084 45 [:fp-t\'l:xl end, if any, ane
dusclosed i the Notes 1 Schedule of Imestments. They seve as an indicatcy
of the ourrend status of paymentiperformance risk and represent the Rkelhood
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or risk of default for the referenced entity. The implied credit speead of a
particalar referenced entity reflects the cost of buyngiiellng pratection and
may include upfiont payments requred to be made to enter into the
agreement Wider medit speeads represend a detevipration of the referenced
enlity's credd soundness and a greater lkelhood oo risk of default or czher
credit evenit oocuening &5 defined under the verms of the agreement For credt
default swap ageements on asset-backed secusities and credd indices, the
quenid markel prices and nesulting valers sisve o the mdicater of the curnent
staius af the paysentiperformance sk Increasing market values, n saolute
terms when compared ta the notional @mount of the swap, represent a
detersaration of the referenced entity’s cred soundness and a greater
licelihood or fisk of delault or ather credit event cocurning s defined wnder
thee tenms of the ageement

The maximum potential amount o futwe payments jundiscounted) that

a Fund & 8 seller of protection could be required 1o make under 3 credit
defady swap apeement sgual the notonal amount af the agreement
Notional amounts of each indridual cradit delault swap agreement
ouistanding as of pencd end for which a Fund is the seller of protection e
disclased in the Motes to Schedule of Irvesiments. These potential amounts
waild be partially offset by amy recovery values of the respectiee relenenced
obligation, l.pllcrll payments necemed upon enlenng intg e ageement, of
el armounts receved from the sertlement ol buy pratection eradit default
swia apeements entered imo by a Fund for the seme referenced entity of
enbities

Inturnst Rate Swap Agreamants Coctain Funds ane subipct toimeness ratie
nisk exposgre in the normal course of pursuing thes imvestment objecties.
The valise of the Tieed sate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease i interest
rates e Ta help hedige agarst this risk and to maintaim its abdigy 1o
generaie intome ot peevaihng maiket rates, 8 Fund may enter sio et
I3 Swi ageesements Intenest rabe swap agreements imobas the exchange
by a Fund wath another party Tor their respective commitment fo pay o0
receive interest on the nationad amount of princpal. Certain doms of mterest
13le swap aqeeements may indude: 1) mierest rate caps, under which, i
return for 3 premium, one party agrees b make payments to the other b the
exyel that inberest rabes exceed 2 w:!wd e, o “cap, () mberest rate
Toors, under wiach, in retuen for a premium, one party bgrees 1o make
paymeents. 16 the ather to the eutent that inerest rates [l below a spedfied
rate. o “foor®, fiill indevest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and
purchases a Tloor of vice versa m an attempt to protect itself against infenest
rate movements exceeding gaen minimum of mamum leves, (7] callable
interesl rabe swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
cortideration fee the ngh o early termanane the S tanssction n whale,
at 2efo ot and a1 3 predetermened dabe and time prior 1o 1he maturity date,
{v} spaeadiocks, which allow the interest rate swap users 1o lock i the
Torward differertial (or spread) between the intenest rate swap rate and a
spaifed benchmark, or [wil basis swaps, under which o partes can
exchange variaghle intevest rates based on different segments of money
markets

1. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|a] Principad Riaks in the normal course of business, the Funds {os Acguired
Fund{s], if appbeable) trade financal instraments and enter inta finanaial
ransactions where nisk of potential loss exists due to such thengs as changes
in the market (market risk] or failure or inability of the other pary to-a
transaction to perform (credit and counterparty riskl. See below for a detailed
descrintion of wefect prncipal raks

Fund of Funds Risk To the extent that cemain Funds wvest subssantsally 21
of their respective assets in Acquired Fund(s), the risks associated with

irwesting in these Funds will be desety related to the nsks assodated with the
securdios and other evestmisnts held by the Acguinsd Fundish 'l'u:..ﬂll!-?,'ql
the Funds 1o achieve their respective imestment objectves may depend upan
the ability of the Aoguired Fundis) to achieve ther respective investment
clbijectrves. There can be no assurance that the imvestment cbiecine of any
Bequired Fund(s) will be achieved The MAY of 20 Aoquinng Fund wall
fluctuate in response to changes in the respecive AV of the Aoquired
Funcs) in which i meests

Tt rroeraddl course of Business, Aoquined Fund{s) rade financial meruments
and enter inta financal transactions where risk of potential boss exsts due to
changes in the market (market nsk), or {ailune oo inability of the other party 1o
a ransaction b perdonm (coadit and counterparty risk)

Marhet Rishs A Fund's imvestrments in financal dersvatve instruments and
ather financal instruments expose the Fund to vanious risks such as, bt not
limised 1o, inberest rate, foreign ncerll 5 | oumency, equity and commadity
sk

Irvterest rate risk is the2 risk that fiied income seuities and other instiuments
bl by a Fund may decline in wafe because of an increase in interest rates I
naminal inbéeest rabes fise, the value of certien fooed income seoutites held by
a Fund weould likely decrease A neeninal intenest rate can be described as the
sum of a real imerest rate and an expected inflation rate. Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unprediciabie, and a Fund may lost maney if
thess changes are not anticpated by Fund management A Fund may not be
albde to hedge against changes iin interest rates or may choase net to do so for
o5t o other reasons. In addition, anmy hedges may not waek as intended

Durazion is & meadure wed 1o detenmne the serdanmty of a secuity™s proce 10
changes in @terest rates that noonporates 3 seculity's yiehd, coupon, Bnal
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Comeexsy is an
sddmionsd measune weed oo understand a security s of Fund's intenest rate
sensithaty that measures 1he rate of change of duration in response 1o
changes im interest rates. Fived income secunbes with longer duratiors tend
o bt e Serviatied 10 changes in interest rates, usually making them mone
wolatie than securities with sharmer durabons. A wide vaniety of faciors can
cause inberest rases of yedds of U 5. Treasury secunities for yields of other
typsh of bonds) 10 rise (e g, central bank mandtary polecies, inflatson rates,
genedal sconamic conditind, ete ) Thet i especially true under curent
conditions because interest rates and bond yelds are near histoncally low
leveis. Thus, the Fundss currently face a heightersd bevel of risk associated
wiith i anterest tates andlor bord yields. This could be diven by a varety
of kachees, anchuding bart not limited o centeal bank manetary polices,
changing inflatice or mal growth rates, general economic conditices,
merediing bond dsuanced of reduced maiket demand for low welding
ienestments. Further, while U 5 bond markets have steadily grown ooer the
past three decades, dealer " marke! making”™ abiliy has remained elatively
slagnan Gt thee importande u!-n!l:-l:-cd-ar,- “market makang” i cieatng
a fobarst and active market, fued income secuities are currently

fading increased volatsity and liquidity risks. All of these fachors, collectwvely
andiod indnadually, could Ciede 3 Fund 1o lode valok Il thie Fund lads Efugh
value the Fund could face increased Unitholder redemptions, which could
funther imgpair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely affectad
when a large Unitholder purchases or redaens lange asvaunts of units, which
can oour at iy tene and may impact the Fund in the same manner a5 & bagh
yolume of redemgbion 1equests. Lange Unitholider ransactions may impact
the Fund s Biquidity and net asset value. Such ransactions may aiso intresse
the Fund's transaction costs of olberwiie cause the Fund 10 perform
diffiererthy than imended. Morecwer, the Fund is subject to the nisk that
other Unithalders may make investment deasions based on the choices of a
large Linisholder
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A Fund may have significant exposure 10 rsuers in the Ursted Kingdom The
Liniged Elr.\-?c!um". withdrawal fnem the Exsopean Wman may impact Fund
returers. This decrsion may cause adstantial volatibty in Torespn exchange
mariets, lead b wealness in the exchange rate of the British pound, resultin
a susnained period of market uncertainty, and destabdize some o all of the
othes Ezopean Linion member countries andiar the Eurozome

Foreign (non-U 5.} securities in this repon are dassilied by the country of
incespeeation of a bolding. In certan instances, 3 secunty's country of
incoeposation iy be difener from s country of econamic esperiure

IF & Fueed imvests directly in foeeign (ron<U 5 ) cumencies or in secuntess that
trade in, and recenve reverues i, Foreign (nan-U 5 ) cumencies, or in financial
diervative ingruments that paovsde exposute to foregn (non-U S ) curencies,
it will e sisbyect to the nsk that those curencies will decline invalue relative
to the base cunrendy of the Fund, or, in the ase of hedging positions, that
ther Fuorsd's bt Curtgncy will dischne o wilug relatnod 20 thee currency being
hedged. Cumency eates in Toresgn countres may Floctuate sgraficantly oves
shoet peniads of time Tor a number of reasons, indluding changes in interest
rates, inservenition (or the fue ta intervene) by U5 or forsign governments,
tentral banks or supranational entrties such as the Inemational Monetary
Fund, o by the imnposition of currency confinols or ather politcal developments
i the United 55abes of abigad As o result, 8 Fond's mvsstmints |n1un_1q-|
currency-denominated seouities. may reduce the Fund's retums,

The market values of equities, such & common stecks and preferred securitses
or equity related imvestments such a5 futures and options, have historically
reien and falen in peetiodic Sycles and may diching due ta general muket
conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as
redl o percerred adverse economic condifions, changes in the gereral
ouslonk fiod corpesate earnings, changes im mleres) o cutrency rates, public
health emergences, such 2 the spread of infectow dress or disease, or
adverse investor sentiment generally They may also declne due to faciors
which atfect a particulas indstry e industnzs, such as labor shortages or
incregsed praduction costs and competishie condibees wathin an ndustry
Differant types of equity seourities may react differently to these
developments. Equity securities and equity related imvestments generally have
greater matket prics volatlit then ned moome seounte

The Funds may imeest in ceetain instruments that eely in some fashion upon
LIBOR, LIBOR is an average sntenest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Admmistration, that banks change one anathis fiar ghe use of shoer-term
manay. The United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authanty, which regulates
LIEOR, has anngunced plans to utimately phase out the use of LIBOR There
remdire unoertaingy regaiding luture wlikzaten of LIBOR and the natue of
amy replacement rate (& g, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate whidh s
intended to replace U % dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of avernight
boriowings thiough nepuichde agreement transiclions collateralized with
U5 Teeasury secutities) Any patennal effects of the maenmion sway fram
LIGOR on a Fund or-on cevtain estruments in which a Fund imvests can be
diffcult v ascertan, and they may vary depending on a vasiety of factors. The
transitenn may oo result in a teduction in the valve of certain irstruments
hield by a Fund e a reduction in the effectiversss of related Fund transactans
such as hedoes Any such effects of the trarstion away from LIBOR, as well
s cther unfedeeen effects, could result in basses ta a Fund

Beginming in lanuary 2020, global financal markets have expenienced and
may continue bo expenierce significant volatility resulting from the spread of a
nowvel conandnirus known o CONID-12 The outbeeak of COVMD-13 has
resulted in travel and boeder restrictions, quarantines, supply chan
disruptioes, lower consusmer demand and gereral markef uncertaingy, The
r|||:\l,|.1l sEononTy, the sconomist of cerain nations and indradioal oet have
been and may continue to be adversely affected by CONID-19, pamicularly

fight o the imterconneciiity between economies and financial markets, a of
which maey negatieely imgact the Funds’ Ftrfn'nl.ml:\r i addimen, COWVID-12
and geveinenental responses e COVID-19 may négatnely impadt the

capahilities of the Funds’ service providers and disrupt the Funds” operations

Cradit and Countevparty Risks A Fund vl be exposed 1o aedit nsk 5o
panties weth whosn it trades &nd waill sl bear the rsk of settlement difauly
A Fumd minimizes concentrations of credit rsk by undertaking ranachors
with a large number of customers and counterparties on recognized and
eeputable exchanges, where applicable. OTC derrvatree ransactions ate
subject 1o the ek than a countesparty 16 the transaction will net fullil its
contractual obfgations to the ather party, as many of the peotedions affonded
o centrally deared desteative tramsactions might not be avadable bor OTC
detneatios trandactiond. For derrvathoes raded on an exchamge of through a
central counterparty, credit sk resdes wath the creditworthiness of

the Fund’s clearing broker. o the dearinghouse itself, rasher than with a
ourtiparty i an OTC digncatnad tandbehon. Chandges i digulaten rdabng
i a Fund's use of derrvateves and related instruments could pobentiatly limi
of impact the Fund's ability to invest in dereatives, imit the Fund's abelity to
ermploy certain Srategies that use dematned andice adverssly dffect the value
o perfoemance ol derrvatives and the Fund A Fund could lose maney if the
suer of guatantor of a fmed income sequrity, or the counterparty to a
financal derrratee instiuments contract, repurchase agresment o a loan of
pomfolio secuntie, i unable o wrwilling to make tmely princpal andiol
inerest payments, of 1o otherssse honor its obbgations. Secunties and
financiad dervative instruments are subject 1o varying degrees of credit ik,
which may be refiecied in credit ratmngs

Simalar 1o credit nsk, a Fund may be exposed to courerparty rsk, of the rsk
that an irslitwtion o other entity weth which a Fund has unsetiled or apen
wransacsans vall defauly FIMED, & the Manager, mimmzes. countesparty
risks to the Furds thiough a renber of wiays. Pror to entering inga
transactons with a new counterparty, the PIMOD Counterpaty Risk
Commiltes condcts an extensive credit neview of such <ounlerpanty and must
approve the use of such coustemparty. Furthenmone, pursuant 1o the terms of
the umdezhying confract, o the extent that unpaid amounts owed to a Fund
exceed a peedetermined thiethold, such counterpadty shall advance collaieral
i & Fursd in the Torm of cash ar seounities equal in valoe 1 the unpasd
amaunt owed to a Fund A Fund may imsest such collateral in seowities o
other instiuments and will fypically pay interest to the counterparty on the
collateral recenved I the unpaid amount owed ta & Fund subsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be sequired to retem to the cunterpaty all or a
paortion of the collateral previously advanced. PIMCD's attempts bo minimize
COurpaty ik sy, however, be unsucoessis

Al trassachons in listed securties ate settledpaid for upon deliveny using
approved countesparties. The risk of default i considered minimal, as delvery
al secuntsss sodd 15 nn"_ll made cnge a Fund har recenved paymint P.a:frnrﬂl, B
made on a purchase once the securities have been defbeered by the
counterpasty. The trade will Tail if either party fails to meet its chligation

) Othe Risk |0 genedal, each Fund may be subject to additonal nisks,
wrcluding, but hat bemed 1o, miks related o govemment fequlation and
miervention in financal markets, operational risks, nsks assocated with
financial, economic and global market dsruptions, and ofessecurity nsks
Please tefer 1o each Fund's affering decuments for a mane detaded
description of the risks of imeesting in the Fund

Market Dissuptions Rigk The Funds are subject 1o imvestment and
operational risks assocated with financal, economic and otfer global market
developments and drknaplions, including thode ansing from war, Termonsem,
market manipulabion, goveinment inbesventions, defaulis and shutdoaes,

el R | Wy 31, G2 ;
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pofitical changes or dipfmatic developments, pubibc health emergendies
{fch o the speedd of infectious debeases, pandemacs and ispidermics} and
naburalfensdronmental dsasters, which can all negateeely impact the secusities
mariets, inferest ra%es, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, credit risk,
inflatsan, deflation and other factors relating to the Fund’s invesrents o the
Manager's operations and cause a Fund to lose value These events may hae
adverse long-term efiects on the U 5. and word econcmies and markets
generally. These events can abia impair the technelogy and ather aperational
systems upon which a Fund's sendce providers, incuding PIMCO a5 the
Funds' imvestment advisar, rely, and could atheswise disnupt a Fund's. senice
prowiders ability 1o fulfill their obligations to the relevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an mfnctsous resparatony dnets cauied by & ngvel strain of
coronavings (known as COWVID-19] has caused volatdity, severe market
dislocations and liquidity corstrants in many markets and may adversely
affect 3 Fund's imeenments and operations

Governmeat Intervantion in Financial Markets Fedenal, state, and other
governmenits, their eequlatory agencies, of seff-requlatony ceganizations may
take actions that affect the regulation of the irvstruments in which a Fund
ieEts, oF the e of Sich Salruments, in vlyh thisl aré witledid pegle
Legiskation o regulation may alse change the way in which a Fund itsell i
requiated. Such legestation or regulation could limit or prediode a Fund's
ability 16 achieas its imeitment abjectere. Fuithermare, volatile fnancal
markess can expose 8 Fund 1o gréaer macket and bquidity nsk and potential
difficulty in valuing portfiolio irstruments held by the Fund. The value of a
Fund's holdings is aka generathy subject 1 the risk of futuie local, nabonal, or
glabal economic disturbances based en unknown weaknesses in the markets
in which a Fund invests. in addition, it is not certain that the U % Govemment
willl Intervene in neiponss 1o a huture marked disturbance and the elfect of any
such futune ervention cannat be predicted 10 & diffacult for sisuen 10
prepate for the impact of future financial downdurns, althaugh comparess can
seek to adentify and manage uture uncertainties through risk management
prograes

Ragedatery Risk Fmancal enbies, wech &8 imviStment companes and
imeestment advisess, ae generally subject 1o exienshe government ragulation
and intervention Govemment regulation andfor intenvention may change the
wiity 3 Fund is requlated, atfect the expenses incurned dinectly by a Fund and
the value of 1is investmenits, and limit andfor predude a Fund's ability 1o
ackieve its investment chjetive. Govemment regulation may change
Trequently and may have significant adverse comsequences Mareover,
givemment regulation may have unpeedictable and unintended effects

Dperationsl Risk An imeestment in a Fund, ke any fund, can imoive
operaticnal rsks ansing from Factoes such as processing errors, human emors,
inadequate or failed imemal or external processes, fallures in syitems and
technology, changes i personnel and errads cauted by third-pary senice
providers. The cocureence of any of these Failures, erors or breaches could
resuilt in & boss of information, requlatony sorutany, reputational damage of
athes events, oy of which could have & maseial adverse elfsct ona Fund
‘While a Fund seeks 1o minimize such events through controks and eversight
these may still be falures that coubd cause losses to the Fund

Cybar Seewrity Rish A the use of technology has become meee prevalist in
the course of business, the Funds have become potentally mone suscep thie
to operational and imlormation securty risks resulting from breaches in ober
secuity A breach in oyber securtty refiers to both intentional and
uninfenionad Syber events thal may, among othid '.!||:1|_|1 caude aFurd 19
lpse propretary informaton, suffer data caruptian andlar destructon or lae
operational capacity, result in the unautherized release or cther misuse of
ceefidential information, or otherwse dinupl normal business aperations
Cyber security Tailures or beeaches may result in financial losses 1o a Fund and
its Unithalders. The<e faifures cr breaches may also result in disnptions 1o

bussiness operations. potentially resudtng in financial losses; intederence with
a Fond's abdity 1o calculate ity et anset walue, procis Unisholder
Tranaacbons of othenvise ransac business with Unithofders; impediments 1o
trading: vislations of appicatle privacy and other laws; regulatory fines;
penatties; reputational damage. neimbursement o glher compensation costs;
additional compliance amd oyber secunity sk management costs and athe
adverse consequences. In addition, substantial costs may be incuered in onder
1o pevient amy cyber incidents in the fuure

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subect ta vanous netting arangements " Masier
Bgrasmints”™ ) with it coumtspaitail Muter Aghsements goven thir
tesres of gertain transactions, and are intended to reduce the counterparty risk
asspcated with relevant transactions by specfying oredit protection
mechanismd and peoviding standardization that i intended to mprove legal
ceranty Each type of Master Aqresment govems cerain types of
transactions. Diflerent types of transactions may be traded out of dflerent
legal entities of afffiates of 2 particular arganzation, tesulting in the need For
emultiple aqreemserns with a single counberparty As the blaser Agreements
ame specific bo unigue operabions of different asset types, they allow a Fund to
close 0wt and net its botal exposure 1o 3 counterpaty in the event of 3 default
with respect 1o all the transactions governed under a angfie Master
Agreement with a counterparty. For financal reparting purposes the
Saaterments of Assats and LiabiSties generally present denvative assets and

ablies on o gross badd, which refllecss the Tull ks and EXpruTE price 1o
nEting

Masler Agreements can also help kit counterparty nsk by spetifying
collateral pasbng arangements af pri-aranged ogoesute lels. Under ot
Master Agreements, collaberal is routinely tramshened if the tatal net exparsure
1o certain transactions (net of exsting collateral already in place) governed
unider the reliviant Mater Agieement with & Counbisparty i 8 gradh sdi0un!
exceeds a specified threskald, which ypacally ranges fram e to $250,000
depending on the countesparty and the type of BMaster Agreement United
Sabes Troasury Bills and U1 5. doll cach aie generally the preferned doims of
collateral, although other secuntees miny be used depending on the teems
outlined in the applicabde Master Agreement Secuites and cash pledged as
collateral ave reflected a5 assets on the Haternents of Assets and Liabiliies &
either & componient of Imvesiments a1 waiue (securies) of Deposts with
courdedparty. Cash collsteral recatied is not typacally hedd in a seqregated
accownt and as swch is rellected a5 a hiabilty on the Statements of Assets and
Liabiliies a5 Depordats fiom counieparty. The marke varlye af Ty seurities
eecafved as collateral i nod reflected as a companent of NAY. The Fund's
overdll exposure to counterparty nisk can change substantially within a short
period, a5 it i atfecied by each tansaction subject 1o the relevant Magter
fugresment

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
(indredualy and collectrely " Master Repo Agreements™) govirn repurchinse,
everie nepuichane, and sale-buyback tranactions between the Funds and
sefiect counbesparties. Masber Repo Agreements mantain provisions for
amang cither things, initaton, income payments, events of default, and
mannenance of collateral The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repa Agreement, collateral pledged oe recerved, and the ret expersure by
courtmparty a5 of peiod end are duclosed in the Notes 5o Schedule of
[rragmpnls

Master Secunties Foreaed Transaction Agreements (" Master Forward
Agreaments” ) gowern certain lorward setiling transactions, sudh as TBA
secunties, deliayed-delieny or sale-baybad trassachons by and
between the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forwand
Agreements maintan provisions {or, among other things, initiation and

sl P | Wy 31, G2
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8. FEES AND EXPENSES

3 5 51 [ abie af the e | iy 3 e O B3 ef Figels of @ = A
Fons

Fund Mana prment _Advisory  Adwinkstrative  Agency  Distribetios
FIMCO Bermuda Foreign Lows Duration Fund 0'&% = = -
PIMCO Bermuda 0.5, Low Duration Fund 078E%
FIMCO Eure Totad Ratorn Fusd [145% s
PIMCO Resal Raturn Fund 045% 0:25% DOz%
FIMCD Short Term Stratagy

« A 0 45% = o18% pETw

= uE0

s JUF s =

o J S

P 0145 % 05%
»  ED LR = L 10% T8
ol Pagart | May 31, 2002
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The Mmanagement
admintsirathee and third-party senices including aedt, oustodial, trustes, ponfolio accouni
distribution fees, i applicable, are paid monthly in amears 1o resmburse Tinancial intermedianes that provide servces and distnbution relating to the units of the
applicable Fund {or Clyss theveol, a5 applicable) In the case of the PIMCD Barmuda Fareign Low Dusation Fund and PIMICO Bermuda U5 Low Duration Fund, FIMCO,
oun of i management Tee, will bear the coits associated with advisory and adminizirative seraces, 19 of which i3 dessgnated 1o cover administrathe expenses In
exchange foe bear the costs of certan third-paty senioes required by the Funds, induding audit, custodial, tustee, pertiolio acoounting, legal,
transber agent s PIMCO, and not holders, would benedil from any price decrase in the coat of such third-pa ng decreanes

resutting from an incrie i net assets In g an, Wil tespect bo Funds that are subeict 1o an inistrative lise, J gerataly makes a piohs on such alee

s poted inthe tabke above, certain Funds ard Chasses of Funds are not subject to management, advisory, admenistrative, agency o distibution fees. PEMCO lapan
Lid, PRJCIY's affliate in fapan, is paed a fee from the Rapanese Imvestment Trusts or other snvestment vehides that invest in such Funds. or Classes and a portion of
quch foe 12 thien allocated 18 PIMCD ra comperdate if Tor 14 senaces, a3 Wphcatle

The Funds lor Classes thereal, a5 applicable) may bear other expenses related to their operatson that are not covered by the management, advisary, admirsstrative,
agengy or distributicn fees, including bat not imited 1o {i) tames and govemmental fees; (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portiolio rarsaction expenses;
fui} cosks -ul'l:-:|:r:r.-.'.'|.'| morsey, inchading intenest expensey: (i) exiraordmarny sxpenses, ihcluding coses atien and indemnifcation expenses; and (v} T TR
aliocaned o alocable 1o & speafic Clas of umity, a5 applicable PRICO has paid the organzational experes asonated wath the creaton of each Fund

PIMCO has paid the omganizational expenses associated with the creation of the Trust IF further Funds are launched, such costs directly attributahle fo the releant
Fund may be beme by the celevant Fund
10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imeestment Adviser 15 a related pasty bo the Funds and is a majo
disclened in Note 9, and acciued relited party Fee amounts, il any, are druclosed on the Sater

gwned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees pand 1o the related party, d any, are
erts of Asgets and Liabibtie

Certam Funds are permitted to purchase or sell secunties from o2 1o cerain refated affihated furds under speafied conditions cutlined in peoceduares adopted by the
Imeestmient Adveser. The procedanes have been desigred 1o ensure that 2y pusthase o sabé of secunitees by a fund Fiom or 10 another fund that is or could be
corradeded an affiliane brywirtue of hapving & common achnser {or affiated wreesement adwisers), m effecied at the cusrent market price. Duing the pencd ended May
11, 2022, the Fundt) e egbged ih purchdsss ahd saes ol weauined ST affiared lunds [aaunts in thaiand)

_Fund o
PAAC0) Baemeds Fermgn Lovar Dhorenen Fusd § 3 i
PN Baemsesda 15 Low Dsateen Fund 1,08
PILCD Emergeng llaricets Bond Fund [MI 45,0
PRADD Ewrn Total Returs Fund 1
PMCD Real Retuesn Fund )
PSR! St T Saemtngy 51,1

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIDNS

TR
demnification dauses
at hiraE nl es

Unader ther Teusts crganirational documents, cerlan partss (including the Trustes and PIMCOL aoe ndemnifiod sgmndt ofrCaen kabditgs that m
perdomance of their duties 1o the Funds. Additicnally, in the normal course of business, the Funds enter inlo contracts that cortain a varity
The Funds” mammirm expesure under these amangements i wnkngen a5 this would imvohe futune daims that may be madie againgt the Fund

occurced. Howiwer, the Funds hive not had prior clsms of losses pursuant 16 thise contracts

12. UNITS OF BENEFIGIAL INTEREST

The Trust may issue up o 500,000,000, 004 units. The Funds may have a sgnificant concentration of rek, as certain Unitholders cwn more than ten percent of the net
assets of each respective Fund Such concentration of Unithohders' inferests could have a material effect on the Funds in thie event these Unitholders request to
wathdraw substantial amounts of capital at the same time Subscriptaons and redemptions of units of the Funds are denaminated in the Funds® NAY cumency and
uimveried bo the Funds' | nal oamency al the spot rate on the transaction date. Units of each Fund are ssued without par vatue The Trustee, with the consent ol
the Managee, may in the future create and ofler an additional Fund or Class or Classes of wnits

™

Bovncal Pagert | May 31,
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al il were 34 dolla | amouenits in thousands™ |
oar Ercied our Ended Your Ended Toar Endledd
Ny 31, W22 iy 11, 22 My 31, 2022 Moy 11, 222
Fcwpts for ority mid L] % 413 : | ] e i} ] 1,080 Nk Wik
T Wi Wik M "y Wik i 11 Lt
(Cort ol uniy eodomid L] (1] |25 2550 (L1 ]] Z1L3HI K L]
sl Hik Wik LY Hu Hik L [T ] 13,551
Wi | nermad reitng from
Fured vt Tasanetie [ T O -1 % oI [l R T W1 BME B NEm
Your Ereied ioar Ended Y Ended Yoar Ended
Moy 1, 7022 gy 31, 302 My 31, 2022 oy 1, 222
U el ] M ] Aoy liam Smgy
52 1 883 i LU} A R kol ) § 5417
Mk Wik [£11] § 1813 Nk L1 Wik Rik
Mk Wik 'l 0 Wik WA iy Wi
Nk Wik . ] 133 Wik Kk MK Ty
HIA Kk B 470 Wik L Hig Wi
LI Wik patl 1082 Kk [ M Wil
Wik Wik 1] 85 KA R M ik
11131 |B.260 NA W (0] ([:cH]} 3 15838
Wik Kid £ 15 BEEI Wik L Wi W&
Wik L] 1] ] Hik KA Hig Hin
JENR NIk Wik (1 (83000 WA KA WA ik
Rk Kk Wi 2048 Lo A Hik L]
Hik Wik 238 4 A7 Kk L Hi W
ik Wik (53 (N B8N Hik Rk Hin Wik
Fusd umit Tasiactionn BI 8 13,3771 128 ) mAsm g (1588 8 114181
Yoar Enced
May ¥, H022
1B ] Ament
Rwprns Fot oo i
AL LT T .
CilED u 14548
J LI a 1540
J S il 1055
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Your Erched
My 31, 2022
Uit
JPY (78§
LD 11,543
Wit |fucrmna roling frem
Forsd uril TSt ILmGE & BEED

13. REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

n or athitraton proceedings and are not awane of any material litigation or claim pending o

T 1 named as defendants in amy matenal Daton OF ariral

e Funds

threatened against them

he Teeegoing fpeaks ¢

14, INCOME TAX

et
il

51
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2023
664,672 97,175,046
126,541 18,500,294
538,131 78,674,752

3,241,664.854

457,372.360

661,259.000

108.94 15,927

9,754

102.17 9,684
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2023
1,134,745,782.24 1,658 9,983
850,000
98,819.08
850,000
250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2019 388,027,447
2020 941,473,871.63
2021 1,053,391,472.93
2022 984,456,267.25
2023 1,134,745,782.24
Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2023
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Anna Dragesic

Ashish Tiwari

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Bryan Tsu

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. lvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Forgash

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach
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Jason R. Steiner

Jerome M. Schneider

Jing Yang

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Kristofer Kraus

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Pierre Luc Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau
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Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang

(Rene Martel)

(Richard Clarida)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

(Sachin Gupta)

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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2023 342
731,157,658,647

119 440,204,628,546
21 13,805,916,235
18 21,093,259,693
69 174,351,714,176
9 7,776,431,856
31 17,168,419,341
35 17,425,226,423
15 22,616,020,567
4 760,149,304
5 2,339,123,608
16 13,616,768,898
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2021 12 31 2022 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2023 31
146.20
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2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021
2(c) 692,286,956 101,212,353 721,198,092 105,439,161
2(d),3 23,611,226 3,451,961 29,741,057 4,348,143
2(e) 760,075,930 111,123,101 993,957,179 145,316,540
2(e) 298,953,809 43,707,047 317,540,465 46,424,416
42,455,591 6,207,007 47,497,769 6,944,174
2(e) 16,419,794 2,400,574 21,577,432 3,154,621
2().,7(c) 31,213,708 4,563,444 32,250,845 4,715,074
6 20,366,756 2,977,620 33,463,658 4,892,387
93,819,191 13,716,366 54,848,716 8,018,882

1,979,202,961 289,359,473  2,252,075,213 329,253,396

2022 12 31
252,958,658 2021 12 31
230,285,768 2(0),4 94,477,969 13,812,679 111,294,054 16,271,191

2(1),9 231,158,864 33,795,426 173,842,283 25,415,742
2().7(c) 1,122,167,785 164,060,930 1,140,825,289 166,788,657

2(h) 30,865,176 4,512,489 30,865,176 4,512,489
2(9).5 26,699,575 3,903,478 32,984,825 4,822,381
2(b) 28,471,674 4,162,559 36,988,617 5,407,736

8 60,321,209 8,818,961 61,620,430 9,008,907

1,594,162,252 233,066,521  1,588,420,674 232,227,103

3,573,365,213 522,425,994  3,840,495,887 561,480,499
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2022 2021
401,344,504 58,676,566 444,187,520 64,940,215
7(c) 254,261,222 37,172,991 301,432,498 44,069,431
57,704,815 8,436,444 81,689,779 11,943,046
2(1),9 31,647,773 4,626,904 31,437,762 4,596,201
6 84,349,623 12,331,915 95,602,945 13,977,151
2(r),7(c) 31,213,708 4,563,444 32,250,845 4,715,074
5,767,625 843,227 10,676,405 1,560,890

866,289,270 126,651,491 997,277,754 145,802,008

2(r),7(c) 1,122,167,785 164,060,930  1,140,825,289 166,788,657

2(1),9 241,298,327 35,277,815 182,746,288 26,717,507
7(c) 144,363,847 21,105,994 138,931,408 20,311,772
3,517,589 514,272 4,046,469 591,594

1,511,347,548 220,959,012  1,466,549,454 214,409,530

2,377,636,818 347,610,503  2,463,827,208 360,211,538

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,164,998) (6,433,247) (940,541)
150,000 1,289,007,163 188,452,847  1,333,506,696 194,958,679

2022 12 31 90,957
2021 12 31 74,205 74,137,242 10,838,865 69,610,604 10,177,070

2022 12 31 59,004
2021 12 31 102,231 7(a) 24,899,178 3,640,260 32,693,374 4,779,771

2(0) (88,587,431)  (12,951,482)  (52,708,748)  (7,706,019)

1,195,728,395 174,815,491  1,376,668,679 201,268,961

3,573,365,213 522,425,994  3,840,495,887 561,480,499
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2(e) 3,829,526,077 559,876,712 4,520,575,834 660,908,187
2(e) 1,013,190,320 148,128,425 1,166,893,208 170,599,787
2(e) 1,161,877,051 169,866,425 1,272,072,660 185,977,023
2(e) 289,992,929 42,396,966 350,424,117 51,232,006
2(e) 44,812,438 6,551,578 32,477,418 4,748,199
6,339,398,815 926,820,107 7,342,443,237  1,073,465,201
7 2,096,156,066 306,458,017 2,695,488,619 394,080,436
414,744,909 60,635,706 666,590,135 97,455,478
2(s) 610,193,500 89,210,290 633,462,121 92,612,162
242,700,768 35,482,852 233,154,167 34,087,139
2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 28,965,072 186,670,745 27,291,263
2(n) 119,548,680 17,478,017 105,285,247 15,392,703
32,998,070 4,824,318 47,627,284 6,963,109
2(0) 51,076,118 7,467,328 41,501,327 6,067,494
3,765,537,618 550,521,600 4,609,779,645 673,949,784
2,573,861,197 376,298,507 2,732,663,592 399,515,417
7(c) (139,931,743) (20,458,021) 126,921,569 18,555,933
2(i).9 (5.,102,108) (745,928) (5,545,277) (810,719)
2(b) (8,516,943) (1,245,177) (1,327,780) (194,121)
2,420,310,403 353,849,381 2,852,712,104 417,066,510
8 99,310,016 14,519,124 107,478,838 15,713,406
2,321,000, 387 339,330,257 2,745,233,266 401,353,103
2(0) (35,878,683) (5,245, 463) (7,967,178) (1,164,801)
2,285,121,704 334,084,793 2,737,266,088 400,188,302
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2022 2021 12 31

2020
12 31
850,000  (103,214,782) (15,090,001) 150,000 1,308,035,518 191,234,793 58,608 43,399,986 6,345,078
1,942,092,906 283,933,983 614,678,821 89,866,044 188,461,539 27,553,077
(1,861,825,611) (272,198,904) (589,207,643) (86,142,157) (171,157,203) (25,023,183)
8,451,432 1,235,599
PINMCO
8,062,808 1,178,783 8,906,282 1,302,098
2021
12 31
850,000 (6,433,247) (940,541) 150,000 1,333,506,696 194,958,679 74,205 69,610,604 10,177,070
1,612,749,721 235,784,009 517,338,542 75,634,895 190,912,124 27,911,353
(1,716,943,889) (251,017,197) (561,838,075) (82,140,727) (196,629,414) (28,747,220)
2,254,594 329,622
PINCO
4,645,064 679,108 10,243,928 1,497,662
2022
12 31

850,000 (103,727,757)  (15,164,998) 150,000 1,289,007,163 188,452,847 90,957 74,137,242 10,838,865
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2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31
148,726 37,843,422 5,532,708  (44,741,570)  (6,541,218)  1,241,322,574 181,481,360
2,745,233,266 401,353,103
(2,622,190,457)  (383,364,245)
8,451,432 1,235,599
PINCO
11,819,042 1,727,944 11,819,042 1,727,944
(16,969,090)  (2,480,881)
(7,967,178)  (1,164,801) (7.,967,178) (1,164,801)
2021 12 31
102,231 32,693,374 4,779,771 (52,708,748)  (7,706,019)  1,376,668,679 201,268,961
2,321,000, 387 339,330,257
(2,475,411,378)  (361,905,143)
2,254,594 329,622
PINCO
7,094,796 1,037,259 7,094,796 1,037,259
(14,888,992)  (2,176,771)
(35,878,683)  (5,245,463) (35,878,683) (5,245,463)
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,640,260  (88,587,431)  (12,951,482)  1,195,728,395 174,815,491
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2022 2021 12 31
2022 2021
2,321,000, 387 339,330,257 2,745,233,266 401,353,103
7,007,233 1,024,457 11,600,078 1,695,931
72,011,201 10,528,038 65,880,266 9,631,695
5,102,108 745,928 5,545,277 810,719
8,516,943 1,245,177 1,327,780 194,121
2,110,095 308,496 1,665 243
1,697 248
517,601 75,673 29,028 4,244
4,206,963 615,058
13,733,834 2,007,887 15,036,589 2,198,349
(8,121,604) (1,187,379) (13,788,912) (2,015,939)
(126,296,902) (18,464,607) (108,645,764) (15,884,011)
(5,102,108) (745,928) (5,545,277) (810,719)
257,625,543 37,664,854 (194,961,547) (28,503,378)
(19,444 ,611) (2,842,802) (18,406, 245) (2.,690,993)
17,730,085 2,592,138 180,065, 741 26,325,611
(16,690, 982) (2,440,222) 63,479,303 9,280,674
2,529,700,520 369,842,216 2,751,058, 211 402,204,710
(144,367) (21,106)
(14,102,890) (2,061,843) (17,229,114) (2.,518,896)
(991,693) (144,986) (4,902,545) (716,752)
(23,500, 150) (3,435,722)
(15,094,583) (2,206,828) (45,776,176) (6,692,477)
579,000,000 84,649,800 337,000,000 49,269,400
(579,000, 000) (84,649,800) (337,000, 000) (49, 269,400)
(2,475,411,378) (361,905,143)  (2,622,190,457)  (383,364,245)
2,254,594 329,622 8,451,432 1,235,599
(34,481,606) (5,041,211) (33,282,796) (4,865,945)
(2,507,638,390) (366,616,733) _ (2,647,021,821) _ (386,994,590)
(35,878,683) (5,245, 463) (7,967,178) (1,164,801)
(28,911,136) (4,226,808) 50,293,036 7,352,842
721,198,092 105,439, 161 670,905,056 98,086,319
692,286,956 101,212,353 721,198,092 105,439, 161
2,547,664 372,468

280/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2021 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO 2022 12
31 90,957
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
P1 LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
P1 LLC 1934

FINRA
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA

PIMCO

AREOA
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1ASB IFRS
IFRS

2023 20

PIMCO

PIMCO
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AAM LP

2022 2021 12 31 4447 323.9

FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO
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PIMCO

18

2022 2021

12
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12

IFRS

PIMCO
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PIMCO
30

2022 2021 12
31

IFRS
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IAS 19

IFRS
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[ J
[}
[ J
2022 2021 12 31 23.6 29.7
2022 2021 12 31
NAV
2022 2021 12 31
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
10,150,192 3,952,698 14,102,890
(1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
(16,079,748) (12,728,012) (28,807,760)
2022 12 31 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969
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2020 12

2021 12

2022 12

20

PIMCO

2022
23.6

PIMCO
31

LIBOR 0.2

183

31

31

31

22

PIMCO

2022
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2021 28.8 27.0

13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825

991,693 991,693

(1,697) (1,697)
(5,195, 246) (2,080,000) (7,275,246)
9,419,575 17,280,000 26,699,575

2021 7.3 7.2
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 24.3
AAM LP AAM LLC
2022 2021 12
23.5 21.5
SOFR 0.2 2021
90 AAM LP PIMCO
2021 PIMCO AAM LP
PIMCO 2022 12 31 2021 12 31
PIMCO 2022 2021
102
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2022 12 31 776.5
2021 10
2022 2021 45.3
55.9
PIMCO
2022 2021
6.3 7.3
PEG
PEG PIMCO
PIMCO
2022
PEG 418.3 2021 400.4
PEG 34.0 2021 41.6
PEG 2022 PEG 66.6 2021
85.8
2022 12 31 15.7 2021 26.2
PEG 60.8 2021 74.1 PEG
AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 SOFR 20 2021
LIBOR 20

AAM LP PIMCO
2022 2021 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2022 2021 12 31 59,004 102,231

90,957 2022 12 31

2022 2021
2022
2021

2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
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2021 12 31

2022 12 31
2022 12 31

2022 12 31

1.46

20,924 2021

2022 31

2022 12 31
AAM LLC

2021
28

41,017

4.6

AAM LP

59.1
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41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5.478) (5.478) 15,218
102,231 102,231 15,330
38,379 (38,379)
(38,379) (38,379) 13,960
(4,848) (4,848) 16,186
59,004 59,004 16,151
14,516 17,806
24,780 2022
2022 38,379
2022 28
16,752
90,526 431
2021 31 2021
15,597
2022 2021
7.0 11.6
2022 12 31 2025 12 31
401
100
2022 2021 62.2
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AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2022 2021 12 31
12 12
2022 160.0

2021 112.1
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12 31
2022 2021
50,000 81,038
3,037,815 3,988,116
100,156,227 115,094,758
103,244,042 119,163,912
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
(3,934,026) (11,685,074)
99,310,016 107,478,838
2022 2021 12 31 16.9 32.8
2022
2021 12 31 52.5 54.8 2022
2021 12 31 146 285
12 31
2022 2021
30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204

2,341,128 1,319,717
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2022 2021 12 31
43.3 40.9
2022 12 31

12 31

2023 39,348,587

2024 22,579,980

2025 34,908,435

2026 34,012,100

2027 29,593,384
171,102,531
331,545,017
(58,598,917)
272,946,100

2021 12 31

12 31

2022 35,796,969

2023 37,499,114

2024 23,189,168

2025 34,006,401

2026 33,302,410
69,700,751
233,494,813
(19,310,763)
214,184,050
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2022 12 31

AAM LP
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2022 12 31 2022 12

PIMCO
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2023

2023

2023
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2022 2021
3.3
12 31
2022 2021
2,629,358,116 2,408,685,532
1,057,636 567,143
2023 20
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM LLC
850,000
AREOA
PIMCO PIMCO

31,548 PIMCO
2023 31
7,862
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2022 and 2021

Assets
Note 2022 2021
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivaents 2(c) $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 23,611,226 29,741,057
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 760,075,930 993,957,179
Private accounts 2(e) 298,953,809 317,540,465
Prepaid expenses 42,455,591 47,497,769
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 16,419,794 21,577,432
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Receivables from affiliates 6 20,366,756 33,463,658
Other current assets 93,819,191 54,848,716
Total current assets 1,979,202,961 2,252,075,213
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $252,958,658
and $230,285,768 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively 2(f), 4 94,477,969 111,294,054
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 231,158,864 173,842,283
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 26,699,575 32,984,825
Investments in associates 2(b) 28,471,674 36,988,617
Other noncurrent assets 8 60,321,209 61,620,430
Total noncurrent assets 1,594,162,252 1,588,420,674
Total assets $ 3,573,365,213 3,840,495,887
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 401,344,504 444,187,520
Accrued compensation 7(c) 254,261,222 301,432,498
Commissions payable 57,704,815 81,689,779
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,647,773 31,437,762
Payables to affiliates 6 84,349,623 95,602,945
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 31,213,708 32,250,845
Other current liabilities 5,767,625 10,676,405
Total current liabilities 866,289,270 997,277,754
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,122,167,785 1,140,825,289
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 241,298,327 182,746,288
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 144,363,847 138,931,408
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,517,589 4,046,469
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,511,347,548 1,466,549,454
Tota liabilities 2,377,636,818 2,463,827,208
Capitd:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (103,727,757) (6,433,247)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,289,007,163 1,333,506,696
Class M members (90,957 unitsissued and outstanding at December 31, 2022
and 74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021) 74,137,242 69,610,604
Class M unit option holders (59,004 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2022 and 102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021) 7(a) 24,899,178 32,693,374
Cumulative trandation adjustment 2(0) (88,587,431) (52,708,748)
Tota capital 1,195,728,395 1,376,668,679
Total ligbilities and capital $ 3573365213  3,840495887

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenues: Note 2022 2021
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 3,829,526,077 4,520,575,834
Private accounts 2(e) 1,013,190,320 1,166,893,208
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,161,877,051 1,272,072,660
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 289,992,929 350,424,117
Other 2(e) 44,812,438 32,477,418
Total revenues 6,339,398,815 7,342,443,237
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,096,156,066 2,695,488,619
Commissions 414,744,909 666,590,135
General and administrative 2(s) 610,193,500 633,462,121
Professional fees 242,700,768 233,154,167
Occupancy and equipment 2(t),4,5,9 198,119,507 186,670,745
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 119,548,680 105,285,247
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 32,998,070 47,627,284
Other 2(t) 51,076,118 41,501,327
Total expenses 3,765,537,618 4,609,779,645
Operating income 2,573,861,197 2,732,663,592
Other (loss) income, net 7(c) (139,931,743) 126,921,569
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (8,516,943) (1,327,780)
Net income before income taxes 2,420,310,403 2,852,712,104
Income tax expense 8 99,310,016 107,478,838
Net income 2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266

Other comprehensive loss:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency trandation adjustment 2(0) (35,878,683) (7,967,178)

Comprehensive income $ 2,285,121,704 2,737,266,088

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Cumulative
Class M unit option
Class A members Class B members ClassM members holders trandation Tota
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options  Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31,
2020 850,000 $ (103,214,782) 150,000 $ 1,308,035518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 $ 37,843,422 $ (44,741,570)$ 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Balances at December 31,
2021 850,000 (6,433,247) 150,000 1,333,506,696 74,205 69,610,604 102,231 32,693,374 (52,708,748) 1,376,668,679
Net income 1,612,749,721 517,338,542 190,912,124 - - 2,321,000,387
Distributions (1,716,943,889) (561,838,075) (196,629,414) - - (2/475,411,378)
Contribution 2,254,594 - - - - 2,254,594
PIMCO Class M unit
equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 7,094,796 - 7,094,796

Reallocation of basis on

vested options 4,645,064 - 10,243,928 (14,888,992) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (35,878,683) (35,878,683)
Balances at December 31,
2022 850,000 $ (103,727,757) 150,000 $ 1,289,007,163 90,957 ¢ 74,137,242 59,004 $ 24,899,178 $ (88,587,431)$ 1,195,728,395

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $  2,321,000,387 2,745,233,266
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 7,007,233 11,600,078
Depreciation and amortization 72,011,201 65,880,266
Finance costs 5,102,108 5,545,277
Equity inloss of associates 8,516,943 1,327,780
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 2,110,095 1,665
Net loss on disposal of intangible assets 1,697 -
Unrealized and realized net loss on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 517,601 29,028
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments - 4,206,963
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 13,733,834 15,036,589
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (8,121,604) (13,788,912)
Income taxes paid (126,296,902) (108,645,764)
Interest paid (5,102,108) (5,545,277)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable 257,625,543 (194,961,547)
Recelvables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (19,444,611) (18,406,245)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 17,730,085 180,065,741
Other liabilities and payables to affiliates (16,690,982) 63,479,303
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,529,700,520 2,751,058,211
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired - (144,367)
Purchases of property and equipment (14,102,890) (17,229,114)
Purchases of intangible assets (991,693) (4,902,545)
Purchases of investments in associates - (23,500,150)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,094,583) (45,776,176)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 579,000,000 337,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (579,000,000) (337,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,475,411,378) (2,622,190,457)
Contribution received 2,254,594 8,451,432
Principal elements of lease payments (34,481,606) (33,282,796)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,507,638,390) (2,647,021,821)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (35,878,683) (7,967,178)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,911,136) 50,293,036
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 692,286,956 721,198,092
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ - 2,547,664

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
I LLC (AAM Holding I1). The Company has authorized 250,000 Class M units for issuance and options on Class
M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2022, 90,957 Class M units have
been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with respect to income and
distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.
PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:
Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.
StocksPLUS Management, Inc. isthe general partner of StocksPLUS L P.
PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.
PIMCO Japan Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.
PIMCO Australia Pty Limited is aregistered investment adviser in Australia

PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.
PIMCO AsiaLimited is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Resources) LLC provides certain global payroll services to PIMCO and its
subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Global Advisors LLC isaholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.

PIMCO Global Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. administers and manages investment funds under the laws of
L uxembourg.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.
PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.
Gurtin Fixed income Management LLC (Gurtin) is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Aurora LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of AmericaLLC (AREOA) isareal estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financia statements.

(20 Significant Accounting Policies

(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting

policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 20, 2023.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and al related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and
key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financial institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $444.7 million and $323.9 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Management considers investments in money market accounts to be cash
equivalents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These investments are carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining cash and cash equivalents in various
federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each institution generally exceed the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar federal foreign programs), and as a resullt,
thereis a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of FDIC insurance coverage.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other (loss) income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive
income. Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(e) Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These feesare earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is highly probable that significant reversal will not occur.

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these values can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office equipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships and developed technology. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were determined
using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships and the replacement cost method for
the developed technology. The intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from
18 months to three years, using the straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified
termination date are classified as indefinite-lived intangible assets.

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2022 or 2021.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. The Company has included
options to extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all
factors that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

The Company recognizes the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life
and the lease term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes

The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share
of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

() Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promotional
The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating

marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(o) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financia condition as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(@) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

(r) Défared Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

() General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recognizes these costs on a gross basis.

() Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

(3) Fair Vdue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial

condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at

least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $23.6 million and
$29.7 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2022 or
2021.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
Additions 10,150,192 3,952,698 - 14,102,890
Disposals (1,521,360) (588,736) (1,119) (2,111,215)
Depreciation and amortization (16,079,748) (12,728,012) - (28,807,760)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 30,298,311 63,109,027 1,070,631 94,477,969

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $28.8 million and $27.0 million during 2022
and 2021, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:;

Computer Customer Developed
Software Relationships Technology Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 $ 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015) (2,080,000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 13,624,825 19,360,000 - 32,984,825
Additions 991,693 - - 991,693
Disposals (1,697) - - (1,697)
Amortization (5,195,246) (2,080,000) - (7,275,246)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2022 $ 9,419,575 17,280,000 - 26,699,575

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.3 million and $7.2 million during 2022 and 2021,
respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $24.3 million and $23.6 million
during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $23.5 million and $21.5 million as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generally
less than 90 days, at a rate of overnight SOFR plus 0.2% (2021: LIBOR plus 0.2%) to cover short-term operating
cash needs. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from
AAM LP to cover its operating cash needs. At December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, PIMCO had no
outstanding short-term loans. During 2022 and 2021, PIMCO incurred $183 thousand and $102 thousand,
respectively, in interest expense on loans, which is included in finance costs in the consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2022 and 2021

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2022, the Company had $776.5
million (2021: $1.0 billion) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $45.3 million and $55.9 million during 2022 and 2021, respectively, which are
included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income
and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $6.3 million and $7.3 million during
2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with al of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO' s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are allocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2022, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $418.3 million (2021: $400.4 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $34.0 million (2021: $41.6 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2022, costs allocated to PEG
were $66.6 million (2021: $85.8 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2022, the Company had a $15.7 million (2021: $26.2 million) receivable from PEG and a
$60.8 million (2021: $74.1 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of SOFR
plus 20bps (2021: LIBOR plus 20bps). To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit
facility on behalf of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement
at December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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December 31, 2022 and 2021

(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, 59,004 and 102,231 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 90,957 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2022.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2022 or 2021. A summary of the activity in 2022 and 2021 related to the

number and weighted average exercise price of the M unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

(Continued)
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 38,379 (38,379) - -
Exercised (38,379) - (38,379) 13,960
Forfeited - (4,848) (4,848) 16,186
Outstanding at
December 31, 2022 - 59,004 59,004 $ 16,151
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2022 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2022 have an exercise price between $14,516 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.46 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $24,780 for 2022 and $20,924
for 2021. M unit options totaling 38,379 vested during 2022. On March 31, 2022 and September 28, 2022, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 16,752 M units. As of December 31, 2022, 90,526 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these vested
awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of
approximately 15,597 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2022 and 2021 was $7.0 million and $11.6 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2022, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $4.6 million.

(Continued)
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(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2022 and 2021 was $62.2 million and $59.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Compensation expense or benefit and unrealized gains or losses are recognized to the extent the underlying
investments appreciate or depreciate in value. Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in
trust and the related liability at December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $1.2 billion and $1.2 hillion, respectively, and
are included in interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. During 2022, unrealized losses amounted to $160.0
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. During 2021, unrealized gains amounted to $112.1
million, and is included within compensation and benefits and other (loss) income, net in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
Current:

Federa $ 50,000 81,038
State 3,037,815 3,988,116
Foreign 100,156,227 115,094,758
Tota current 103,244,042 119,163,912

Deferred:
Foreign (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total deferred (3,934,026) (11,685,074)
Total provision $ 99,310,016 107,478,838

(Continued)
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, income taxes payable amounted to $16.9 million and $32.8 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2022 and 2021, deferred tax assets amounted to
$52.5 million and $54.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2022 and 2021, amounted
to $146 thousand and $285 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU assets

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2022 2021
$ 30,598,714 31,256,186
4,919,604 5,443,382
699,666 312,947
883,439 578,204
2,341,128 1,319,717

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $43.3 million and

$40.9 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022:

Year ending December 31
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 39,348,587
22,579,980
34,908,435
34,012,100
29,593,384

171,102,531

331,545,017
(58,598,917)

$ 272,946,100

(Continued)
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021

Year ending December 31.

2022 $ 35,796,969
2023 37,499,114
2024 23,189,168
2025 34,006,401
2026 33,302,410
Thereafter 69,700,751
Total operating lease payments 233,494,813
Lessimputed interest (19,310,763)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 214,184,050

(10) Financia Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market Risk

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s
activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an alowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

(Continued)
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Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks. The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financial strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liabilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2022.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The majority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniques to limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.

Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2022, there were no

changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2022 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.
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(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of PI
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle. The Company earned $4.4
million and $3.3 million in investment advisory fees from structured entities during 2022 and 2021, respectively,
which isincluded in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in
the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interestsin those vehicles:

December 31
2022 2021
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,629,358,116 $ 2,408,685,532
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 1,057,636 567,143

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.
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(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 20, 2023, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

On January 1, 2023, AAM LP and AAM LLC merged with AAM LLC being the surviving entity, new managing
member of the Company, and new owner of al 850,000 Class A units of the Company.

On March 1, 2023, AREOA was legally renamed to PIMCO Prime Real Estate LLC.
On March 8, 2023, Gurtin and PIMCO merged, with PIMCO being the surviving entity.
PIMCO M unit options totaling 31,548 vested subsequent to the date of the specia-purpose consolidated

statement of financial condition. On March 31, 2023, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless
exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 7,862 M units.
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30

1,013,661,485 148,197,309
19,326,102 2,825,476
667,548,950 97,595,656
294,910,245 43,115,878
68,702,831 10,044,354
15,476,137 2,262,611
17,875,238 2,613,360
20,851,016 3,048,419
113,247,731 16,556,818
2,231,599,735 326,259,881
90,760,961 13,269,252
222,667,521 32,553,992
1,253,588,749 183,274,675
30,865,176 4,512,489
30,756,522 4,496,604
26,570,990 3,884,679
64,587,773 9,442,732
1,719,797,692 251,434,423
3,951,397,427 577,694,304
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420,903,866 61,536,145
565,044,623 82,609,524

60,382,239 8,827,883

18,609,056 2,720,644

75,542,357 11,044,293

17,875,238 2,613,360

3,053,533 446,427

1,161,410,912 169,798,275

1,253,588,749 183,274,675

249,841,855 36,526,879

121,224,559 17,723,031

3,662,023 535,388

1,628,317,186 238,059,973

2,789,728,098 407,858,248

850,000 (127,315,540) (18,613,532)
150,000 1,278,193,858 186,871,942
98,819 78,788,846 11,518,929
25,675 10,689, 383 1,562,788
(78,687,218) (11,504,071)

1,161,669,329 169,836,056

3,951,397,427 577,694,304
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2023 30

1,795,001,444 262,429,211
503,285,567 73,580,350
537,256,999 78,546,973
130,015,913 19,008,326

25,359,475 3,707,555

2,990,919,398 437,272,416

1,191,137,960 174,144,370
182,234,609 26,642,700
298,763,424 43,679,213
103,315,358 15,104,705

98,229,025 14,361,083
58,380,832 8,535,278
16,272,450 2,379,032
22,988,744 3,360,954

1,971,322,402 288,207,335

1,019,596,996 149,065,081
105,578,918 15,435,638

(5,183,285) (757,796)
(1,900, 684) (277,880)
1,118,091,945 163,465,042
42,922,025 6,275,200
1,075,169,920 157,189,842
9,900,213 1,447,411
1,085,070,133 158,637,253
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2023 30

2022 12

31
850,000 (103,727,757) (15,164,998) 150,000 1,289,007,163 188,452,847 90,957 74,137,242 10,838,865
741,351,472 108,385,585 238,583,350 34,880,886 95,235,098 13,923,371
(776,776,518) (113,564,727) (249,396,655)  (36,461,791) (95,723,759) (13,994,814)

1,673,156 244,615

PIMCO
10,164,107 1,485,992 5,140,265 751,507

2023

30

850,000 (127,315,540) (18,613,532) 150,000 1,278,193,858 186,871,942 98,819 78,788,846 11,518,929
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2023 30
2022 12 31
59,004 24,899,178 3,640,260  (88,587,431)  (12,951,482)  1,195,728,395 174,815,491
1,075,169,920 157,189,842
(1,121,896,932)  (164,021,331)
1,673,156 244,615
PINMCO
1,094,577 160,027 1,094,577 160,027
(15,304,372)  (2,237,499)
9,900,213 1,447,411 9,900,213 1,447,411
2023 30
25,675 10,689,383 1,562,788  (78,687,218)  (11,504,071)  1,161,669,329 169,836,056
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2023 30

1,075,169,920

157,189,842

1,101,860 161,002
31,273,527 4,572,190
5,183,285 757,796
1,900,684 277,880
(646,394) (94,503)
10,752,956 1,572,082
(5,821,438) (851,094)
(50, 880,780) (7,438,770)
(5,183,285) (757,796)
97,514,201 14,256,576
(50, 433,887) (7,373,434)
360,761,679 52,743,357
(11,376,924) (1,663,306)

1,459,315,404

213,351,912

(8,244,538) (1,205,351)
(8,727,998) (1,276,033)
(16,972,536) (2,481,385)
408,000,000 59,649,600

(408,000,000)

(1,121,896,932)
1,673,156

(10,644,776)

(59,649,600)
(164,021,331)
244,615
(1,556, 266)

(1,130, 868,552)

(165,332, 982)

9,900,213

1,447,411

321,374,529

692,286,956

46,984,956

101,212,353

1,013,661,485

148,197,309
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PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO

PIMCO
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2023 1,134,745,782.24 1,658 9,983
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2023 25 3,655

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2023 10 6,000 1,549 7,200

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2023 1,209 17 6,756

1989
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 1I, PIMCO
Rea Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the
statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31, 2023 and the related statements
of operations, of changes in net assets, and of cash flows for PIMCO Real Return Fund, including the related notes, and
the financial highlights for the year then ended (collectively referred to as the "financia statements').

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds as of May 31, 2023, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and
the cash flows of PIMCO Real Return Fund, and each of the financia highlights for the year then ended, in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other
ethical responsihilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
materia misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we;

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audits.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 14, 2023
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Translated from English

2022 2021 12 31

2022 2021 12 31

12
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2023 20
"This version of our report is a translation from the original report, which was prepared in

English. In all matters of interpretation of information, views or opinions, the original English

language version of our report takes precedence over this translation."
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2022 and 2021, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 20, 2023
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il, PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the
“Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31,
2022 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, including the related notes, and the financial highlights for the year
then ended (collectively referred to as the "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds as of May 31, 2022, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and
for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of the financial
highlights for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America

Basisfor Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 17, 2022

369/369



	表紙
	本文
	第一部ファンド情報
	第１ファンドの状況
	１ファンドの性格
	（１）ファンドの目的及び基本的性格
	（２）ファンドの沿革
	（３）ファンドの仕組み
	（４）ファンドに係る法制度の概要
	（５）開示制度の概要
	（６）監督官庁の概要

	２投資方針
	（１）投資方針
	（２）投資対象
	（３）運用体制
	（４）分配方針
	（５）投資制限

	３投資リスク
	４手数料等及び税金
	（１）申込手数料
	（２）買戻し手数料
	（３）スイッチング手数料
	（４）管理報酬等
	（５）その他の手数料等
	（６）課税上の取扱い

	５運用状況
	（１）投資状況
	（２）投資資産
	①投資有価証券の主要銘柄（上位30銘柄）
	②投資不動産物件
	③その他の投資資産の主要なもの

	（３）運用実績
	①純資産の推移
	②分配の推移
	③収益率の推移

	（４）販売及び買戻しの実績


	第２管理及び運営
	１申込（販売）手続等
	２買戻し手続等
	３スイッチング手続等
	４資産管理等の概要
	（１）資産の評価
	（２）保管
	（３）信託期間
	（４）計算期間
	（５）その他

	５受益者の権利等
	（１）受益者の権利等
	（２）為替管理上の取扱い
	（３）本邦における代理人
	（４）裁判管轄等


	第３ファンドの経理状況
	１財務諸表
	（１）2023年５月31日終了年度
	①貸借対照表
	②損益計算書
	③投資有価証券明細表等

	（２）2022年５月31日終了年度
	①貸借対照表
	②損益計算書


	２ファンドの現況
	純資産額計算書


	第４外国投資信託受益証券事務の概要

	第二部特別情報
	第１管理会社の概況
	１管理会社の概況
	２事業の内容及び営業の概況
	３管理会社の経理状況
	（１）貸借対照表
	（２）損益計算書

	４利害関係人との取引制限
	５その他

	第２その他の関係法人の概況
	１名称、資本金の額及び事業の内容
	２関係業務の概要
	３資本関係

	第３投資信託制度の概要
	第４参考情報
	第５その他

	監査報告書

